
               
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 38-431 THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD AN OPEN MEETING IN THE
SUPERVISORS’ AUDITORIUM, 1400 EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE OR MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY
PARTICIPATE IN THE MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV). ANY
MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC IS WELCOME TO ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH IS HELD AT 610 E. HIGHWAY 260,
BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ CONFERENCE ROOM, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

SPECIAL MEETING - WEDNESDAY, JULY 20, 2011 - 10 A.M.
               

 
1 Call to Order - Pledge of Allegiance – Invocation  
 

2 PRESENTATIONS:  
 

A Presentation of information by Taylor McArthur, Office Manager for
U.S. Congressman Paul Gosar.

 

 

3 PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 

A (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and convene
as the Gila County Library District Board of
Directors.) Information/Discussion/Action to adopt the final 2011-2012
fiscal year budget for the Gila County Library District in the amount of
$1,724,221. (Jacque Griffin)  (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County
Library District Board of Directors and reconvene as the Gila County
Board of Supervisors.)

 

 

B Public Hearing - Information/Discussion/Action to obtain public comment
regarding the adoption of the final 2011-2012 fiscal year budget for Gila
County, and to adopt Resolution No. 11-07-01, which authorizes the
adoption of the final 2011-2012 fiscal year budget for Gila County in the
amount of $96,045,612.  (Don McDaniel)  

 

 

4 REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of Invitation
for Bids No. 061311-1 for MC-800TR chip seal oil for Gila County repair and
maintenance.  (Steve Stratton)

 

 

B Information/Discussion/Action to approve Contract No. 07012011-12
between the Arizona Community Action Association and the Gila County
Division of Community Services, Community Action Program, whereby
Arizona Community Action Association will provide funding in the amount of
$115,570.83 to provide utility deposits, repair and replacement work and bill
assistance to eligible citizens residing in Gila County for the period from July
1, 2011, through June 30, 2012.  (Malissa Buzan)

 

 

C Information/Discussion/Action to approve Contract No. SRPWX05012011  



C Information/Discussion/Action to approve Contract No. SRPWX05012011
Agreement between Arizona Community Action Association and Gila County
Community Action Housing Services Department in the amount of
$20,705.71 to provide weatherization assistance for the period of May 1,
2011, through April 30, 2012.  (Malissa Buzan)

 

 

5 CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  
 

A Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. ADHS11-007055 between the
Gila County Health & Emergency Services Division, Prevention Services, and
the Arizona Department of Health Services in the amount of $53,753 to
provide Health Start services for the period of July 1, 2011, through June
30, 2012.

 

 

B Approval of First Things First Contract Renewal Amendment Notification No.
FTF-RC004-10-0129-01Y3 between First Things First and Gila County in the
amount of $56,650 to extend the Gila County Early Childhood Screening
Program for the period of July 1, 2011, through June 30, 2012.

 

 

C Authorization of the Chairman's signature on the Maintenance Agreement
between Gila County and Interstate Copy Shop for maintenance of the
School Superintendent's Office Konica 7130 copier in the amount of $620
per year for the period May 30, 2011, through May 29, 2012.

 

 

D Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Amendment No. 1 to a Lease
Agreement between Gila County "Lessor" and Pinal County "Lessee" to
extend the lease term from July 31, 2011, to September 30, 2011,
for Pinal/Gila Long Term Care's office space with said lease to terminate at
the end of this term.

 

 

E Approval of Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. 0010-0444, between the Pinal
Gila Council for Senior Citizens Area Agency on Aging, Region V, and the
Gila County Division of Community Services, Community Action Program,
Housing Services, to allocate funds in the amount of $6,477, which will be
used to help residents who meet program qualifications with minor home
repairs for the period July 1, 2011, through June 30, 2012.

 

 

F Authorization of the Chairman's signature on an Intergovernmental
Agreement between Gila County and the Town of Star Valley in the amount
of $5,233.43 and a Transit Agreement between Gila County and the Horizon
Human Services Gila County Safe Home in the amount of $2,500 for the
distribution of LTAF II (Local Area Transportation Funds).

 

 

G Acknowledgment of the resignation of Mr. Harold Plues from the Beaver
Valley Fire District Governing Board and the appointment of Mr. Jack Ned
Jolly to complete the term of Mr. Plues, which expires November 30, 2014. 

 

 

H Approval of Support and Maintenance Agreement No. 31325CONSVR  



H Approval of Support and Maintenance Agreement No. 31325CONSVR
between the Gila County Recorder and HOV Services/LASON Systems,
Inc. in the amount of $995 per year for support and maintenance on a
Minolta microfilm reader for the period July 21, 2011, through July 19,
2012.

 

 

I Approval of request for waiver of fees by the Gila County Fair Committee for
the use of the Fairgrounds Exhibit Hall/Commercial Hall and other areas for
the Ranger Party Fund Raiser dinner/dance on August 27, 2011, and the
Gila County Fair on September 17 through September 25, 2011.

 

 

J Approval of request for waiver of fees by the Sheriff's Reserve Posse for the
use of the Fairgrounds’ Exhibit Hall for its Sweetheart Dance to be held on
February 11, 2012.

 

 

K Approval of request for waiver of fees by the Cobre Valley Regional Medical
Center Foundation for the use of the Fairgrounds Exhibit Hall for their art
and wine auction event scheduled on Thursday, November 3, 2011.

 

 

L Approval of the October 12, 2010, October 26, 2010, November 11, 2010,
and November 30, 2010, BOS meeting minutes.

 

 

M Approval of the May 2011 monthly departmental activity report submitted by
the Clerk of Superior Court.

 

 

N Approval of Human Resources reports for the weeks of July 12, 2011, and
July 19, 2011.

 

 

O Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of July 12,
2011, and July 19, 2011.

 

 

6 CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public benefit to allow
individuals to address issue(s) within the Board’s jurisdiction. Board
members may not discuss items that are not specifically identified on the
agenda. Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-431.01(G),
action taken as a result of public comment will be limited to directing staff to
study the matter, responding to criticism, or scheduling the matter for
further discussion and decision at a future date.

 

 

7 At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02(K), members
of the Board of Supervisors and the Chief Administrator may present a brief
summary of current events. No action may be taken on issues presented.

 

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928) 425-3231 AS EARLY AS



IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928) 425-3231 AS EARLY AS
POSSIBLE TO ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL 7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE
AND ASK THE OPERATOR TO CONNECT YOU TO (928) 425-3231.

THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE
BOARD’S ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 38-431.03(A)((3)

THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE MEETING



ARF-709     Presentation Agenda Item   Item #:  2- A     
Special BOS Meeting
Date: 07/20/2011  
Submitted For: Don McDaniel

Jr., County
Manager

Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board of
Supervisors

Department: County Manager
Presenter's Name: Taylor

McArthur 

Information
Request/Subject
Presentation by U.S. Congressman Paul Gosar's Office Manager

Background Information
Taylor McArthur, Office Manager in Casa Grande, Arizona, for U.S. Congressman Paul Gosar (a
representative of Arizona's First Congressional District), notified Gila County management that he will
be available to meet constituents on the morning of July 20th until mid-afternoon of that day at the
Office of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, Gila County Courthouse, 1400 E. Ash Street, Globe.

Evaluation
N/A

Conclusion
Mr. McArthur will introduce himself and provide information to the Board of Supervisors and members
of the public regarding U.S. Congressman Paul Gosar and announce that he will be available to meet
with anyone directly after the Board of Supervisors' meeting on July 20th. 

Recommendation
N/A

Suggested Motion
Presentation of information by Taylor McArthur, Office Manager for U.S. Congressman Paul Gosar.



ARF-687     Public Hearing   Item #:  3- A     
Special BOS Meeting
Date: 07/20/2011  
Submitted For: Don McDaniel

Jr., County
Manager

Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the
Board of Supervisors

Department: County Manager

Fiscal Year: 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

7-1-11 to 6-30-12 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name: Jacque Griffin 

Information
Request/Subject
Adoption of the final 2011-2012 fiscal year budget for the Gila County Library District

Background Information
Arizona Revised Statutes require that special taxing districts, such as the Gila County
Library District, adopt a yearly budget.  With regard to any issue that affects the Gila
County Library District, an official action/decision must be made by the Gila County
Library District Board of Directors (BOD).  In Gila County, the Board of Supervisors
(BOS) acts the the BOD.  Prior to addressing any Library District issue, the
BOS adjourns as the BOS and then convenes as the BOD.  

On June 28, 2011, the Gila County Library District Board of Directors adopted the
tentative 2011-2012 fiscal year budget for the Library District.  

In Gila County, the Board reviews and adopts the Library District budget prior to
reviewing and adopting the Gila County budget of which the Library District is
included in that budget.

Evaluation
A public hearing notice has been published in the 2011 official newspaper of Gila
County advising the public that a public hearing and special meeting will be held on
July 20, 2011, to discuss and obtain public comment regarding the adoption of the
final 2011-2012 fiscal year budget for Gila County prior to the budget being adopted;
therefore, it is necessary to also review and adopt the Gila County Library District's
final 2011-2012 budget prior to the public hearing and adoption of the Gila County
final 2011-2012 fiscal year budget.

Conclusion
The Board of Supervisors will convene as the Gila County Library District Board of
Directors in order to address this agenda item.

Recommendation



N/A

Suggested Motion
(Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and convene as the
Gila County Library District Board of Directors.)Information/Discussion/Action to
adopt the final 2011-2012 fiscal year budget for the Gila County Library District in
the amount of $1,724,221. (Jacque Griffin) (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County
Library District Board of Directors and reconvene as the Gila County Board of
Supervisors.)

Attachments
Link: FY2011-2012 Gila County Library District Budget





ARF-689     Public Hearing   Item #:  3- B     
Special BOS Meeting
Date: 07/20/2011  
Submitted For: Don McDaniel

Jr., County
Manager

Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the
Board of Supervisors

Department: County Manager

Fiscal Year: 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

7-1-11 to 6-30-12 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name: Don McDaniel 

Information
Request/Subject
Adoption of the final 2011-2012 fiscal year budget for Gila County

Background Information
Arizona Revised Statutes require that the Board of Supervisors (BOS) adopt an
annual budget for Gila County.  Per statute, the estimates of revenues and expenses,
or a summary of the estimates of revenues and expenses and a notice of public
hearing of the governing body to hear taxpayers and make tax levies at designated
times and places must be published in the official newspaper once a week for at least
two consecutive weeks after the tentative budget has been adopted by the BOS. 

Evaluation
The tentative 2011-2012 fiscal year budget for Gila County was adopted by the Board
of Supervisors on June 28, 2011. The public hearing notice was published in the
Arizona Silver Belt newspaper on July 6th and 13th. A summary of the estimates of
revenues and expenses were posted with the public notice.  The libraries within Gila
County were provided a copy of the tentative budget and it was also posted on the
Gila County website.

Conclusion
A public hearing must be held by the Board of Supervisors to discuss and obtain
public comment regarding the adoption of the 2011-2012 fiscal year budget for Gila
County.  Immeditaly following the hearing, the Board of Supervisors will adopt the
2011-2012 fiscal year budget.

Recommendation
N/A

Suggested Motion
Public Hearing - Information/Discussion/Action to obtain public comment regarding



Public Hearing - Information/Discussion/Action to obtain public comment regarding
the adoption of the final 2011-2012 fiscal year budget for Gila County, and to
adopt Resolution No. 11-07-01, which authorizes the adoption of the final 2011-2012
fiscal year budget for Gila County in the amount of $96,045,612.  (Don McDaniel) 

Attachments
Link: Public Hearing Notice for Budget Adoption
Link: FY2011-2012 Summary of Estimated Revenues and Expenditures
Link: FY2011-2012 Summary of Tax Levy and Tax Rate Information
Link: Resolution No. 11-07-01







UD

GILA COUNTY
SUMMARY OF ESTIMATED REVENUES AND EXPENDITURES

FY 2011-2012

FY 2010-2011 FY 2011-2012
BUDGETED ESTIMATED FUND PROPERTY OTHER TRANSFER TOTAL

EXPENDITURES EXPENDITURES BALANCE TAX SOURCES IN (OUT) APPROPRIATION

GENERAL FUND 3      9,734,782 35,568,954      3,500        ,000 21,  044,270    16,966,377 (2,121,421)     39,389,226          

CASH FLOW RESERVE         5,000,000 -                   5,000,000        5,000,000            

RAINY DAY FUND         3,200,000 -                   5,000,000        (2,300,000)     2,700,000            

SPECIAL REVENUE 2      8,565,745 15,275,356      7,117        ,958        -           15,253,805 1,685,424      24,057,187          

CAPITAL IMPROV/SPECIAL PROJECTS         2,750,000 613,663           3,000        ,000        -           -              1,055,000      4,055,000            

BOND ISSUE         5,507,541 4,622,541        1,000,000        1,000,000            

LIBRARY DISTRICT         1,712,058 1,241,235        427           ,318 1,    020,516    226,387      50,000           1,724,221            

PUBLIC WORKS 1      2,897,450 6,817,434      5,617      ,924        -         7,464,745  -               13,082,669        

PERMANENT FUNDS         4,573,099 3,355,022        1,284        ,153        -           1,727,663   1,630,997      4,642,813            

STREET LIGHTING DISTRICTS         46,578     46,112             (17,875)           66,281         48,406                 

AGENCY FUNDS         321,590   108,335           210           ,000 -                  136,090      346,090               

TOTAL GILA COUNTY B GET 10    4,308,843 67,648,652    32,139    ,478 22,  131,067   41,775,067 -               96,045,612        

EXPENDITURE LIMITATION FY 2010-2011 FY 2011-2012

Budgeted Expenditures 10    4,308,843 96,045,612      
Less: Estimated Exclusions 6      7,000,000 60,000,000      
Total Subject to Limitation 3      7,308,843 36,045,612    

Expenditure Limitation 3      9,229,412 37,623,745    



Summary of TAX LEVY and TAX RATE INFORMATION
Fiscal Year 2011 / 2012

FY 10/11 FY 11/12
1. Maximum Allowable Primary Property Tax Levy

(A.R.S. §42-301.A) 23,831,616 24,813,192  

2. Am e r y axaount Rec ived f om Primar  Property T tion in the Previous 0
Fiscal Year in Excess of the Sum of the Previous Year's
Maximum Allowable Primary Property Tax Levy (ARS §42-403.C.14)
and Amount of Escaped Taxes Collected (A.R.S. §42-336)

3. Property Tax Levy Amounts
A.   Primary Property Tax: 23,818,540 21,695,555  

B.   Secondary Property Taxes:
Public Library 1,218,920   1,052,079    
Pine SLID 1,307           2,007           
East Verde SLID 3,271           4,403           
Miami Garden SLID 2,224           3,269           
Apache Hills SLID 2,710           3,265           
Upper Glendale SLID 950              872              
Midland City/Central Hgts SLID 20,090        22,872         
Claypool SLID 30,527        31,642         
Fire District Assistance Tax 609,460      526,039       

Total Secondary Property Taxes: 1,889,459   1,646,448    

C TOTAL O TY A PR PER  T X LEVY AMOUNTS: 25,707,999 23,342,003  

4. Property Taxes Collected:
A.   Primary Property Taxes

10/11 Year's Levy10/11 Year's Levy 22 477 60222,477,602 
Prior Years' Levy 695,184      

B.   Total Secondary Property Taxes 1,832,775   
Total Property Taxes Collected: 25,005,562 

5. Property Tax Rates:
A.   Primary Property Tax Rate: 4.1900        4.1900         

B.   County-wide Secondary Property Tax Rates:
Public Library 0.2000        0.2000         

C.   Fire District Assistance Tax: 0.1000        0.1000         
TOTAL COUNTY-WIDE TAX RATE: 4.4900 4.4900

D.   Special Districts Secondary Property Rates:
Pine SLID 0.8240        0.1351         
East Verde SLID 0.1002        0.1459         
Miami Gardens SLID 0.6219        1.2512         
Apache Hills SLID 2.2996        3.0034         
Upper Glendale SLID 0.8183        0.6810         
Mi y/C ra ts Ddland Cit ent l Hg  SLI 0.4757        0.6072         
Clay Dpool SLI 0.7658        0.7711         





ARF-667     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- A     
Special BOS Meeting
Date: 07/20/2011  
Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director
Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Finance Department
Department: Public Works Division Division: Roads

Fiscal Year: FY 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

8-23-2011 to 1-22-2012 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name: Steve Stratton 

Information
Request/Subject
Request to advertise Invitation for Bids No. 061311-1 for MC-800TR Chip Seal Oil.

Background Information
The current contract for MC-800TR chip seal oil for road repair and maintenance expires August 22,
2011. 

Evaluation
The Consolidated Roads Department requires MC-800TR chip seal oil in order to maintain roads in Gila
County.  The request to advertise will allow the roads department the ability to contract a supplier to
provide the MC-800TR chip seal oil.

Conclusion
Invitation for Bids No. 061311-1 will allow suppliers the opportunity to provide the County with a
proposal in order to supply MC-800TR chip seal oil for road maintenance and repair.

Recommendation
The Public Works Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the request to advertise
for Invitation for Bids No. 061311-1 for MC-800TR chip seal oil.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of Invitation for Bids No. 061311-1
for MC-800TR chip seal oil for Gila County repair and maintenance.  (Steve Stratton)

Attachments
Link: Request to Advertise
Link: Invitation for Bids 061311-1

































































ARF-681     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- B     
Special BOS Meeting
Date: 07/20/2011  
Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, CAP/Housing Services Manager
Submitted By: Cecilia Bejarano, Community Services Division
Department: Community Services Division
Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.

Fiscal Year: July 1, 2011 - June 30, 2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

July 1, 2011 - June 30, 2012 

Grant?: Yes
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Malissa Buzan 

Information
Request/Subject
Independent Contractor Agreement (2011-2012 Utility Assistance Programs) Contract No. 07012011-12 with
Arizona Community Action Association.

Background Information
This is a new contract between Arizona Community Action Association (ACAA) and Gila County Community Action
Program (CAP).  ACAA is a nonprofit organization that, as part of its mission to promote economic self sufficiency
for low-income Arizonans, administers energy program funding to provide weatherization services, utility deposit,
repair and replacement work, and bill assistance.  ACAA is receiving or expects to receive during the term of this
Agreement funding from the fund sources listed in Section 1, pursuant to Program Documents.  ACAA desires to
subcontract with Contractor to obtain assistance with fulfilling ACAA's obligations under the Program Documents
and Contractor desires to receive the funding described herein and use it to provide services in accordance with the
Program Documents and this Agreement.  

Eligibility requirements for assistance are as follows: must reside in Gila County and income must be at 200% of
the Federal Poverty Income Guidelines.  APS Crisis Bill Program allows income to be between 150% and at or
below 200% of the current federal poverty guidelines based on household income for the most recent 30 days
including the date of application.

The following summary shows a breakdown of programs and fund source, amount of funding allocated for each
program and allowable activities:

1. The Home Energy Assistance Fund General Bill Assistance Program: 

 direct service amount: $2,464.15,
 program delivery: $246.42
 total allocation: $2,710.57
 allowable activities: utility assistance, utility deposit.

2. Home Energy Assistance Fund-Allocation for Native Americans Living on the Reservation: 

direct service: $5,633.80
program delivery: $563.38
total allocation: $6,197.18
allowable activities: utility assistance, utility deposit for Native Americans living on the reservation 

3. Southwest Gas Bill Assistance Program 

direct service: $6,325.08
program delivery: 0
total allocation: $6,325.08
allowable activities: utility assistance for Southwest Gas customers

4. SRP Bill Assistance Program: 

direct service: $4000
program delivery: $400
total allocation: $4,400
allowable activities: utility assistance, utility deposit for Salt River Project customers

5. Utility Repair Replacement and Deposit: 

direct service: $27,720.37



program delivery: $2,217.63
total allocation: $29,938.00
allowable activities: utility/appliance repair or replacement, utility deposit

6. APS Crisis Bill Assistance Program 

direct service: $60,000.00
program delivery: $6,000.00
total allocations: $66,000.00
allowable activities: utility assistance for APS customers.

Total contract amount is $115,570.83

Evaluation
By the Gila County Board of Supervisors approving Contract No. 07012011-12 the Gila County Community Action
Program will provide to eligible citizens residing in Gila County weatherization work, utility deposits, repair and
replacement work and bill assistance.

Conclusion
It is important for the Board of Supervisors to approve Contract No. 07012011-12 so that the Community Action
Program can continue to provide services listed in background information to eligible citizens of Gila County.

Recommendation
The Community Action/Housing Services Manager recommends the Board of Supervisors approve this contract.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Contract No. 07012011-12 between the Arizona Community Action
Association and the Gila County Division of Community Services, Community Action Program, whereby Arizona
Community Action Association will provide funding in the amount of $115,570.83 to provide utility deposits, repair
and replacement work and bill assistance to eligible citizens residing in Gila County for the period from July 1,
2011, through June 30, 2012.  (Malissa Buzan)

Attachments
Link: ACAA ICA 07011022-12







































































































ARF-686     Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- C     
Special BOS Meeting
Date: 07/20/2011  
Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, CAP/Housing Services Manager
Submitted By: Christine Lopez, Community Services Division
Department: Community Services Division
Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.

Fiscal Year: 2011 - 2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

05/01/2011 through 04/30/2012 

Grant?: Yes
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: New

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Contract No. SRPWX05012011 with Arizona Community Action Association

Background Information
This is a new contract between Arizona Community Action Association and the Gila County Community
Action/Housing Services in the amount of $20,705.71 to provide Salt River Project Weatherization Assistance to
qualified low income Gila County residents. 

The purpose of this contract is to provide Weatherization Assistance measures to residents who are customers of
Salt River Project.  The measures include health and safety repairs, general repairs, and repair/replacement as long
as they are required to perform the weatherization.

Eligibility includes:
 - household maximum income must be at or below 200% of the Federal Poverty Income Guidelines
 - must own the property
 - Rental Properties are eligible provided that the renters provide the Contractor with the property owner's written
permission for 
   the property to receive Weatherization Services

The contract term is May 1, 2011, through April 30, 2012.

Evaluation
By the Gila County Board of Supervisors approving the Contract No.  SRPWX05012011, the Community
Action/Housing Services will be able to provide weatherization assistance to eligible low income residents who are
customers of Salt River Project. 

Conclusion
It is important that the Gila County Board of Supervisors approve Contract No. SRPWX05012011 to provide
Weatherization  Assistance Program funding to the Gila County Community Action/Housing Services Department.   

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Action/Housing Program Manager recommends that the Gila County Board of
Supervisors approve Contract No. SRPWX05012011.

Suggested Motion
Information/Discussion/Action to approve Contract No. SRPWX05012011 Agreement between Arizona Community
Action Association and Gila County Community Action Housing Services Department in the amount of $20,705.71
to provide weatherization assistance for the period of May 1, 2011, through April 30, 2012.  (Malissa Buzan)

Attachments
Link: C:\Documents and Settings\clopez\Desktop\ACAA SRPWX05012011.pdf































ARF-684     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- A     
Special BOS Meeting
Date: 07/20/2011  
Submitted For: Paula Horn, Deputy Director of Prevention Services
Submitted By: Paula Horn, Health & Emergency Services Division
Department: Health & Emergency Services Division
Division: Prevention Services

Fiscal Year: 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

07/01/11 through 6/30/2012 

Grant?: Yes
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. ADHS11-007055 with Arizona Department of Health Services.

Background Information
The Gila County Health Start Program has been providing service to the Globe/Miami area for over 11 years.  The
mission of the Health Start Program is to educate, support, and advocate for families at risk by promoting optimal
use of community based family health and education services through the use of community health workers, who
live in, and reflect the ethnic, cultural and socioeconomic characteristics of the community they serve. The services
are delivered through prenatal and family follow-up visits to enrolled clients and families, and prescheduled classes.

Evaluation
This funding will allow Gila County to continue to provide Health Start program services to eligible clients residing
within the Globe/Miami area.  The goals of the program are to increase prenatal care services to pregnant women,
reduce the incidence of low birth weight infants, reduce the incidence of children affected by childhood diseases,
and increase the number of children receiving age appropriate immunizations by age two.  The program also strives
to increase awareness on the importance of good nutrition, on the need for developmental assessments and the
benefits of preventative health care.

Conclusion
Without this funding Gila County would be unable to provide Health Start program services to the Globe/Miami
area.

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Deputy Director of Prevention Services that the Board of Supervisors
approve Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. ADHS11-007055 with the Arizona Department of Health Services in the
amount of $53,753 to provide Health Start program services for the period of July 1, 2011, through June 30. 2012.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. ADHS11-007055 between the Gila County Health & Emergency
Services Division, Prevention Services, and the Arizona Department of Health Services in the amount of $53,753 to
provide Health Start services for the period of July 1, 2011, through June 30, 2012.

Attachments
Link: Original Health Start Contract
Link: Health Start Renewal 2012





























































































































ARF-685     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- B     
Special BOS Meeting
Date: 07/20/2011  
Submitted For: Paula Horn, Deputy Director of Prevention Services
Submitted By: Paula Horn, Health & Emergency Services Division
Department: Health & Emergency Services Division
Division: Prevention Services

Fiscal Year: 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2012 

Grant?: Yes
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
First Things First Contract Renewal Amendment Notification No. FTF-RC004-10-0129-01-Y3 with First Things First.

Background Information
The Gila County Office of Health has provided the Early Childhood Screening Program for three years.  The goal of
the program is to screen Gila County children from birth to age five, identify delays and refer to appropriate agency
or physician to begin early intervention services.  The program provides free hearing, vision and developmental
screenings.

Evaluation
The funding will allow the Gila County Office of Health the ability to continue to provide the Early Childhood
Screening Program.  The Gila County Office of Health provides developmental screening to children from birth to
age five years of age.  We provide a developmental assessment and social-emotional assessment using the Ages and
Stages Questionnaire screening tool.  Vision screenings are provided using a questionnaire, LEA Symbol Chart for
near and far sightedness, and the Lang Stereopsis test. Hearing screenings are provided using the AuDx OAE
Hearing Screening System.   Parents are informed of the results of the screenings and referrals are completed as
necessary.  Parents are provided with age appropriate activities for their child, and given ideas to encourage
developmental growth.  Copies of the screens and results are forwarded to the child's primary care physician with
the authorization of the parents.

The goal of the program is to reach the rural populations which have limited services available to them.  The
screenings are provided in multiple settings including but not limited to:  community health fairs, schools,
preschools, daycares, community or social service agencies and clinics throughout Gila County.  The screening
services are mobile and the screenings can be taken directly to the participants/agencies requesting the services.

Conclusion
Without this funding Gila County would be unable to provide early childhood screenings to identify delays that
need to be addressed.

Screening young children is an effective, efficient way to catch problems and start treatment when it does the most
good - during the crucial early years when the child's brain and body are developing typically, most children who
benefit from early intervention are not identified until after they start school.

Developmental delays, learning disorders, and behavioral and social-emotional problems are estimated to affect 1
in every 6 children. (Dunkle, M. (fall2004).  High Quality Developmental Screening.  Developmental & Behavioral
News, 13(2).  Retrieved December 16, 2005, from http://www.dbpeds.org/articles/details.cfm/id=373)

Recommendation
It is the recommendation of the Deputy Director of Prevention Services to approve the First Things First Contract
Renewal Amendment Notification No. FTF-RC004-10-0129-01Y3 between First Things First and Gila County in the
amount of $56,650 for the period of July 1, 2011, through June 30, 2012.

Suggested Motion
Approval of First Things First Contract Renewal Amendment Notification No. FTF-RC004-10-0129-01Y3 between
First Things First and Gila County in the amount of $56,650 to extend the Gila County Early Childhood Screening
Program for the period of July 1, 2011, through June 30, 2012.

Attachments
Link: Original Contract

http://www.dbpeds.org/articles/details.cfm/id=373


Link: Original Contract
Link: FTF Renewal 2012



































ARF-675     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- C     
Special BOS Meeting
Date: 07/20/2011  
Submitted For: Linda O'Dell, School

Superintendent
Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Finance Department

Department: School Superintendent's Office

Fiscal Year: FY 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

5-30-11 to 5-29-12 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Interstate Copy Shop Maintenance Agreement for Konica 7130 Copier for School Superintendent's Office

Background Information
The School Superintendent's Office currently has a Konica 7130 copier. SR#26XE12054.  The maintenance
agreement for the copier expired May 30, 2011.

Evaluation
The maintenance agreement for the Konica 7130 copier will cover parts, labor and a drum, if needed.  The cost of
the yearly maintenance agreement is $620.  If the copier exceeds 72,000 copies there will be an excess copy charge
of $0.0085 per copy.

Conclusion
The maintenance agreement will be in effect for a 12 month period from 5-30-11, to 5-29-12, for the Konica 7130
copier.

Recommendation
The School Superintendent recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the agreement with Interstate Copy
Shop for maintenance of the Konica 7130 for one year.

Suggested Motion
Authorization of the Chairman's signature on the Maintenance Agreement between Gila County and Interstate
Copy Shop for maintenance of the School Superintendent's Office Konica 7130 copier in the amount of $620 per
year for the period May 30, 2011, through May 29, 2012.

Attachments
Link: Maintenance Agreement Konica 7130
Link: Maintenance Terms & Conditions











ARF-668     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- D     
Special BOS Meeting
Date: 07/20/2011  
Submitted For: Robert Hickman,

Facilities Manager
Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Finance Department

Department: Public Works Division Division: Facilities

Fiscal Year: FY 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

8-1-2011 to 9-30-11 

Grant?: No
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 1 to Pinal/Gila Long Term Care Lease Agreement with Pinal County.

Background Information
Effective August 1, 2009, Gila and Pinal Counties entered into a Professional Lease Agreement whereby
Pinal County agreed to lease the property at 1177 Monroe Street, Globe.  The term of the lease is for two
years with the option to renew for one additional 2-year term.

Evaluation
Gila County received a memorandum from Pinal County stating that the component contract
between Pinal County and Arizona Health Care Cost Containment System (AHCCCS) will terminate
effective September 30, 2011.  

Amendment No. 1 extends the lease agreement for two months from August 1, 2011, to September 30,
2011.  At the end of the term Pinal County shall have all items removed from premises.  Gila County
will have all utilities changed over effective October 1, 2011.

Conclusion
The amendment will allow Pinal County to lease the Pinal/Gila Long Term Care site until September 30,
2011, at which time the lease agreement will terminate.

Recommendation
The Public Works Director recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve Amendment No. 1 to the
Lease Agreement with Pinal County whereby Pinal leases the property at 1177 Monroe St., Globe.

Suggested Motion
Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Amendment No. 1 to a Lease Agreement between Gila
County "Lessor" and Pinal County "Lessee" to extend the lease term from July 31, 2011, to September
30, 2011, for Pinal/Gila Long Term Care's office space with said lease to terminate at the end of this
term.

Attachments
Link: Lease Termination Notice
Link: Amendment No. 1 Pinal/Gila Long Term Care Lease
Link: Original Pinal/Gila Lease Agreement

























ARF-678     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- E     
Special BOS Meeting
Date: 07/20/2011  
Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, CAP/Housing Services Manager
Submitted By: Cecilia Bejarano, Community Services Division
Department: Community Services Division
Division: Comm. Action Program/Housing Servs.

Fiscal Year: 2011-2012 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

July 1, 2011 - June 30, 2012 

Grant?: Yes
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. 0010-0444 with Pinal-Gila Council for Senior Citizens Area Agency on Aging,
Region V

Background Information
This program helps persons that meet the eligibility requirements which are as follows: Gila County residents who
are persons aged sixty (60) and over or those under age sixty (60) who have a disability.  Priority will be given to
those who have no other resources to provide the repair/renovations for themselves.  Services provided by this
amendment shall consist of minor home repairs to ten (10) units.

Original contract No. 0010-0444 Pinal Gila Council for Senior Citizens was signed July 28, 2009, by Chairman
Shirley L. Dawson.

Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 0010-0444 Pinal Council for Senior Citizens was signed June 30, 2010, by
Chairman Michael A. Pastor.

Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. 0010-0444 Pinal Council for Senior Citizens was signed April 19, 2011, by
Chairman Michael A. Pastor.

Evaluation
It is important for the Gila County Board of Supervisors to approve Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. 0010-0444 as
it allocates funds in the amount of $6,477 to provide minor home repair to eligible citizens residing in Gila County.

Conclusion
By the Board of Supervisors approving Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. 0010-0444, the Gila County Community
Action/Housing Department will be able to continue to provide minor home repair services to eligible citizens of Gila
County.

Recommendation
The Gila County Community Action, Housing Services Manager recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve
this contract amendment.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. 0010-0444, between the Pinal Gila Council for Senior Citizens Area
Agency on Aging, Region V, and the Gila County Division of Community Services, Community Action Program,
Housing Services, to allocate funds in the amount of $6,477, which will be used to help residents who meet
program qualifications with minor home repairs for the period July 1, 2011, through June 30, 2012.

Attachments
Link: Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. 0010-0444 Pinal Gila Council for Senior Citizens
Link: Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. 0010-0444 Pinal Gila Council for Senior Citizens
Link: Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 0010-0444 Pinal Gila Council for Senior Citizens
Link: Original Contract No. 0010-0444 Pinal Gila Council for Senior Citizens



















































































































































































































































































































































































































ARF-682     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- F     
Special BOS Meeting
Date: 07/20/2011  
Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director
Submitted By: Diana Jones, Public Works Division
Department: Public Works Division Division: Administration

Fiscal Year: 2009-2010 Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates
Begin & End:

4/1/2011-9/30/2011 

Grant?: Yes
Matching
Requirement?:

No Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name: Steve Stratton 

Information
Request/Subject
IGA with Town of Star Valley & Transit Agreement with Horizon Human Services Gila County Safe Home

Background Information
During the Board of Supervisors' January 18, 2011, meeting, the Board recommended the distribution
of funds from the LTAF (Local Area Transportation Funds) II account.

Evaluation
Attached is an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) and a Transit Agreement for the distribution of LTAF
II funds as recommended by the Board of Supervisors.  The IGA is with the Town of Star Valley and the
Transit Agreement is with the Horizon Human Services Gila County Safe Home.

Conclusion
The distribution of these funds is necessary to keep within the LTAF II program guidelines. 

The IGA and the Transit Agreement will be effective from the date of the Chairman's signature,
which will be July 20, 2011.

Recommendation
The Gila County Public Works Division recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the
attached IGA and Transit Agreement for the distribution of LTAF II funds.

Suggested Motion
Authorization of the Chairman's signature on an Intergovernmental Agreement between Gila County
and the Town of Star Valley in the amount of $5,233.43 and a Transit Agreement between Gila County
and the Horizon Human Services Gila County Safe Home in the amount of $2,500 for the distribution of
LTAF II (Local Area Transportation Funds).

Attachments
Link: IGA with Town of Star Valley
Link: Transit Agreement with Horizon Human Services-GC Safe Home























ARF-690     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- G     
Special BOS Meeting
Date: 07/20/2011  
Submitted For: Linda Eastlick,

Elections Director
Submitted By: David Rogers, Elections Department

Department: Elections Department
Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Beaver Valley Fire District Governing Board resignation and appointment

Background Information
ARS 48-803(B) provides that if a vacancy occurs on the district board other than from expiration of a
term, the remaining board members shall fill the vacancy by appointment of an interim member.

Evaluation
At the Beaver Valley Fire District Governing Board meeting of April 9, 2011, the Governing Board
accepted the resignation of Harold Plues effective April 1, 2011, and agreed that Jack Ned Jolly be
appointed to complete Mr. Plues's term of office which expires November 30, 2014. 

Conclusion
Mr. Jolly has agreed to serve out the term of Mr. Plues.

Recommendation
The Elections Department recommends that the Board of Supervisors acknowledge the resignation
of Harold Plues and the appointment of Jack Ned Jolly as the new Governing Board member for
the Beaver Valley Fire District.

Suggested Motion
Acknowledgment of the resignation of Mr. Harold Plues from the Beaver Valley Fire District Governing
Board and the appointment of Mr. Jack Ned Jolly to complete the term of Mr. Plues, which
expires November 30, 2014. 

Attachments
Link: ARS 48-803
Link: Beaver Valley FD Mtg Minutes-Oath



48-803.  
A.  In a distr ict that the board of supervisors estimates has a population of fewer than four thousand 

inhabitants, the distr ict board may consist of three or  five members.  In a distr ict that the board of 
supervisors estimates has a population of four  thousand or  more inhabitants, the distr ict board shall consist 
of five members, and for  a noncontiguous county island fire distr ict formed pursuant to section 48-851, the 
board shall consist of five members.  The estimate of population by the board of supervisors is conclusive 
and shall be based on available census information, school attendance statistics, election or voter registration 
statistics, estimates provided by state agencies or  the county assessor , or  other  information as deemed 
appropr iate by the board of supervisors.  I f the board of supervisors determines, at any time pr ior  to one 
hundred twenty days before the next regular  scheduled election for  members of a distr ict board, that the 
population of a fire distr ict administered by a distr ict board consisting of three members exceeds four  
thousand inhabitants, estimated as provided in this section, the board of supervisors shall order  an increase 
in the number  of members of the distr ict board.  I f the board of supervisors determines at any time pr ior  to 
one hundred eighty days before the next regular ly scheduled election for  members of a distr ict board that 
the population of a fire distr ict administered by a distr ict board that consists of five members exceeds fifty 
thousand inhabitants as prescr ibed in this section, the board of supervisors shall inform the distr ict board 
that it may expand to seven members.  Any expansion to seven members shall occur  by major ity vote of the 
distr ict board.  The increase is effective for  the election of the additional members at the next regular  
election of members of the distr ict board. 

Distr ict administered by a distr ict board 

B.  I f a vacancy occurs on the distr ict board other  than from expiration of a term, the remaining 
board members shall fill the vacancy by appointment of an inter im member .  I f the entire board resigns or  
for  any reason cannot fulfill its duties, the board of supervisors shall appoint an administrator to administer  
the distr ict with the same duties and obligations of the elected board.  I f the board of supervisors fails to 
appoint an administrator  within thir ty days, a special election shall be held to fill the vacancies on the fire 
distr ict board. 

C.  Members of the distr ict board shall serve without compensation, but may be reimbursed for  
actual expenses incurred in per forming duties required by law. 

D.  The board of a fire distr ict shall appoint or  hire a fire chief. 
E.  The distr ict board shall elect from its members a chairman and a clerk. 
F.  Of the members first elected to distr ict boards consisting of three members, the two people 

receiving the first and second highest number  of votes shall be elected to four -year  terms, and the person 
receiving the third highest number  of votes shall be elected to a two-year  term.  Of the members first elected 
to distr ict boards consisting of five members, the three people receiving the first, second and third highest 
number  of votes shall be elected to four -year  terms, and the two people receiving the fourth and fifth highest 
number  of votes shall be elected to two-year  terms.  Thereafter , the term of office of each distr ict board 
member  shall be four  years from the first day of the month next following such member 's election.  Of the 
members elected as additional members to a five member  distr ict board, the person with the highest number 
of votes is elected to a four -year  term and the person with the second highest number  of votes is elected to a 
two-year  term.  I f a distr ict resolves to increase the governing board to seven members pursuant to 
subsection A, the governing board may appoint two additional members to serve until the next general 
election.  After  the general election at which the two additional members are elected, the newly elected 
member  with the highest number  of votes serves a four -year  term and the other  member  serves a two-year  
term.  Thereafter , the term of office for  these two new members is four  years.  
 













ARF-586     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- H     
Special BOS Meeting
Date: 07/20/2011  
Submitted For: Sadie Dalton,

Recorder
Submitted By: Sadie Dalton, Recorder's Office

Department: Recorder's Office
Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Support and Maintenance Agreement with HOV Services/LASON Systems Inc.

Background Information
The microfilm reader was previously used by the public library; however, the public library did
not have the space for housing the microfilm reader, so a request was made of the Recorder's
Office to house the reader for use by County Staff and the public. The general public as well
as the staff of local libraries use the machine on a regular basis.

Evaluation
The microfilm reader is an important piece of equipment because it is used by County staff
and members of the public.

Conclusion
By entering into this Support and Maintenance Agreement with HOV
Services/LASON Systems, Inc., it will ensure that the microfilm reader is in good working
order.

Recommendation
The Recorder's Office recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve this Support and
Maintenance Agreement.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Support and Maintenance Agreement No. 31325CONSVR between the Gila
County Recorder and HOV Services/LASON Systems, Inc. in the amount of $995 per year for
support and maintenance on a Minolta microfilm reader for the period July 21, 2011, through
July 19, 2012.

Attachments
Link: Support & Maintenance Agreement with HOV Services-Lason Systems 









ARF-669     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- I     
Special BOS Meeting
Date: 07/20/2011  
Submitted For: Janet Cline Submitted By: Linda Rodriguez, County Manager
Department: County Manager
Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Request for Waiver of Fees by the Gila County Fair Committee for the Fairgrounds Exhibit
Hall/Commercial Hall, etc. on August 27, 2011, and September 17-25, 2011.

Background Information
The Gila County Fair has, for many years, provided the community of Gila County a yearly
fair for families to participate in various 4-H programs, and to enjoy and learn from the
variety of activities available at the fair.  

The fair also allows the youth involved in 4-H programs to carry on family traditions
of participating in 4-H program and allows them to show their year long projects; it is a place
where local businesses can come display and advertise their products and/or businesses,
and the fair also brings business to our community.  

The Gila County Fair Committee will be hosting a Ranger Party Fund Raiser dinner, dance,
and chance to win a Polaris Ranger on August 27, 2011, and the Gila County Fair has been
scheduled from September 17 through September 25, 2011.

Evaluation
The use of the Fairgrounds facilities will give the Gila County Fair Committee an opportunity
to raise funds to continue to improve and hold their annual fair. 

The Fair provides the youth of the community to emerge as leaders through hands-on
learning and adult mentorship and it also provides a place for families to meet and experience
the hospitality that Gila County offers.

Conclusion
The waiver of fees would greatly assist the Gila County Fair financially.

Recommendation
The recommendation of staff is to approve the waiver of fees for the use of the Fairgrounds
Exhibit Hall/Commercial Hall and other areas for the Gila County Fair Committee events.

Suggested Motion
Approval of request for waiver of fees by the Gila County Fair Committee for the use of the
Fairgrounds Exhibit Hall/Commercial Hall and other areas for the Ranger Party Fund Raiser
dinner/dance on August 27, 2011, and the Gila County Fair on September 17 through
September 25, 2011.

Attachments
Link: Fair Committee Application
Link: Fair Committee Letter













ARF-554     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- J     
Special BOS Meeting
Date: 07/20/2011  
Submitted For: Gila County

Sheriff's
Reserve Posse

Submitted By: Linda Rodriguez, County Manager

Department: County Manager
Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Request for Waiver of Fees by Sheriff's Reserve Posse to use Exhibit Hall for Sweetheart
Dance/Dinner on February 11, 2012.

Background Information
The Gila County Sheriff's Posse (Globe) was formed in the1960s to serve the Sheriff’s Office
and the people of Gila County in providing additional manpower in support of the Gila County
Sheriff's Office. The Gila County Sheriff’s Posse (SRP) is a non-profit 501(c) (3) organization
and donations are tax deductible. 

Currently there are 15 members of the SRP in Globe supporting and assisting the Sheriff’s
Office in many areas of law enforcement, including crime scene protection, help on high
profile trials within the County, transporting prisoners, traffic control, and also provide
assistance in road closures within the National Forest in times of wild land fires. They patrol
operations to the more remote areas of the county by utilizing fully marked patrol vehicles in
Cherry Creek, Hayden/Winkelman/Dripping Springs, Roosevelt and the Pinal Mountains.

Members of the SRP provide their own equipment and uniforms which are purchased with
money raised through fundraisers throughout the year and the annual Gila County Sheriff’s
Reserve Posse “Sweetheart Dance.”
Through the dedication of the Sheriff’s Reserve Posse members, they have saved and continue
to save the tax payers of Gila County thousands of dollars each year by volunteering their
services to the Sheriff and the community.

Evaluation
The use of the Fairground’s facility will give the Gila County Sheriff’s Posse a place to have
their Sweetheart Dance in order to raise funds for SRP volunteer uniforms and provide other
needed expenses.

Conclusion
This waiver of fees would greatly assist the Gila County Sheriff’s Reserve Posse in raising
funds.

Recommendation
The recommendation of staff is to approve the waiver of fees for the use of the Fairgrounds’
Exhibit Hall for their Sweetheart Dance.

Suggested Motion
Approval of request for waiver of fees by the Sheriff's Reserve Posse for the use of the
Fairgrounds’ Exhibit Hall for its Sweetheart Dance to be held on February 11, 2012.



Attachments
Link: SRP FG Application
Link: SRP Letter requesting waiver









ARF-556     Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- K     
Special BOS Meeting
Date: 07/20/2011  
Submitted For: Ellen Kretsch Submitted By: Linda Rodriguez, County Manager
Department: County Manager
Presenter's Name:

Information
Request/Subject
Request for Waiver of Fees by Cobre Valley Regional Medical Center Foundation for the Gila
County Fairgrounds Exhibit Hall on November 3, 2011.

Background Information
The Cobre Valley Regional Medical Center Foundation is a group of community-minded
citizens who work to help supplement the programs and equipment offered through the
hospital. They will be holding an art and wine auction event. There is no conflict with the
date, security will be provided, and the insurance certificate will be provided prior to the event.

Evaluation
The Fairground's Exhibit Hall is the most viable location for the art and wine fundraiser and it
is their hope that the County can partner with the Foundation by reducing or waiving the
rental fee.

There is no conflict with the date and the insurance certificate is pending.

Conclusion
The Cobre Valley Regional Medical Center Foundation is a vital and integral part of the
community and deserves the County's support

Recommendation
It is the staff's recommendation that the county support the Cobre Valley Regional Medical
Center Foundation in its efforts to raise funds to supplement programs and equipment offered
through the Cobre Valley Community Hospital.

Suggested Motion
Approval of request for waiver of fees by the Cobre Valley Regional Medical Center Foundation
for the use of the Fairgrounds Exhibit Hall for their art and wine auction event scheduled on
Thursday, November 3, 2011.

Attachments
Link: CV Reg Med Center Foundation Application
Link: CVMC letter











ARF-699     Item #:  5- L     
Special BOS Meeting
Date: 07/20/2011  

Reporting Period: October 12, 2010, October 26, 2010, November 11, 2010, and November 30, 2010,
BOS Meeting Minutes

Submitted For: Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk, BOS
Submitted By: Marilyn Brewer, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Information
Subject
October 12, 2010, October 26, 2010, November 11, 2010, and November 30, 2010, BOS Meeting Minutes

Suggested Motion
Approval of the October 12, 2010, October 26, 2010, November 11, 2010, and November 30, 2010, BOS meeting
minutes.

Attachments
Link: BOS 10-12-10 Meeting Minutes
Link: BOS 10-26-10 Meeting Minutes
Link: BOS 11-16-10 Meeting Minutes
Link: BOS 11-30-11 Meeting Minutes



1 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  October 12, 2010 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR      JOHN F. NELSON 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN      By: Marilyn Brewer 
Vice-Chairman             Deputy Clerk 
 
SHIRLEY L. DAWSON      Gila County Courthouse 
Member        Globe, Arizona 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman; 
Shirley L. Dawson, Supervisor; Don McDaniel, Jr., County Manager; John 
Nelson, Deputy County Manager; and Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk.  
Bryan Chambers, Chief Deputy County Attorney, was out on bereavement 
leave, so an attorney from the County Attorney’s Office was not present. 
 
Item 1 – Call to Order – Pledge of Allegiance 
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a work session at 10:00 a.m. this 
date in the Board of Supervisors hearing room.  John Nelson led the Pledge of 
Allegiance. 
 
Item 2 - Information/Discussion regarding the compilation by the County 
Supervisors Association (CSA) of the various legislative proposals 
submitted by all Arizona counties for the 5th Annual Legislative summit 
in November.  The purpose of the Summit is to adopt a Legislative Agenda 
to be pursued by CSA on behalf of the counties at the First Regular 
Session of the 50th Legislature.   
 
John Nelson, Deputy County Manager, advised that the County Supervisors 
Association (CSA) Legislative summit will be held on November 8-10, 2010, and 
he urged all Board members to attend as the upcoming State legislative session 
will be very critical in trying to protect the County’s taxpayers from cost shifts 
from the State.  He advised that this session is going to be all about defense.  
He passed out the latest report entitled the “Arizona Joint Legislative Budget 
Committee (JLBC) Revenue and Budget Update” dated September 29, 2010.  
The page entitled “The Road to Recovery Will Still Be Long” reflects that 
335,000 jobs have been lost in Arizona since December 2007; housing 
problems persist and Mr. Nelson noted that this item is showing that 50% of 
Arizona-wide mortgages are “under water.”  He advised the Board not to expect 
a quick turnaround of ‘getting through one year and then things will be fine’ 



2 

because it’s going to be a lot longer than that.  On the second page of the 
report, there is a projection that Arizona’s FY 2011 shortfall could be up to 
$825 million 4 potential problems were cited as follows:  1) potential failure of 
the November ballot propositions totaling $469 million; 2) lower federal 
matching funds in the amount of $158 million; 3) possible revenue shortfall 
with new forecast of $206 million; and 4) $100 million K-12 shortfall, offset 
with federal funds.  The next page was a chart entitled “Structural Gap 
Comparable to Cash Gap Starting in FY 2012,” representing ongoing revenues 
versus ongoing expenditures, about which Mr. Nelson explained that JLBC is 
projecting Arizona structural imbalances for FY 2012 of $1.5 billion, for FY 
2013-$1.3 billion and for FY 2014-$2 billion.  The next report entitled, “6 Major 
Activities Account for 96% of On-Going General Fund Spending,” Mr. Nelson 
stated that one of the huge critical issues is if you look at State spending, this 
report shows that 77% goes toward education and Medicaid, which is 
government protected.  He also added in the cost for prisons, which brings the 
total to 88% of the State budget spent in those 3 areas.  So the State has some 
very significant budget problems with the choice of increasing taxes or shifting 
costs to the counties.  Mr. McDaniel stated that to those who say cut services 
and employees at the State level, the State workers are only 5% of the whole 
budget.  The last page of the report shows “Funding Formula Suspensions for 
FY 2011,” which is a summary of what has been suspended for this year to 
balance the budget.  Those same items will likely have to be suspended again 
for the next 3-5 years in order to balance the budget.  Upon inquiry by 
Supervisor Dawson as to the funds that were raised by selling off State 
buildings, Mr. Nelson replied, “That was one-time income to the State to offset 
a lot of previous budget deficit.”  Mr. Nelson then compared the State costs to 
Gila County’s costs showing that Gila County has a similar problem because 
70% of Gila County’s spending is for judicial services, courts, law enforcement 
and Medicaid—Arizona Health Care Cost Containment System (AHCCCS) and 
Arizona Long Term Care System (ALTCS).  He noted that if the State again 
shifts costs to the counties, it will primarily occur in 2 areas—judicial services 
and law enforcement.  He again emphasized that at the upcoming legislative 
session it will be about defense only and how to protect County taxpayers from 
that shift in costs.  Another item Mr. Nelson provided to the Board was CSA’s 
Policy Development Workgroup Recommendations.  He noted that on page 2, 
CSA is recommending for this year’s legislative summit that all proposals by 
counties either get a vote up or down—it either remains on the agenda or is 
removed.  Mr. Nelson stated that he did not particularly agree with that 
position because if the counties are playing defense, they can’t be out lobbying 
for 21 different proposals.  Vice-Chairman Martin stated that what worries her 
about county legislative proposals is that not only do the counties need to play 
defense, but they should not keep their eye on 20 proposals that are not 
important and take their eye off the one proposal that is important.  Vice-
Chairman Martin stated that she would be for voting down any proposal that 
wasn’t absolutely necessary this year.  She also believes the State will again try 
to shift costs to the counties in regard to the prisons.  She is also concerned 



3 

about these “fancy” school buildings being built, but wonders if the children 
are actually being educated.  Vice-Chairman Martin stated that she had 
requested that Mr. Nelson provide her with information on voter-passed 
resolutions from 2000 through 2008.  That information shows there have been 
63 citizen-driven resolutions passed in the State.  Of those 63 listed, 34 have 
absolutely increased both government and government spending and 22 of 
those were passed by the voters.  So for the counties and State to cut back on 
government and government spending, the part that can’t be cut back are 
those resolutions passed by the voters in the last 8-10 years.  Supervisor 
Dawson stated that one of the things she is frustrated with and would like CSA 
to review is that when the governor invited all the supervisors to a meeting, “it 
was a farce; it was a publicity meeting.  It wasn’t ‘let’s get things done.’  And 
the plan with the prisoners is still there.”  Chairman Pastor inquired if the 
committee formed by the State to review the prison problem had met yet.  
Supervisor Dawson replied that Craig Sullivan, CSA Executive Director, stated 
he would notify the supervisors once a meeting was set; however, there has 
never been a meeting of that committee.  Mr. Nelson and the Board then 
reviewed the following 21 issues and proposals for consideration at the CSA 
legislative summit with Mr. Nelson providing his recommendations and the 
basis for same:   
1)  Budget—Protect county budgets by opposing State cost and programmatic 
shifts to the county level including State shared revenues, juvenile corrections 
shift, adult prisoner shifts and ALTCS/Acute care cost shifts.  Mr. Nelson 
reiterated that the number 1 priority on Gila County’s list is budget protection 
for the counties.  He stated that “State shared revenues” needs to be purged 
from everyone’s vocabulary because there are no State shared revenues, but 
instead we have State funding of State mandates.  He explained that the 
property taxes go into the State general fund and what the counties get from 
the State for shared revenues is State-shared sales tax, which this year will 
amount to $4.2 million.  Then the State mandates that counties support its 
Medicaid program at a cost of $3.5 million, which is 83% of the State’s shared 
revenues.  In looking at Arizona State departments and the budgets of those 
departments for State employees, not county employees, those departments 
received $5.5 million in direct costs, 131% of the State shared revenues.  So 
the State mandates to the counties in those 2 areas alone are $9 million in 
costs and then the State claims that it shares revenue to the tune of $4 million.  
Mr. Nelson stated that at the last CSA meeting, Speaker of the House Adams 
talked about all the State shared revenues that the State can no longer afford.  
Mr. Nelson reiterated that it’s not shared revenues; it’s funding State 
mandates, so words do matter.  He also noted that 25 years ago the taxpayers 
passed a State lottery and the funds were to go to education, the Heritage Fund 
and to assist rural counties with their property tax burdens.  For several years 
the County received its lottery revenue, but somehow since this was supposed 
to assist counties with their property tax burden, it has now been changed to a 
county assistance fund.  This year the Legislature decided it could no longer 
assist counties, so what the voters voted in 25 years ago has now been undone 



4 

by the Legislature.  Mr. Nelson concluded this item by stating, “I think those 
words matter and somehow we have to start structuring it as ‘you are not just 
sharing revenues with us; you are funding what you have mandated and if 
you’re going to take those revenues, take some mandates too.’” Mr. Nelson 
stated that he plans to bring this up with CSA so the conversation will start 
changing.   
2) Local Authorities—Protect existing county administrative and fiscal 
authorities that grant county governments the ability to appropriately manage 
their administrations and budgets according to their local needs.  Mr. Nelson 
stated that the counties would want to maintain this so that any costs passed 
down from the State to the counties would allow the counties to have budget 
flexibility to take those costs out of any funds, restricted or not restricted.   
3) Retirement—Continue to research and advocate for reform of the Public 
Safety Retirement System to achieve fiscal solvency of the fund and stabilize 
employer contribution rates and including employee contribution caps, modify 
length of service retirement required for new employees and modify or eliminate 
the returns cap of 9% for the fund.  Mr. Nelson stated he believes that the State 
and county retirement funds are structural problems that have really never 
been discussed.  The Public Safety Retirement fund is talked about specifically 
because it’s capped at how much the employees can contribute.  However, in 
looking system-wide at the State Retirement System, Mr. Nelson believes the 
rule of thumb for a retirement system to be adequately funded would be that 
90% of the actuarial costs need to be funded.  The State Retirement System 
currently is funded at 65.46%; the Public Safety Retirement fund is funded at 
68.2%; CORP (Correctional Officers Retirement Plan) for correctional officers is 
funded at 82.6% and the elected officials fund is 71.3% funded.  The entire 
state is severely underfunded in all of the retirement systems and there’s only 2 
ways to get out of that situation--hoping your investments do better or 
increasing the contributions.  Mr. Nelson believes most of the funds will come 
from increasing the contributions and in a long-term financial situation it’s one 
of the areas that need to be reviewed not only in Arizona, but nationwide.  Vice-
Chairman Martin inquired if addressing the employee contribution caps, 
modifying the length of service retirement requirement for new employees and 
modifying or eliminating the return cap of 9% for the fund would solve or 
address those issues.  Mr. Nelson replied that in his opinion, it only addresses 
the symptoms.  The State hasn’t defined a benefit plan, meaning that when you 
come to work, you are guaranteed so much retirement as opposed to a 
purchased retirement plan like a 401K.  He believes the State should go to a 
purchased retirement system and get that liability both for employees and the 
taxpayers off the books.  Right now the State is running a Social-Security type 
program and it’s not working.  Vice-Chairman Martin inquired if that is 
because the State isn’t funding it at the level at which it needs to be funded.  
Mr. Nelson replied that the State Retirement System started with a 7% 
contribution, then it had some tremendous gains in the stock market and the 
funding went down to 2%, but now it’s up to 9%--the employee contributes 9%, 
the County contributes 9% of all wages and it’s still only funded at 65%.  Vice-



5 

Chairman Martin stated to Mr. Nelson that she would like a recommendation 
on this item as she believes words do matter.   
 
Before continuing with the remaining items, the Board discussed remaining 
firm against the State closing juvenile facilities and moving those youth to the 
counties because the counties don’t have the appropriate facilities and 
services.  Also discussed was the State’s move last year to remove funding from 
the developmentally disabled programs.  Dan Adams, a resident of Payson, 
stated that he believes the State is missing a great opportunity to save some 
serious money.   He cited the example of New Mexico’s whole prison system, 
which is similar in size to Arizona’s and only costs 5% of their total general 
revenue, while Arizona’s cost is 11%.  He stated that Gila County should 
request that CSA go to New Mexico and see what they are doing to create this 
savings and duplicate those efforts, which could save Arizona $500 million.   
 
Mr. Nelson continued reviewing the CSA proposals: 
4) Change the credit given to inmates serving time in lieu of paying fines from 
$10 per day to $60.  Mr. Nelson stated that he did not like this proposal as Gila 
County already has a great system in place.  The Gila County Sheriff’s Office, 
Jail Commander, County Attorney and the Superior Courts work very closely 
on early release and making decisions based on who should be released and 
who shouldn’t.  Mr. Nelson stated that putting an arbitrary limit on that, he 
would not support. 
5) Increasing Title 34 construction caps to $250,000 for “horizontal” 
construction by public employees in counties of 175,000 or less.  Mr. Nelson 
stated that he would recommend this proposal, which would increase the 
construction cap of what can be done in-house as opposed to what had to go to 
for bids.  The amount will be increased from $199,125 to $250,000. 
6)  Clarify county authority to spend public money for maintenance of 
“primitive” roads.  Mr. Nelson stated that this is pretty much a non-issue and 
gives the County authority; however, he deferred to Steve Stratton, Public 
Works Division Director.  Mr. Stratton stated that the primitive roads are a 
good tool for the County because it limits liability, but the County currently 
utilizes HURF (Highway User Revenue Funds) monies to maintain them and is 
a non-issue.  Mr. Stratton stated that every time the County takes in a 
primitive road, it adds to the County’s certified mileage so the County receives 
more funds, so he couldn’t see why this should shift the burden to the general 
fund.  Vice-Chairman Martin inquired if the designation as a country dirt road 
took the place of a primitive road.  Mr. Stratton explained that a primitive road 
has to be a road that was built prior to June 13, 1975.  Gila County adopted its 
standards in 2002, so it has a gap from 1975 to 2002 and therefore invented 
the Country Dirt Road policy so those roads could be maintained without 
having to have them come up to a county highway standard.   
7) Increase flood control district construction caps from $5,000 to $190,000 for 
construction projects that are eligible for construction by public employees in 
counties of 175,000 or less.  Mr. Nelson recommended that this proposal be 



6 

supported because it’s good for counties to have a higher cap; however, it 
would be negative to construction companies who are already struggling. 
8) Increase the county processing reimbursement fee built into the fines for 
truck weight violations from $10 to $50.  Mr. Nelson stated that the intent of 
this is to offset HURF revenues that the State has already started withholding 
from counties for the past 2 years.  If the State is going to continue to withhold 
county revenues, then revenue is needed from another source. 
9) Authorize counties to establish and operate shared justice and superior 
court facilities.  Mr. Nelson was unsure how this would affect most counties; 
however, it would not affect Gila County.  He did not foresee Gila County 
building a joint facility with another county.   
10) Exempt county capital investments from existing expenditure limits.  Mr. 
Nelson stated that this would not affect Gila County as it does not have an 
expenditure limitation problem that some counties have.  He also does not 
think there will be much opposition at the Legislature either because the big 
proponent of property tax limitations and expenditure limitations has been 
ATRA (Arizona Tax Research Association), which has now agreed that the 
expenditure limitations that were passed by the voters in June 1980 no longer 
work and probably should be taken off the books.  However, that would need a 
vote of the people to change the Constitution and that will never happen.   
11) Allow counties to require drainage studies and minimum drainage 
standards before approving land divisions and building permits relating to un-
subdivided lands.  Mr. Nelson stated that he believes there will be tremendous 
opposition to this from the real estate community, other county supervisors 
and the Legislature; however, it is something the County needs to explore.  
Chairman Pastor stated this is probably due to the flooding in Coconino 
County and may be something Gila County could possibly be dealing with as 
well.    
12) Remove the requirement that all appointments in the constitutional offices 
be recorded with the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors.  Mr. Nelson stated that 
this appears to be the cleanup of an old statute that no one seems to follow 
anymore so it should go. 
13) Reinstate the counties’ ability to establish and collect license fees for 
itinerant peddlers.  Mr. Nelson stated that the County does have a lot of arts 
and crafts shows for which the County could be charging fees; however, he’s 
not sure the County would collect enough revenue to implement a program to 
collect the fees. It would also be implementing more government regulations.  
Supervisor Dawson stated that with the economy like it is, would the County 
want to encourage more people to go draw welfare or try to sell hand crafts?  
She did not agree with supporting this.  Vice-Chairman Martin added, “And 
then charge them a license fee.”   
14) Permit counties to establish, via a county-wide election, a judicial facilities 
district for capital court projects and maintenance.  Mr. Nelson stated that this 
is a request to set up a judicial facilities district similar to the jail district that 
is already in statute.  He stated, “We’ve been there, done that, and I don’t want 
to go back.”  Mr. Nelson stated that he didn’t see any problem with giving other 



7 

counties the authority to do that, but Gila County would not take advantage of 
it.   
15) Remove the sunset on the Assessor’s property information and storage 
retrieval conversion and maintenance fund to allow for a permanent funding 
stream for the assessors in counties of 750,000 people or fewer.  Mr. Nelson 
stated that currently all documents recorded have a surcharge placed on them, 
which is used by the Assessor to automate and keep that office automated.  
Gila County certainly does not have enough general fund money to subsidize 
the Assessor in that effort, so he believes it should be done by a surcharge and 
recommended keeping that one ongoing.   
16) Reinstate the minimum number of civil cases constables must serve in 
order to be eligible to receive a minimum salary.  Mr. Nelson stated that this is 
not a problem in Gila County; however, this is a major problem for one county 
in particular.  He recommended supporting this. 
17) Amend flood control district statutes to include bridges as eligible flood 
control structures for use of district funds.  Mr. Nelson stated that Gila County 
does not have a flood control tax like most other counties, so it does not have 
restricted revenues.  Anything done on flood control is done out of the general 
fund, so this wouldn’t affect Gila County.   
18) Multiple proposals that amend and clarify special district process for 
reorganizing their boards of directors, dissolution process, reorganization 
process, debt authorization.  The measure also redefines roadways to include 
sidewalks and other enhancements that are immediately adjacent to the road.   
Mr. Nelson recommended that the Board read CSA’s analysis on this item, 
which is quite extensive.  It expands the definition of a road improvement 
district and multiple choices for addressing administrative and procedural 
issues surrounding special district organizations.  Because Mr. Nelson had not 
spent a lot of time reviewing this, he offered no recommendation, but would 
provide one before the CSA meeting.   
19) Amend statutes governing IGAs between the Department of Revenue and 
political subdivisions to allow counties the ability to review excise tax 
payments/collections.   Mr. Nelson stated that this is an interesting proposal, 
but he doesn’t know what he would do with it.  He stated that the Department 
of Revenue will definitely talk about the increased cost this would place on 
their Department.  Supervisor Dawson stated that with today’s technology, she 
didn’t understand why that information isn’t already available.  Mr. Nelson 
replied that the Department of Revenue already shares this information with 
cities and towns, but not with counties.  For a couple of years they did share it 
with counties and then it stopped and he doesn’t know what happened.  Vice-
Chairman Martin stated that this was CSA’s initiative and she questioned the 
reason.  Chairman Pastor stated that perhaps it would provide more 
information to the bigger counties.  Mr. Nelson stated that he did not know, 
but he would prefer not to have that information, which would probably have 
to be protected information because there’s some propriety information that 
deals with businesses and their sales tax collections.  He said that CSA may 
have a different spin on this at the legislative summit and he would also like to 



8 

talk to the County Assessor because he believes all businesses are required to 
provide information to the Assessor’s office; however, sometimes information 
gets different results.   
20) Amend regional and public transportation authority population thresholds 
to reflect 2010 legislative changes.  Vice-Chairman Martin inquired about the 
population thresholds.  Mr. Nelson stated that this would allow areas with 
down to 200,000 in population to have a regional transportation authority and 
a half-cent sales tax.  Gila County already has the half-cent sales tax for roads 
so this would have no effect on Gila County.   

 21) Clarify the employment relationship that exists between employees and 
employers working on any joint operations among the political subdivisions 
and other government agencies.  Mr. Nelson stated that this is an initiative that 
Gila County could support.  Right now if the County is working on joint 
projects with cities, towns, counties or other government entities, there’s 
always a question, if someone was hurt, what worker’s compensation and 
liability would apply and this just allows for clarification of the law basically 
that the responsibility for each employee goes back to its employer and not 
shared with other groups.   

 
 Mr. Nelson concluded by stating that these are the current proposals that have 

gone to CSA and there could perhaps be more.  He advised that if the Board or 
members of the public would like more information on the above proposals, 
that information is available on CSA’s website with a complete analysis, the 
cost and/or savings.  The Board discussed the possibility of asking CSA to 
review Mr. Adam’s suggestion of reviewing New Mexico’s prison system costs 
compared to Arizona’s system and also checking into whether or not the State 
of Arizona could legally shift its State prisoners and those responsibilities to 
the counties and begin being proactive on these issues.  Mr. Nelson did not 
believe there would be any positive changes until the State, counties, cities and 
towns all sit down and talk about how to do things better for everyone.  Vice-
Chairman Martin suggested that this Board could lead the charge beginning 
with a proactive investigation.  Mr. McDaniel, Mr. Nelson and the Board then 
discussed preparations for the upcoming legislative summit including a more 
specific plan for presenting this information to the other county supervisors 
and CSA in a more formalized way and getting the information moved to the 
next level in order to gain support for making a difference, particularly on the 
big issues.  After much discussion, Mr. McDaniel stated that he would put 
together a position paper and contact the County Manager for Graham County, 
who was hosting the Small Counties Forum, to try to set up some type of 
meeting either before or after the Small Counties Forum to meet with the other 
supervisors.   

Item 3 - Information/Discussion regarding Gila County's Boards, 
Commissions and Committees.  



9 

Don McDaniel, County Manager, presented and reviewed with the Board a 
large binder containing information on all of Gila County’s boards, 
commissions and committees (BC&Cs).  Mr. McDaniel explained that in 
discussions with Mr. Nelson this report came about in his attempt to know 
more about Gila County’s BC&Cs.  He explained that the binder contains 
varying degrees of backup and support materials for each BC&C, which will be 
kept current as changes are made and new information is acquired.  Mr. 
McDaniel will review with the Board each County BC&C in monthly work 
sessions and will provide the following information, if available:  the staff 
liaison; legal basis for establishment such as the creation date, bylaws, charter 
and legal counsel; assigned areas of responsibility; membership including 
terms of office and the appointing authority; meeting schedules and location; 
and will reflect those groups that are required by law to adhere to the Arizona 
Revised Statutes pertaining to the Open Meeting Law, posting agendas, keeping 
minutes, etc.  Also provided will be information on how each group is funded, 
how the funds are utilized along with significant actions and accomplishments.  
This will allow the Board of Supervisors to more closely monitor these BC&Cs 
going forward.  Mr. McDaniel concluded his report with the following 
recommendations:  that this item be placed on the regular agenda so the Board 
can officially adopt a completed report or recognize it as a work in progress; 
that a coordinator be named to coordinate the actions of the BC&Cs to ensure 
they are doing what is required by law and submit their reports and minutes to 
the Board; that the coordinator have a staff liaison to each BC&C; that each 
BC&C be informed and trained as to the Arizona Open Meeting laws; maintain 
this report ensuring that it is always up to date; and some of these BC&C 
boards should report to the Board of Supervisors on a regular basis.  Each 
Board member commended Mr. Nelson and Janice Cook, Administrative 
Services Manager, for their efforts in putting together this report.  Vice-
Chairman Martin requested that the Board also be provided with the regular 
meeting dates for each BC&C so if someone inquires about a particular 
meeting, she can provide that information.  She also stated that in reviewing 
these BC&Cs, it might be necessary in work sessions to review the need for 
each one, particularly those that were established back in the 1950s, 1960s, 
etc. and see if they are still necessary today.  Supervisor Dawson briefed the 
Board on some past issues she has had with the Industrial Development 
Authority.  She was also concerned that some members of these BC&C boards 
have served too long and other members of the community should be allowed 
to serve on them.  Chairman Pastor stated that he believes the result of this 
report will help the Board move forward in the process of reviewing all of the 
BC&Cs and help the BC&Cs be more accountable to the Board of Supervisors, 
as they should be.  He stated that this is a good first step and that the 
recommendations from the County Manager should be placed on the regular 
agenda for discussion and approval.  Mr. McDaniel suggested that after this 
item has been placed on the regular agenda for action, staff will come up with a 
priority listing for those BB&Cs that are most important first and they can be 
reviewed and the details discussed about each one.  Supervisor Dawson 



10 

inquired about the need for it being placed on the regular agenda.  Mr. 
McDaniel explained that because the Board cannot take any action at a work 
session, he recommended that this report be officially approved by the Board, 
allow staff to know exactly what the Board would like done, and would allow 
the BC&Cs to know that the Board is willing to take an action saying this is 
important, this is what the Board is going to do, that the Board will start 
looking at them, reviewing them, and it puts a little more force into staff’s 
attempt to try to get information.  Vice-Chairman Martin added, “We haven’t 
adopted this book.  We have simply acknowledged that it’s started; it isn’t 
complete.  We’re serious about taking a hard look.  There’s areas were we need 
more information and we’re giving management the direction to proceed.”     

There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 12:04 p.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
________________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk 
 



1 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  October 26, 2010 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR      JOHN F. NELSON 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN      By: Marilyn Brewer 
Vice-Chairman             Deputy Clerk 
 
SHIRLEY L. DAWSON      Gila County Courthouse 
Member        Globe, Arizona 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via ITV conference); Shirley L. Dawson, Supervisor; Don McDaniel, Jr., County 
Manager; John  Nelson, Deputy County Manager; Marian Sheppard, Chief 
Deputy Clerk; and Bryan Chambers, Chief Deputy County Attorney. 
 
Item 1 – Call to Order – Pledge of Allegiance – Invocation 
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a regular session at 10:00 a.m. 
this date in the Board of Supervisors hearing room.  Steve Stratton led the 
Pledge of Allegiance and Chaplain Wilcox of the Hospice Compassus in Payson 
delivered the invocation.   
 
Item 2 - PRESENTATIONS:  
 

 2A. Introduction of Elaine Bohlmeyer, a candidate for the Arizona Senate 
in Legislative District 5.  

 
 Elaine Bohlmeyer introduced herself and stated that she is a candidate for the 

Arizona Senate in Legislative District 5.  She then gave a brief background of 
her history, education and qualifications for this position.  Each Board member 
thanked Ms. Bohlmeyer for attending the meeting.   

 
 2B. Recognition of 4 employees for September's "Spotlight on Employees" 

Program.   
 

Juley Bocardo-Homan, Deputy Human Resources Director, presented gift cards 
as recognition awards to 2 employees--Cynthia Bartholomew and Mary Stemm-
-for September’s “Spotlight on Employees” Program.  Berthan DeNero, 
Personnel Director, also recognized a third employee, Juley Bocardo-Homan.  
The fourth employee was out sick and will be recognized next month.  Each 
Board member thanked the employees for their dedicated work.   



2 

 2C.  Presentation of information pertaining to recent activities of Gila 
Community College.   

 Dr. Stephen Cullen, Senior Dean, introduced Bernadette Kniffen, Gila 
Community College (GCC) governing board member, who gave a PowerPoint 
presentation on the recent activities of the GCC, which has branches in Globe, 
San Carlos and Payson.  She stated that GCC is the fastest growing college in 
the whole southwest, which includes all southwestern states.  GCC offers a lot 
of workforce development programs, dual enrollment programs, academic-type 
transfer programs and adult basic education.  A chart was reviewed showing 
that GCC has grown in its FTSE (full-time student equivalency) from 241 in 
2004 up to 1,050 for FY 2009/2010 or a 5-year increase of 253.26% and from 
2008 to 2009 at a 25% increase compared to other colleges.  GCC revenue 
streams consist of tax levies, State aid and tuition.  A chart showed that State 
aid funding for GCC for FY 2009/2010 was $658,400 and compared to other 
rural community colleges, the other colleges ranged in State aid from $2.6 
million to $4.9 million.  Programs offered by GCC include the following:  
Nursing (CNA & RN), which is also offered in San Carlos; Allied Health Care; 
Fire Science; Emergency Medical Technician; Electrical & Instrumentation 
Technology; Renewable Sustainable Energy (in partnership with Central 
Arizona Association of Governments); Cosmetology; Heavy Equipment (in 
partnership with the Arizona Department of Transportation and Gila County); 
Art; and Art Education.  Ms. Kniffen thanked Gila County for its partnership 
and support of GCC.  Other programs offered include:  Transfer Track 
Programs—AGEC-A:Liberal Arts, AGEC-B:Business, AGEC-C:Math or Science, 
General Studies, Adult Basic Education, Commercial Driver’s License 
Preparation, Early Childhood & Elementary Education, and Web Design.  Ms. 
Kniffen concluded her presentation with a page showing a photo of the 65 GCC 
graduates for 2010 from both Globe and Payson.  Supervisor Dawson inquired 
about GCC’s predictions as to what will take place as Payson develops the 
Arizona State University (ASU) campus.  Dr. Cullen stated that to date there 
has been no dialog with ASU about a Payson campus.  GCC does have in place 
a grant with ASU for teacher education at San Carlos and there are currently 
18 students going through that program.  Dr. Cullen stated that it is hoped 
that ASU will partner with GCC in a structure or format of a 2 plus 2 program 
similar to what Northern Arizona University and the University of Arizona have 
in place and he is sure that the logistics could be worked out so that there 
would be the direct transfer for the nursing program and other programs as 
were outlined.  Dr. Cullen stated, “We look forward to it and I think it’s going to 
be another piece in the puzzle for post secondary education here in Gila County 
and we embrace the idea.”  Supervisor Dawson stated that Dr. Ladner, a well-
respected lobbyist for the Goldwater Institute, wrote an article stating that 
Arizona’s community colleges produce dropouts, not graduates.  He just kind of 
passes off that in fact community colleges should be a place where students 
enroll with the goal of graduating.  The Goldwater Institute is recommending 
cost cuts for the State and Dr. Ladner will be testifying at the State Legislature 



3 

against funding for the community colleges.  She requested that people contact 
Dr. Ladner as she feels community colleges are vital.  She has already 
corresponded with Dr. Ladner on this article and also a previous article he 
wrote, which attacked community colleges.  Supervisor Dawson stated, “I do 
believe that ASU having a 4-year college in Gila County is a wonderful idea, but 
they are going to need FTSE just like GCC needs FTSE and partnering with 
GCC is probably not on their agenda at this time.”  She stated that Kenny 
Evans, Town of Payson Mayor, is going be a vital part of working with that 
program.  Supervisor Dawson stated, “I think we need to get busy on seeing 
that GCC is not damaged by the presence of the 4-year campus, the fact that it 
is a cooperative arrangement, and if you can’t get in touch with ASU then you 
need to contact Kenny Evans and the group in Payson.  I appreciate what GCC 
is doing.  I think it’s a vital part of all of our communities and I would like to 
see it to continue to grow and no doubt this coming year and the following year 
are going to be the most difficult legislative financial times in Arizona history 
and we need to be planning for that and realize that the Goldwater Institute is 
way ahead in planning for it.”  Dr. Cullen addressed Dr. Ladner’s comments by 
stating that he would challenge that gentleman to look at the retention rate at 
GCC.  GCC has one of the lowest dropout rates in the State due in fact to the 
nursing program.  He would also challenge Dr. Ladner to look at the other 
mission of community colleges and that is workforce development.  He stated 
that in working with Arizona Senator Allen’s task force, they are looking at the 
possibility of GCC becoming fully organized and funding is going to be the 
challenge throughout the State, particularly in Gila County.  When looking at 
the 3 funding streams—State aid, tax levy and tuition—GCC only has control 
over 1 of those funding revenue streams and that would be tuition and GCC 
has taken a 40% increase in tuition over the last year.  He concluded by 
stating, “I hope that the State legislators will keep post secondary education in 
place in terms of their funding mechanisms as we move into the next legislative 
session and beyond.  I could go on for hours talking about our community 
college because the Gila County Board of Supervisors has done so much to 
empower and enable us over the last 5 years.  We have a community college 
that is one to be proud of.  All of us can be proud of what has been 
accomplished and proud of our graduates.”  Supervisor Dawson suggested that 
Dr. Cullen invite Dr. Ladner to GCC.  She stated, “This is preliminary to the 
legislative session and the start of what will be heard as funding cuts for 
community colleges, and this is the groundwork that is being laid.”   She 
recommended that Dr. Cullen unite with the other community colleges, and 
stated that “funding for anything in Arizona is going to be drastically reduced 
next year because Arizona is bankrupt and this is the groundwork so you know 
how they are going to attack community colleges.”  Dr. Cullen acknowledged 
that as a great point and in referring back to the ASU campus, he stated that 
this will be price driven because tuition drives enrollment.  He stated, “If you 
have the programs, you have to have the tuition schedule that your 
constituency can afford in order to go to school.  I would think that ASU is 
going to have to look at a tuition schedule very similar to what GCC has in 



4 

place, which is still one of the lowest in the State because after 12 credits there 
is no increase in tuition.  So I look forward to working with ASU officials to 
identify how we are going to serve the adult learners in Gila County because 
some do drop out after 2 years and can’t finish a 4-year degree.”  On behalf of 
the Board, Chairman Pastor thanked Dr. Cullen and Ms. Kniffen for their 
presentation.  

 
 Item 3 – PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
 3A. Public Hearing - Information/Discussion/Action to approve Order No. 

LL 10-05, an application submitted by Michael D. Brown for a person to 
person transfer of a Series 6 bar license with an interim permit to operate 
for Kohl's Ranch located in Payson.   

 
 Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk, stated that this is a person to person 

transfer of a Series 6 bar license.  Once the County accepts an application, an 
internal review process is conducted by the Planning and Zoning Department 
as well as the Health Department and neither department had an issue with 
this application.  Ms. Sheppard recommended the Board’s approval to the 
Arizona Department of Liquor Licenses and Control.  Ms. Sheppard noted that 
Ms. Bren Hallman, an attorney representing the applicant, was present to 
answer any questions.  Chairman Pastor opened the public hearing and asked 
for public comment; none was received.  He closed the public hearing and 
entertained a motion.  Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-
Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously approved Order No. LL 10-05, an 
application submitted by Michael D. Brown for a person to person transfer of a 
Series 6 bar license with an interim permit to operate for Kohl's Ranch located 
in Payson.   

 
 3B. Public Hearing - Information/Discussion/Action to approve Order No. 

LL 10-06, an application submitted by Rick L. Heppler for a person to 
person transfer of a Series 6 bar license with an interim permit to operate 
for Jake's Corner Bar located in Payson.  

 
Ms. Sheppard stated that this was a person to person transfer of a Series 6 bar 
license.  An internal review has been conducted by the Planning and Zoning 
Department as well as the Health Department and there were no issues.  She 
noted that Mr. Heppler was present at the meeting in Payson to answer any 
questions.  Chairman Pastor opened the public hearing and asked for public 
comment; none was received.  He closed the public hearing and entertained a 
motion.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor 
Dawson, the Board unanimously approved Order No. LL 10-06, an application 
submitted by Rick L. Heppler for a person to person transfer of a Series 6 bar 
license with an interim permit to operate for Jake's Corner Bar located in 
Payson.  

 



5 

 3C. (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and 
convene as the Gila County Flood Control District Board of Directors.)  
Public Hearing - Information/Discussion/Action to approve and request 
the Chairman's signature on the revised Gila County Floodplain 
Management Ordinance.  (Steve Stratton/Darde deRoulhac) 

 Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board convened as the Gila County Flood Control District Board of Directors.   

 Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director, stated that the proposed 
changes being made to the Gila County Floodplain Management Ordinance 
were discussed with the Board at a work session held several weeks ago and 
the changes have been interpreted in the most lenient fashion to help the 
public.  He advised that the publication of this hearing was done according to 
statute.  Darde deRoulhac, Chief Engineer of the Flood Control District, was 
also present to answer any questions.  Chairman Pastor opened the public 
hearing and asked for public comment; none was received.  He closed the 
public hearing and entertained a motion.  Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, 
seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously approved the 
Chairman’s signature on the revised Gila County Floodplain Management 
Ordinance.  (A copy of the Ordinance is permanently on file in the Board of 
Supervisors’ Office.)   

 Item 4 - REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  

4A. Information/Discussion/Action to approve a variance from Section 
5.2.C of the Gila County Floodplain Management Ordinance for Dr. Tom 
Kalos to construct a garage with the lowest floor elevation below the 
regulatory flood elevation, protecting the structural integrity of the 
building by using wet-flood-proofing techniques noted in Section 5.2.C.4(a 
through c) of the Ordinance and flood-resistant materials below the 
regulatory flood elevation, on Parcel Number 303-06-068A, located in Bear 
Flat, in the Tonto Creek floodplain.  The Building is not to be converted 
to habitable uses. (Steve Stratton/Darde deRoulhac) 
(Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Flood Control District Board of 
Directors and convene as the Gila County Library District Board of 
Directors) 
 
Mr. Stratton stated that the landowner has been working with Mr. deRoulhac 
regarding this issue and staff recommends that this variance be approved.  
Chairman Pastor inquired if this gentleman is aware of the potential for 
flooding.  Mr. Stratton stated that Mr. Kalos has been working with Mr. 
deRoulhac and the modifications he is willing to make do meet with the 
County’s Ordinance and Mr. Kalos understands the risk.  Upon motion by 
Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the Board approved a 
variance from Section 5.2.C of the Gila County Floodplain Management 



6 

Ordinance for Dr. Tom Kalos to construct a garage with the lowest floor 
elevation below the regulatory flood elevation, protecting the structural 
integrity of the building by using wet-flood-proofing techniques noted in 
Section 5.2.C.4 (a through c) of the Ordinance and flood-resistant materials 
below the regulatory flood elevation, on Parcel Number 303-06-068A, located in 
Bear Flat, in the Tonto Creek floodplain.  The Building is not to be converted to 
habitable uses.   
 

 Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the 
Board adjourned as the Gila County Flood Control District Board of Directors 
and convened as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors. 
 
4B. Information/Discussion/Action to approve Library Services 
Agreements between the Gila County Library District and the following 
libraries to cooperate in the provision of library services to the citizens of 
the District for the period July 1, 2010, through June 30, 2011: Hayden 
Public Library - match up to $52,100.00; Isabelle Hunt Memorial Library - 
fund $104,750.00; Miami Memorial Library - match up to $43,600.00; 
Payson Public Library - match up to $229,230.00; Tonto Basin Public 
Library - fund $60,950.00; and Young Public Library - fund 
$57,670.00.  (Don McDaniel) 
(Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors 
and convene as the Gila County Board of Supervisors) 
 
Don McDaniel, County Manager, stated that this is an annual item to approve 
the Intergovernmental Agreements with the libraries in the County.  Six of the 
8 agreements have been finalized and the other 2 will come to the Board for 
approval at a later date.  Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by 
Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously approved Library Service 
Agreements between the Gila County Library District and the following libraries 
to cooperate in the provision of library services to the citizens of the District for 
the period July 1, 2010, through June 30, 2011: Hayden Public Library - 
match up to $52,100.00; Isabelle Hunt Memorial Library - fund 
$104,750.00; Miami Memorial Library - match up to $43,600.00; Payson 
Public Library - match up to $229,230.00; Tonto Basin Public Library - fund 
$60,950.00; and Young Public Library - fund $57,670.00. 
 
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the 
Board reconvened as the Gila County Board of Supervisors. 
 
4C. Information/Discussion/Action to adopt Proclamation No. 10-11 to 
proclaim October 30, 2010, as "Weatherization Day" in Gila County.   
 
Malissa Buzan, Housing Services Program Manager, provided an update to the 
Board on the ARRA (American Recovery and Reinvestment Act) stimulus 
funding weatherization program.   The weatherization program is currently 



7 

utilizing 6 general contractors, 5 HVAC contractors, 2 electrical contractors, 2 
plumbing contractors and 2 insulation contractors from Gila County local 
businesses.  Some of the contractors were present and Ms. Buzan thanked 
them and then introduced them to the Board, acknowledging that 
weatherization is not the easiest work to do.  Ms. Buzan advised that 
considerable money has been spent training and getting these local contractors 
certified—lead certified, building science certified—in order to do this work.  
She also introduced and thanked some of the County employees that have 
played a big role in keeping the weatherization program running.  She also 
thanked the Board for its support.  Ms. Buzan stated that through this 
weatherization program, 81 households in Gila County have been helped.  She 
advised that 41% of the work has been completed with approximately 16 more 
months of work to do, so the program is right on target.  Gila County is third in 
the State, behind Phoenix and Mesa, with job completions and $533,000 has 
been paid to contractors for materials, supplies and labor.  Ms. Buzan stated, 
“We’ve come very far for little Gila County” and she is very proud of the 
public/private partnerships that have been developed.  Vice-Chairman Martin 
inquired as to the areas in which these jobs are being completed.  Ms. Buzan 
replied that approximately 55% of the work is being done in the Payson area 
north of Roosevelt Lake and 45% is in southern Gila County.  Quite a few jobs 
have been completed in Tonto Basin and a couple of jobs were done in Young.  
Some jobs have been done in Pine and Strawberry and all the way south to the 
Hayden/Winkelman area.  As the requests come in, they are placed on a first 
come, first serve basis.  Prior to the ARRA funding, 25 household jobs were 
completed and with the ARRA funding, 81 have been completed this year.   
Each Board member complimented Ms. Buzan and staff for this great program.  
Chairman Pastor stated that he and Mr. McDaniel toured several of the 
properties that have been rehabilitated and he believes it is one of the premiere 
programs offered in Gila County.  Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, 
seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously adopted 
Proclamation No. 10-11 to proclaim October 30, 2010, as “Weatherization Day” 
in Gila County.  (A copy of the Proclamation is permanently on file in the 
Board of Supervisors’ Office.) 
 
4D. Information/Discussion/Action to approve Ames Construction, 
Inc. Standard Subcontract Agreement for Labor & Materials (Ames Job 
#090307-38S) between Ames Construction, Inc. and the Gila County 
Sheriff's Office in the amount of $29,625, for the provision of  flagging 
services.   
 
Claudia DalMolin, Chief Administrative Officer for the Sheriff’s Office, stated 
that this will pay for the Sheriff’s Office to provide an officer and a vehicle for 
flagging services on Highway 260 until the $29,625 has been used.  Upon 
motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the Board 
unanimously approved Ames Construction, Inc. Standard Subcontract 
Agreement for Labor & Materials (Ames Job #090307-38S) between Ames 



8 

Construction, Inc. and the Gila County Sheriff's Office in the amount of 
$29,625, for the provision of flagging services.   
 
4E. Information/Discussion/Action to accept Resolution No. 10-02 from 
the Cobre Valley Sanitary District and Resolution No. 10-41 from the 
Pinal Sanitary District and set a public hearing for discussion of the 
merger between the two districts into the new Tri-City Regional Sanitary 
District, on November 30, 2010, at 10:00 am in the Board of Supervisors 
Hearing Room.  
 
Linda Eastlick, Elections Director, stated that the purpose of this item is to 
accept the resolutions that have been adopted by the Cobre Valley and the 
Pinal Sanitary Districts and set a public hearing regarding the merger of the 2 
districts into 1 district to be known as the Tri-City Regional Sanitary District.  
She also introduced Mary Anne Moreno and Bob Zache, who are the Presidents 
of the Boards of the 2 Sanitary Districts.  Ms. Moreno stated that the Cobre 
Valley Sanitary District is very small and is actually a donut-hole district 
within the confines of the Pinal Sanitary District.  When the 2 districts were 
formed, they were formed on the basis of the boundaries of the Central Heights 
Fire Department and the Tri-City Fire District.  The 2 Districts would like to 
move forward looking at providing collection systems to the 2 Districts and 
because of various drainages that overlap, the 2 Boards met and decided that 
the smartest thing to do would be to combine the 2 Districts into one.  There 
will be one board of directors that could look at engineering a collection system 
for the entire area.  Meetings have been held since last December and all the 
details have been hammered out.  The Districts have also managed to get 
legislation passed that would allow the 2 Districts to put this together.  
Chairman Pastor called on Albert Porto, a resident of the unincorporated area 
of Claypool.  Mr. Porto stated that he is a 44-year resident of Claypool, having 
lived there most of his adult life, and he is always interested in issues that 
affect that community, especially for the taxpaying members, because the 
largest percentage of the people are elderly and are on some form of disability 
or Social Security.  Mr. Porto stated, “I take it upon myself to review all of the 
issues that affect my community and evaluate those proposals.  When I speak 
out, I speak out for those who can’t speak for themselves and those are the 
elderly...”  He stated that a couple of years back there was an attempt at 
annexation by the Town of Miami.  Mr. Porto formed a committee to evaluate 
that proposal and came to the decision that it was not in the best interest of 
the people of Claypool.  He stated, “Now comes this merger with no information 
provided to the taxpayers in either of the sanitary districts.  That is why I’m 
here to ask questions.  A couple of months ago I found out about this and I 
called Bob Zache and questioned him about why wasn’t information provided 
to the people in the sanitary district as to what was happening.  He was tired; 
he’d been out hiking and elected not to talk to me.  I respected that.  I hung up 
with the understanding that he would get back to me and provide some 
answers.  That never happened so that’s why I’m here today to ask questions.  



9 

In their meetings and their decisions to merge, what information was provided 
to the taxpayers of the sanitary districts?  What are their long-term goals in 
merging?  I’ve heard that they want to hook up to the Town of Miami sewer 
system.  Well, let me give you a little background on the Miami sewer system.  
They have just completed an extensive repair project in Miami and their 
problems are not settled yet by any stretch of the imagination.  That was just 
the main lines that they repaired.  They still have extensive work to do over 
there with all their feeder lines.”  Chairman Pastor stated, “This is a decision to 
hold a public hearing in November and those are the types of questions that 
they would expect you to bring forward at that public hearing.  I understand 
your concern because we’ve had this discussion several times before and I’ve 
actually encouraged some of the group to contact you.  Once we set the public 
hearing, that’s where you could address every one of these questions, but today 
they won’t be able to answer any of those questions.”  Mr. Porto replied, “That’s 
fine, but this wouldn’t have happened had the information been provided in a 
proper sequence and time to the people in the affected area.  Thank you for 
your time.”  Williams Clemmons, Attorney for the Sanitary Districts, stated, “I 
do represent the Districts and am very well aware of what the merger consists 
of and I agree with your statement that at the public hearing is where these 
issues will be addressed.  Right now there is an engineering firm that is putting 
together the details of how this will work and whether or not the Town of Miami 
will serve the area or the City of Globe or another treatment facility.  Those are 
all issues that will be discussed and thoroughly analyzed in the preliminary 
engineering report that is being worked on as I speak.  And the firm actually 
prepared the map and legal.  So there’s work going on right now.  Hopefully at 
this hearing that is going to be set, questions can be answered.  The reason no 
information is out on the street at this time is because it is not available and 
the public hearing is the first time that it will be available.  Also there are many 
steps between now and it appears it would be May before anything happens in 
this regard and in between all of this information will be prepared. The problem 
with this area is the terrain ups and downs.  It’s not a flat field and there are 
many considerations that are engineering type considerations and for me to 
speak to those today would be way premature.”  Chairman Pastor stated that 
Mr. Porto and others in the unincorporated area have been concerned about 
what is going on and have contacted him and he in turn has let Mr. Zache and 
Ms. Moreno know that Mr. Porto is an important individual to keep informed 
because he does have some support and he does express his concerns very 
pointedly.  Bob Zache stated, “I am the president of the Pinal Sanitary District.  
I do recall a phone call from Mr. Porto after a long day and we talked at length 
about this.  We don’t have much information yet.  I do apologize for not getting 
back to you sooner.  We have met on several occasions since then, but this 
subject didn’t come up.  I will contact you to see if you’ll help serve on the 
citizen’s committee to help us work through some of these details.  We don’t 
have much detail yet.  We’re still in the study stages and hopefully this merger 
will make it a lot easier for us to pursue what we are doing.”  Supervisor 
Dawson stated that she hopes the groups will work together on this and get 



10 

some good things going.  Ms. Moreno pointed out that for every meeting that 
has been held, it has been posted at least 24 hours in advance in 4 different 
areas in the unincorporated area.  These are open meetings and anyone can 
attend.  Jesse Bryant, representing KQSS Radio, stated that he echoed Mr. 
Porto’s concerns.  Mr. Bryant stated that during late summer, he just learned 
about these 2 Boards after being born and raised in this community.   He 
stated, “This is all very educational as I’ve never heard of them before.  I’m a 
reporter and I make it a point to pay very close attention to what is going on.” 
He questioned if these are elected officials? Appointed?  Who appoints them?  
Is there a tax levy?  And what are their boundaries?  He stated, “I encourage 
greater efforts towards publication of what is going on and who is doing it.”  
Each Board member expressed their concerns about working together, 
including everyone in the conversation and dealing with the issues so they can 
be resolved.  Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman 
Martin, the Board unanimously accepted Resolution No. 10-02 from the Cobre 
Valley Sanitary District and Resolution No. 10-41 from the Pinal Sanitary 
District and set a public hearing for discussion of the merger between the two 
districts into the new Tri-City Regional Sanitary District, on November 30, 
2010, at 10:00 am in the Board of Supervisors Hearing Room.  Mr. Clemmons 
advised that there is going to be an income survey for the area and the purpose 
is to determine what percentage, if this project goes forward, will be in the form 
of a loan versus an outright grant from the federal government.  He emphasized 
that it’s very important that people cooperate in the survey because the area 
really qualifies for a substantial portion of a grant and it will also provide 
information so the districts will know how to plan.  There is no way to figure 
out how much it will cost the citizens without that survey.  Mr. Zache pointed 
out that the Sanitary Districts are not conducting the survey.  It’s being done 
by an outside agency and the information provided by the outside agency will 
then be used by the Districts.   

 4F. Information/Discussion/Action to approve Qualified Vendor 
Agreement No. 05785 between Arizona Department of Economic Security, 
Division of Developmental Disabilities and the Gila County Division of 
Health and Community Services dba Gila Employment and Special 
Training (GEST) to provide Day Treatment & Training - Adult, Day 
Treatment & Training - Children Summer Program, Habitation - Support - 
Hourly, Habitation - Individually Designed Living Arrangement, Attendant 
Care, Respite, Transportation, Employment Support Aide, Group 
Supported Employment, Individual Supported Employment and 
Transportation - Employment Related effective date of this agreement is 
either the date that this award is signed by the State of Arizona 
Procurement Officer or January 1, 2011, whichever is later.   

 David Caddell, GEST Program Manager, stated this program has been in effect 
since 1975 and this contract will expire on December 31, 2010.  Services are 
provided to individuals throughout Gila County and with this new contract, 



11 

these services will continue to be provided to the citizens of the 
developmentally disabled population to ensure they have these services that 
include taking them to doctor appointments, grocery shopping, assisting them 
in getting jobs, transportation to work, etc.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman 
Martin, seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the Board unanimously 
approved Qualified Vendor Agreement No. 05785 between the Arizona 
Department of Economic Security, Division of Developmental Disabilities and 
the Gila County Division of Health and Community Services dba Gila 
Employment and Special Training (GEST) to provide Day Treatment & Training 
- Adult, Day Treatment & Training - Children Summer Program, Habitation - 
Support - Hourly, Habitation - Individually Designed Living Arrangement, 
Attendant Care, Respite, Transportation, Employment Support Aide, Group 
Supported Employment, Individual Supported Employment and Transportation 
- Employment Related effective date of this agreement is either the date that 
this award is signed by the State of Arizona Procurement Officer or January 1, 
2011, whichever is later.   

 4G. Information/Discussion/Action to approve Caterpillar Financial 
Services Equipment Lease-Purchase Agreement for Recycle & Landfill 
Wheel Loader 928HZ Serial No. CXK00693.   

 Mr. Stratton stated that this is the financial arrangement that was discussed 
with the Board at the time a bid was awarded to Caterpillar Financial Services 
several weeks ago.  This is the paperwork that still needed to be completed by 
Caterpillar.  The County will finance approximately $75,000 at 3.5% to be paid 
back over a period of 36 months with the option of early payoff without a 
penalty.  Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman 
Martin, the Board unanimously approved Caterpillar Financial Services 
Equipment Lease-Purchase Agreement for Recycle & Landfill Wheel Loader 
928HZ Serial No. CXK00693.   

 At this time, Chairman Pastor advised that the Board would skip Item H until 
the rest of the regular items were completed.   

 4I. Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental 
Agreement (IGA), Contract #OER-11-IGA-GS-30, between Gila County and 
the Governor's Office of Economic Recovery for the period of July 
1, 2010, to September 30, 2011, for distribution of a one-time award of 
State Fiscal Stabilization Funds in the amount of $230,769 to be used to 
fund salary and fringe benefit costs for staff in the new 40-bed women's 
detention facility at the Gila County Sheriff's Office.   

 Mr. McDaniel stated that these funds will be used to fund the 6 staffing 
positions that have been budgeted for the opening of the new women’s 
detention facility.  These are ARRA stimulus monies coming from the federal 
government through the State.  This IGA will allow those funds to be drawn 



12 

from the State so the County can be reimbursed over time for these salaries.  
Chairman Pastor inquired if this is a one-time award for 9.5 months and if it 
then becomes the County’s responsibility to cover those costs.  Mr. McDaniel 
replied that was correct.  Originally, they were budgeted positions and this will 
cover those salaries in one case for 9 months and in a couple of others for 11 
months.  Supervisor Dawson noted that this is an example of where the ARRA 
funds have helped pay for costs that the taxpayers won’t have to absorb.  Upon 
motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the Board 
unanimously approved an Intergovernmental Agreement, Contract #OER-11-
IGA-GS-30, between Gila County and the Governor's Office of Economic 
Recovery for the period of July 1, 2010, to September 30, 2011, for distribution 
of a one-time award of State Fiscal Stabilization Funds in the amount of 
$230,769 to be used to fund salary and fringe benefit costs for staff in the new 
40-bed women's detention facility at the Gila County Sheriff's Office.   

 4J. Information/Discussion/Action to accept the Boards, Commissions 
and Committees (BC&C) Report subject to the following conditions: 1) 
that future Work Sessions will be held to further review specific BC&Cs, 2) 
that the BC&C Report be completed, 3) that a BC&C coordinator be named 
by the County Manager, 4) that the coordinator name a staff liaison to 
each BC&C, 5) that each BC&C be informed and trained as to Arizona 
Open Meeting Laws as amended, 6) that the Report be maintained as up to 
date, and 7) that each BC&C report to the Board on a regular basis.  

 Mr. McDaniel stated that this is the Board’s opportunity to officially adopt the 
Gila County Boards, Commissions and Committees (BC&C) Report.  It is still in 
the process of being completed.  He stated that the significant part of the 
recommendation is that the Board review each one of the BC&Cs in depth at 
upcoming work sessions.  Mr. McDaniel stated, “It would be my further 
recommendation, although not a part of this approval, to take the Report as it 
is presented and go through these BC&Cs in the order they are presented in 
the Report.”  Chairman Pastor stated that this is a big first step in getting all 
the BC&Cs compiled into one report, and “now we just continue the process.”  
Supervisor Dawson stated that there is an item later on the agenda requesting 
approval of reappointments to the BC&Cs and as the Board goes through these 
BC&Cs, she believes that other people within the community should have the 
opportunity to serve on these BC&Cs and she believes the County has 
“stagnated itself by just reappointing.”  Chairman Pastor said the Board will be 
able to address those issues as it reviews each of the BC&Cs.  Vice-Chairman 
Martin requested a list of vacancies as they become available in the BC&Cs.  
She stated, “We have a wealth of folks in the County that we need to be tapping 
into their talents and this is just one of the ways that we could do that.”  Upon 
motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board 
unanimously accepted the Boards, Commissions and Committees (BC&Cs) 
Report, subject to the following conditions: 1) that future work sessions will be 
held to further review specific BC&Cs, 2) that the BC&C Report be completed, 



13 

3) that a BC&C coordinator be named by the County Manager, 4) that the 
coordinator name a staff liaison to each BC&C, 5) that each BC&C be informed 
and trained as to Arizona Open Meeting laws as amended, 6) that the Report be 
maintained as up to date, and 7) that each BC&C report to the Board on a 
regular basis. 

 Before addressing the Consent Agenda action items, Supervisor Dawson 
requested that Consent Agenda item 5C be moved to the regular agenda for 
discussion.  Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman 
Martin, the Board unanimously approved moving Consent Agenda item 5C to 
the regular agenda.   Before addressing item 5C, Supervisor Dawson requested 
that the Board approve the remaining Consent Agenda action items.  (See the 
motion at the end of the Consent items and discussion on Consent Agenda 
Action item number 5C below.) 

 Item 5 - CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS: 

 5A. Authorization for the Chairman to sign Amendment #9 to Contract 
#E5345511, Extended Supported Employment, between the Arizona 
Department of Economic Security, Rehabilitation Services 
Administration, and the Gila County Division of Health and Community 
Services dba Gila Employment and Special Training to provide Extended 
Supported Employment services to Vocational Rehabilitation clients from 
January 1, 2011, to April 30, 2011.  

 
 5B. Approval to submit a letter from the Gila County Health and 

Community Services REPAC Program to William G. Lewis Trust providing 
written notification to terminate the lease agreement effective January 
31, 2011.   

 
 5C. Approval of the Gila County members on the Gila/Pinal Workforce 

Investment Board to be submitted for recertification to the Governor's 
Council on Workforce Policy.  (Pulled from the Consent Agenda and approved 
separately.  See notes below.)  

 
 5D. Approval of Contract #10100 between Gila County and Central 

Arizona Association of Governments in the amount of $1,140,809 to 
provide Workforce Investment Act services to eligible Youth and Adults in 
the Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Area for the period of April 1, 2010, 
through June 30, 2011.  

 
 5E. Authorization for the Chairman to sign Amendment #1 to Arizona 

Department of Health Services Contract #HG050277, WIC Services, 
Breastfeeding Peer Counseling, and Farmers Market Nutrition Program 
Contract; and WIC Breastfeeding Peer Counselor Manager Contract 
Agreement with Mary McMullen. 



14 

 5F.  Approval of an Intergovernmental Agreement between Gila County 
and the Gila County Community College District to continue to provide a 
workforce training site for the heavy equipment operations classes for the 
period of August 31, 2010, through June 30, 2011.  

 
 5G.  Approval of the Cobre Valley Regional Medical Center Foundation's 

request to waive the fees for the use of the Exhibit Hall at the Fairgrounds 
for their art and wine auction event to be held on Thursday, November 4, 
2010.  

 
 5H.  Approval of  Modification No. 2 to Challenge Cost Share Agreement 

No. 09-CS-11031200-015 between Forest Service, U.S. Department of 
Agriculture, Tonto National Forest and Gila County to extend the term of 
the Agreement from October 1, 2010, through September 30, 2011.  

 
 5I.   Authorization of the Chairman's signature on various documents 

entered into between Gila County and Konica Minolta Business Solutions 
U.S.A., Inc. (KMBS) for the purchase of a Konica Minolta Bizhub C452 
copier that will be used by the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace, as 
follows:  Order Agreement in the amount of $7,493.61; Standard 
CPC Maintenance Contract at a cost of $84.75 per month ($1,017 annual 
cost); Gila County Addendum to Order Agreement; and Application and 
Acknowledgement Form.   

 
 5J. Approval of the Order to cancel the election and appoint governing 

board members to the Beaver Valley Domestic Water Improvement 
District.  

 
 5K. Approval of eight Intergovernmental Agreements for governing board 

election services between the Gila County Division of Elections and the 
following entities: Gila County School Superintendent (on behalf of the 
Globe, Payson, Pine-Strawberry, and Whiteriver School Districts); Gila 
Community College; Christopher-Kohl's, Hellsgate, Pine-Strawberry, Tonto 
Basin and Tri-City Fire Districts; and the Pine-Strawberry Water 
Improvement District.   

 
 5L. Approval of the appointments of the following thirty-six precinct 

committeemen as submitted by the Gila County Republican 
Committee:  Globe 2-Richard Moran; Globe 4-Dennis Melford; Globe 11-
Bradley Werrell; Claypool 2-William Ray Stoltz; Gisela-George Demack; 
Sierra Ancha-Karen Schneider; Christmas-Pat Clark; Payson 1-William W. 
Shreeve; Payson 2-Susan Everhart and William D. Powers; Payson 3-Diane 
Baran, Ronald Baran, John Calderwood, Anita Dewitz, Horst Dewitz, 
Dorothy Gossard, Lolly Hathhorn, Al Poskanzer, Colleen Russell and  
Tommy Russell; Payson 5-Norma Fallers, Betty S. Garretson, Vernon 
Garretson and Alvin Schmalzer; Payson 6-Steve Ellis and Randi Sanders; 



15 

Payson 7-Vickie Cool, June Dudley, Gregory Friestad and Sharyn C. 
Friestad; Payson 8-Patricia Steely, Margaret L. Vaughn and Janet 
Williams; and Star Valley-Kristan Dillon, Jann R. Durst and Lynn E. Durst.  

 
 5M. Approval of the August 2010 monthly departmental activity report 

submitted by Payson Regional Justice Court.  
  
 5N. Approval of the September 2010 monthly departmental activity report 

submitted by the Payson Regional Constable. 
 
 5O. Approval of the September 2010 monthly departmental activity 

report submitted by the Globe Regional Justice of the Peace.  
 
 5P. Approval of personnel reports/actions for the weeks of October 12, 

2010, October 19, 2010, and October 26, 2010.  
 
October 12, 2010 
Departures from County Service: 
1.  Patricia Trevillian - Health and Community Services – Administrative Clerk 
Senior – 10/06/10 – WIA Funds – DOH 06/28/04 – Resigned 
2. Judy Gonzales - Health and Community Services – Administrative Clerk 
Senior – 10/06/10 – WIA Funds – DOH 01/12/04 – Resigned 
Hires to County Service: 
3.  Alex Cunningham – Public Works Facilities Management – Building 
Maintenance Technician – 10/25/10 – Facility Management Fund – Replacing 
William McDaniel 
Position Review: 
4.  Joy Riddle – County Attorney – From Attorney Under Filled – To Attorney – 
09/27/10 – Prosecution Recovery Fund 
Request Permission to Post: 
5.  Emergency Management – Executive Administrative Assistance – Position 
Vacated By Linda Rodriguez 
6.  Health and Community Services – Administrative Clerk Senior – Position 
Vacated By Judy Gonzales 
SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 
Hires to County Service: 
7.  Jacob Delecki - Sheriff's Office – Deputy Sheriff Recruit – 11/08/10 – 
General Fund – Replacing Paul Ortiz 
 
October 19, 2010 
Departures from County Service: 
1. Mary Kim Titla – BOS – Gila County Tribal Liaison – 10/06/10 – Constituent 
Services Fund District III – DOH 03/01/09 – Resigned due to candidacy 
Departmental Transfers: 
2. Linda Rodriguez – From Emergency Management – To BOS – Administrative 
Manager – 10/11/10 – General Fund 



16 

Request Permission to Post: 
3. Health and Community Services – Accounting Clerk – Position vacated by 
Chris Phillips 
4. Health and Community Services – Accountant – Position vacated by Dan 
Mikolay 
5. Finance – Accountant – Position vacated by Linda Koury 
SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 
Departures from County Service: 
6. Annette Mueller - Sheriff's Office – Accounting Clerk Specialist – 12/19/10 - 
General Fund – DOH 11/09/92 – Retiring 
End Probationary Period: 
7. Kenneth Warden - Sheriff's Office - Detention Officer – 10/25/10 - General 
Fund 
8. Kathe Quinn - Sheriff's Office - Detention Officer – 10/11/10 - General Fund 
 
October 26, 2010 
Departure from County Service: 
1. Victoria McDaniel – Payson Justice Court – Temporary Clerk – 06/01/10 - 
General Fund – DOH 02/02/10 – Temporary Position 
Departmental Transfer: 
2. Anthony Waddell – From Sheriff's Office – To Globe Regional Justice Court - 
From 911 Dispatcher – To Justice Court Clerk Associate – 10/25/10 - General 
Fund 
End Probationary Period: 
3. Sine Scott - Community Development – Engineering Technician - 11/08/10 
– General Fund 

5Q. Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of 
October 12, 2010, October 19, 2010, and October 26, 2010. 

October 12, 2010 

$958,005.65 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 231220 
through 231372.   

October 19, 2010 

$2,041,434.43 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 231373 
through 231587.   

October 26, 2010 

$494,122.89 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 231588 
through 231786.  (An itemized list of disbursements is permanently on file 
in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.)   



17 

Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda Action items 5A-5Q, with the 
exception of 5C, which was discussed separately on the regular agenda (below).   
 
The Board then moved to Agenda item 5C, which was removed from the 
Consent Agenda action items for a separate discussion.   
 
5C. Approval of the Gila County members on the Gila/Pinal Workforce 
Investment Board (WIB) to be submitted for recertification to the 
Governor's Council on Workforce Policy. 

 Supervisor Dawson stated that her reason for pulling this from the Consent 
Agenda is because she believes the Board needs to review all of the BC&Cs first 
before recertifying or extending years of service on any board or council.  
Chairman Pastor questioned if there was a timeline for recertifying these 
appointments.  Barbara Valencia, WIA (Workforce Investment Act) Program 
Coordinator, explained that this is only for the recertification of the Gila/Pinal 
WIB; these are not new members coming onto the Board.  Every 2 years it is 
mandated by the WIA that the Governor recertify members of the WIB.  Ms. 
Valencia explained the various programs that the members represent.  Mr. 
McDaniel inquired if Ms. Valencia knew when the governor actually recertifies 
these appointments.  Ms. Valencia stated that they were actually due to the 
governor at the end of September, but paperwork was provided to her 2 weeks 
prior so that is the reason it is late.  She is required to submit the 
recertification as soon as possible.  Mr. McDaniel inquired of the Board if there 
would be a problem if this item was continued to the November 16th meeting.  
Ms. Valencia stated that she would have to contact the State for an extension.  
Supervisor Dawson stated, “I believe as a Board that we have an obligation to 
understand who we are appointing, why we are appointing them, and if it’s 
mandated that this person is the only person that can serve on this board and 
if it’s a board that we could bring people into and activate…”  Ms. Valencia 
explained, “As you can see from the list, all of the mandated partners are listed 
there and are usually the managers of the program or the directors of the 
program.  The other side of it is private sector, which means that they have to 
be the owner of a business or be somehow tied into hiring, labor organizations, 
senior community service employment, Native American programs—those are 
mandated partners and you will see that for many years that same person has 
served on the board because they are the ones that are directors or managers.  
Chairman Pastor inquired if these 14 positions are mandated.  Ms. Valencia 
replied that the private sector is mandated as well as the other ones listed.  
They are referred to as One-Stop partners.  Vice-Chairman Martin stated, “At 
the very least, if we haven’t, we need to check back in with each of these folks 
and see if they want to be reappointed and if they understand that they are up 
for reappointment.  That’s part of the due diligence that I think we need to be 
doing with this BC&C effort…”  Supervisor Dawson stated that she met the 
gentleman who is on there as the Job Corps coordinator and he had no idea 



18 

that she has been working for 2 years on a Job Corps for this area.  She stated, 
“I don’t know what he’s doing.  He certainly hasn’t met with the judges on 
placement or with probation on recruiting student enrollees in Job Corps in 
Tucson or Phoenix.”  Ms. Valencia replied, “You need to understand the way 
Job Corps is working right now.  Brad McCormick works for Fred Acosta in 
Tucson, which is our district to get a Job Corps partner.  But when you are 
talking about the students or whoever would like to go into the Job Corps, 
recruitment has to come out of Phoenix.  That’s the way it is outlined in our 
district.”  Supervisor Dawson made the motion to postpone this item until the 
November 16, 2010, Board meeting when the Board can discuss it.  Chairman 
Pastor inquired if Supervisor Dawson wanted some kind of a session prior to 
the November 16th meeting.  Supervisor Dawson stated, “I think we should 
discuss it at the Board meeting on November 16th.”  Chairman Pastor inquired 
what this would do to the recertification, if it would eliminate everybody and if 
this would put the whole program on hold.  Ms. Valencia replied, “I don’t know 
at this time.  I would have to call the Governor’s Council on Workforce Policy to 
find out what this would do to the program.”  Vice-Chairman Martin stated 
that if the Board did recertify these people, it would be with a codicil that the 
Board may be making changes within the next month or two.  Chairman Pastor 
suggested that Ms. Valencia check to see what the ramifications are in delaying 
this recertification and then discuss same with Mr. McDaniel.  He inquired of 
Bryan Chambers, Chief Deputy County Attorney, if there would be any legal 
ramifications.  Mr. Chambers stated that there is probably a legal aspect to 
anything.  He stated, “If this is essentially before the Board for its approval and 
if it’s approved, it goes to the governor, who makes the final approval.  So I’m 
not sure that having it a temporary or conditional approval by this Board today 
is something that the Board could then take back at a later date.  Once this 
Board approves this, if it does, and the governor takes an action, I think they 
are probably in until the next time they have to reapply or the next time it 
comes up again.”  Ms. Valencia explained again that this recertification is done 
every 2 years.  As new members are appointed, those are also brought to the 
Board for approval.  Supervisor Dawson repeated her motion to postpone 
action on Item 5C, the reappointment of the Gila County members on the 
Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board membership for recertification until the 
Board has reviewed it at its November 16, 2010, meeting.  The motion was 
seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin and unanimously approved.   

 At this time, Chairman Pastor returned to address Regular Agenda item 4H.   

 4H. Information/Discussion/Action for Board of Supervisors' direction on 
how to utilize unspent Obligation Bond monies.   

 Mr. Stratton stated that 13 months ago he made a presentation to the Board 
about the general obligation funds, which the Board approved to go to the bond 
market.  At that time the County did receive the best interest rate on the bonds 
in 40 years.  The cycle of bond construction has allowed the County to do 



19 

many more projects than were originally anticipated.  The original projects 
included the women’s jail dormitory, 3 new facilities—the Public Works 
Administration Offices/Community Development Division, the Road 
Yard/Shop, the Facilities/Sign Shop building—and the purchase of the new 
Administration Offices in Payson.   Upon completion of those projects, there 
was a substantial amount of unobligated money left due to savings on the 
initial projects.  The original engineer’s estimate for the 3 new buildings was 
$4,084,567; however, the total actual bids received were only $2,000,837, 
which resulted in a savings of approximately $1.2 million.  The final purchase 
price of the building for the Administration offices in Payson also resulted in 
additional savings.  The savings allowed for other projects to be reviewed.  In a 
meeting of staff and consultants, Mr. Stratton advised that additional projects 
have been reviewed, which he presented to the Board in a PowerPoint 
presentation.  He began with an update on the progress of the new Public 
Works Administration building project showing photos of the various phases of 
the building, which is 60 feet wide by 200 feet long, 12,000 square feet.  He 
then showed the progress of the building of the Facilities/Sign Shop building, 
which has a mezzanine level, and reviewed some of the problems in the pouring 
of the concrete slab.  Mr. Stratton advised that all of the water lines are in and 
he has been in contact with the Globe Fire Department about getting water to 
the fire hydrants to avoid stopping construction.  He also advised that Arizona 
Water Company has filed a claim against Gila County and the contractor, who 
is doing the construction, claiming that the contractor for the County broke 
their line causing them $21,000 worth of damage.  The County has disputed 
that claim.  He stated that Arizona Water Company is meeting internally 
tomorrow on this issue and hopefully it will be resolved.  In the meantime, the 
County has moved its Klien tank from Payson to just east of the new Facilities 
building and has welded on fittings that will hook up to a Globe fire truck.  So 
everything is installed, the hydrants are in place, the water lines are completed 
and all the underground water system is completed; however, Arizona Water 
Company is refusing to put water to the hydrants until Gila County pays their 
claim or if it’s settled.  Mr. Stratton advised that documentation has been 
provided by the City of Globe, Gila County and the contractor’s fire engineer, 
and hopefully that information will help Arizona Water Company see that the 
information they received from their internal organization was not correct and 
that the dispute and the claim should be relinquished.  Mr. Stratton stated 
that if it can’t be settled, he will come back before the Board to discuss other 
options.  He advised that the Globe Fire Department has been very cooperative.  
Supervisor Dawson inquired about the cost of bringing the Klien tank down 
from Payson and making the welding fittings for it.  Mr. Stratton replied that 
the cost was approximately $1,000 as it was done in-house.  He stated that the 
most expensive part was buying water at another meter from Arizona Water 
Company to fill the 12,000 gallon tank.  Chairman Pastor inquired if bringing 
that tank down here jeopardizes any of the needs for that tanker in northern 
Gila County.  Mr. Stratton replied, “Only if there’s a fire.  The County does have 
another Klien tank at the landfill up there, which could be dropped and moved 



20 

very quickly.”  The next portion of the presentation was about the Roads/Auto 
Shop project with photos showing the progress.  This was followed by the 
progress and photos of the new Women’s Jail Dormitory.  Mr. Stratton advised 
that he met with Arizona Public Service this morning and the County will be 
bringing in a generator that was previously purchased and it will be placed on 
a pad to be used to provide emergency power for the new dormitory as well as 
the jail and administration portion of the existing jail.  There will be about a 
30-minute electrical outage this Thursday during the switchover for the 
administration offices only.  There is another small generator that will provide 
backup emergency power for the dispatch and jail area.  Mr. Stratton then 
showed photos and discussed the new Administration offices in Payson, which 
also houses the Payson Community Development Division offices in the back 
portion.   Mr. Stratton then moved on to a presentation on the other proposed 
projects that could be completed with the savings from the original bond 
projects.  He began by showing an interior photo of what was formerly the 
Central Heights Complex Cafeteria, which is about 6,000 square feet.  He 
introduced Karen Page, who was in Payson, and stated that she is an architect 
that works for the Community Development Division in Payson.  Mr. Stratton 
explained that the plan review work is a little bit slow now, so he was tapping 
in-house resources to save the County some money on these proposed plans.  
He presented a Cafeteria floor plan that Ms. Page drew up in consultation with 
Linda Eastlick, Elections Director, and Tiffany Poarch, Public Fiduciary, to 
house their departments.  The Elections Department is currently located at the 
Courthouse and also utilizes storage units in various other locations.  The 
Public Fiduciary is currently located in a rented facility.  This would bring them 
together in one location and allow the Elections Department to comply with 
State voting requirements for elections.  There would also be an area for an 
additional conference room and 2 restrooms.  He advised that the items being 
stored in this building for Emergency Services have been moved to a 40-foot 
van with temperature control.  Vice-Chairman Martin commented that she 
thought this was a good use of that space.  Mr. Stratton continued with 
discussion on the Cafeteria building stating that the roof was recently replaced 
with a membrane welded roof at a surprisingly low cost of $6,400.  A sewer 
system is now available to the building, all the broken windows have been 
replaced with dual-pane energy-efficient windows and water and electricity are 
located just across the breezeway and will be brought into this building by the 
contractor.  When the entire Central Heights complex was first remodeled, 
conduit was run for this particular building for the future so that is in place.  If 
this project is approved by the Board, it is hoped that advertising for bids will 
be approved by the Board by November 16, 2010.  The Board discussed with 
Mr. Stratton the various entrances, exits, parking and security for the Elections 
Department during election times, etc.  Mr. Stratton then presented 
information on the proposed remodel of the Guerrero complex and the options 
of which departments to move into that building once it is completed.  He 
stated that it was initially proposed that the Probation Department would move 
into the Guerrero building; however, it was a tight fit so other options are being 



21 

proposed for Probation.  The Guerrero building could then be used to house 
Administrative Services, the Deputy County Manager’s office, the Library 
District, Finance Department and Personnel (Human Resources) at a cost of 
approximately $50,000 for remodeling.  For Probation to go into the Guerrero 
building the remodeling costs would be have approximately $250,000.  The 
next slide presented was a layout of the Guerrero building, which Mr. Stratton 
reviewed with the Board showing where the various departments could be 
located.  The Board members noted these changes as seeming to be a better 
use of the Guerrero building space.  Mr. Stratton then reviewed with the Board 
the proposed 9-1-1 Dispatch Center to be located at 1342 E. Monroe Street.  
Mr. Stratton stated that this came about after a meeting with Sheriff Armer 
and Matthew Bolinger, Emergency Services Director, in August because Qwest 
advised Gila County that it had $300,000 worth of 9-1-1 equipment at the 
State that the County needed to move elsewhere or start utilizing it at the end 
of October.  This left 2 options—to move the equipment to an already 
overcrowded environment in the Dispatch office at the Sheriff’s Office and then 
move it later at a minimum cost of $30,000 or try to find a location where it 
could be permanently installed, which is the choice that was made.  The 9-1-1 
Dispatch Center will be located in a building tied to the current Auto Shop 
Office facilities by the Courthouse.  He reviewed the layout of the 9-1-1 
Dispatch Center with the Board showing where everything will be located, 
including the IT/radio room, restrooms, and additional space to add a fourth 
console in the future.  Eventually, once the new Shop building is completed, 
then the Sheriff’s Office Evidence Room and an area for the detectives will be 
located here allowing for more relief space at the Sheriff’s Office.  The next 
project Mr. Stratton reviewed with the Board was a proposal to move the mail 
room from inside the Courthouse to a new building across the parking lot from 
the County Attorney’s Office.  He reviewed the layout of the mail room, which 
showed it would be 15 feet wide by 30 feet long, which is 100 square feet more 
space than the current mail room and would have a loading dock.  He also 
discussed the various security issues that could arise with the mail service.  
The next proposal Mr. Stratton presented was for the first floor of the 
Courthouse building, which currently houses the mail room, the Constable, the 
Finance Department, the IT Department, a janitor’s room and phone closet.  He 
noted that early on in discussions with Judge Cahill and staff, it was going to 
be proposed that this area become a third hearing room for the Superior Court 
and a judge’s chambers.  He showed a conceptual drawing done by Lois 
Monarrez showing this area to be made to look like a store front.  The IT 
Department would be relocated to the new Public Works complex; however, 
part of the equipment would remain at the Courthouse.  Mr. Stratton then 
reviewed proposals for the second floor of the Courthouse.  The area that is 
currently occupied by Personnel and the Elections Department could then 
house the School Superintendent’s Office.  This would include closing off the 
current hallway.  Ms. O’Dell, who was present in Payson for the meeting, stated 
that she felt that retaining the School Superintendent’s Office in the 
Courthouse would be a very positive move.  The School Superintendent’s 



22 

current office on the first floor of the Courthouse could then possibly be used 
for the expansion of the County Attorney’s Office.  Mr. Stratton then explained 
some of the proposed changes for the first floor including the County Attorney’s 
Office.   

 At this time, Chairman Pastor called for a recess and then reconvened the 
meeting at 12:41 p.m.   

 Mr. Stratton continued with his presentation on the proposed changes for the 
County Attorney’s Office explaining that it is hoped that the County Attorney 
employees now located in the Michelson building in downtown Globe (the old 
Carmed’s building) could be moved to the first floor of the Courthouse.  Then 
the 32 employees in the Probation Department could be moved into the 
Michelson building.  He again emphasized that these are just proposals.  He 
also noted that he was approached by a local realtor last week about a client 
that might be interested in the Michelson building.  He stated that the 
Michelson building was appraised about 7 years ago and the appraisal might 
be lower now; however, he quoted the realtor a figure that the County would 
need to make things work monetarily to relocate Probation elsewhere.  In 
conclusion on the proposed projects, Mr. Stratton stated that the bond money 
was received on October 22, 2010, so there’s been a lot of progress made in a 
year.  He showed a pie chart reflecting that there were 6 original projects and 
he is now proposing 8 more utilizing the bond proceeds that weren’t used on 
the original projects, plus some capital improvement project (CIP) funds that 
have been carried over for security issues.  That completed Mr. Stratton’s 
PowerPoint presentation.   He then moved on to present a spreadsheet of the 
costs of the various projects.  These costs included the amounts that were 
projected for the original projects, the actual costs of the original projects, 
planned costs including $300,000 in building contingency funds and the 
proposed new project costs.  Chairman Pastor inquired about the proposed 
purchase of some IT equipment and inquired if that could be purchased with 
bond money.  Mr. Stratton explained that this equipment is construction 
equipment for those buildings such as servers, etc. that is necessary for the 
operation of the facilities; however, the money could not be used to purchase 
furniture or things of that nature.  Mr. Stratton reviewed the original bond 
funds, the HURF (Highway User Revenue Funds) contribution of $1.4 million 
and miscellaneous revenue, which is interest received on the bond money.  Mr. 
Stratton advised that if everything comes in as projected, there will still be a 
balance of $914,798 that could be utilized for further construction or 
remodeling projects or the funds could possibly be put into an account for a 
10-year call.  Mr. Stratton concluded a review of the costs by stating that these 
additional projects are being proposed; however, he would want to move very 
slowly into them until all the final costs are received on the original projects.  
The numbers on each project are monitored weekly and staff is onsite daily 
overseeing these projects.  Mr. Stratton stated that because the ADA 
(Americans Disability Act) project at the front and side of the Courthouse as 



23 

well as some security issues will be paid for from capital improvement funds, 
he recommended moving forward on those projects.  The final presentation 
item was a review of the timelines for the projected starting and completion 
dates for the original bond projects as well as the new proposed ones.  He 
noted that the percentage complete was not the building process, but was the 
percentage of funds that have been expended to date.  He also reviewed a 
privacy wall that is being constructed by the new Public Works complex.  
Chairman Pastor inquired if any grant monies were being pursued for items 
like solar technology grants.  Mr. Stratton replied that the County has received 
a $193,000 grant in ARRA funds and a project being proposed for those funds 
will be for new heating/cooling units at the new Payson Administration office, a 
solar water heater for the jail, etc.  Chairman Pastor requested a copy of Mr. 
Stratton’s presentation for further review, which Mr. Stratton agreed to supply.  
Each of the Board members thanked Mr. Stratton for the presentation and 
update of the projects and all the hard work that has been accomplished to 
date.  Mr. Stratton stated that this has been a real team effort and he also 
thanked the department heads and elected officials for their cooperation in 
trying to meet their needs based on what the County can afford.  Chairman 
Pastor stated, “So this is an agenda item for us to consider as to what direction 
we want to utilize the unspent obligation bond monies.  I’m not quite sure what 
all that means.”  Mr. Stratton stated, “If I may make a recommendation, go 
back to the spreadsheet—the green and brown items.  We obviously know we 
have to finish the original projects and the end is near in sight on those.  The 
privacy wall has been started.  I’m very comfortable with moving forward with 
the Cafeteria Remodel and the 9-1-1 Call Center.  I would also like to move 
forward with the ADA Access and Mail Room.  Those are out of the capital 
improvement security funds.  For the Guerrero building, that’s not a lot of 
money, but we just need to know if the Board approves of the movements of 
those departments to that building or not.”  Mr. McDaniel stated, “I think this 
item is in the category of this is a staff update and a projection of what we are 
proposing to change in the previously approved projects in the bond program.  
I think we would be remiss if we tried to go to the next step and approve 
specific projects and dollars.  Mr. Chambers advised me of that earlier.  So I 
think what we are looking for is direction with regard to the expenditure of the 
bond funds in a general sense and moving to the other projects, not necessarily 
tying them to dollar numbers at this point.  Just make a motion that you are in 
concurrence with the current status and the direction that we are proposing.”  
Mr. Stratton stated, “I would like to assure the Board again that as we move 
into these projects, we are not moving quickly or moving slowly into and 
watching the dollars as we go to ensure whatever we start we have the dollars 
to finish it before starting something else.”  Supervisor Dawson brought up the 
issue of the IT Department relocating away from the Courthouse, which was 
followed by discussion with IT Director, Darryl Griffin, assuring the Board that 
his department could be on site within minutes to resolve any issues.  Mr. 
Chambers stated that in preparation for the motion, he would caution the 
Board that whatever the motion is, any action taken today cannot actually 



24 

commit to any additional funding to projects that haven’t already gone before 
this Board.  As far as actually committing any funding, that would need to be 
brought back to the Board at a future meeting because this agenda item was 
listed as an update and the agenda didn’t specifically list these projects.  He 
recommended that a more cautious way would be for the Board to make a 
motion accepting the plan, but not committing any funding that hasn’t already 
been approved by the Board.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded 
by Supervisor Dawson, the Board unanimously adopted the conceptual plan as 
presented with the understanding that the specifics will be coming back to the 
Board as necessary with the funding.  Mr. Chambers stated the motion was 
alright as long as the understanding is that it doesn’t actually commit to 
spending on any new projects that haven’t already been approved by the Board.  
Chairman Pastor thanked Mr. Stratton for all of the work put into this item.  

Item 6 - CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address issue(s) within the Board’s 
jurisdiction.  Board members may not discuss items that are not 
specifically identified on the agenda.  Therefore, pursuant to Arizona 
Revised Statute §38-431.01(G), action taken as a result of public 
comment will be limited to directing staff to study the matter, responding 
to criticism, or scheduling the matter for further discussion and decision 
at a future date. 
 
There were no requests to speak from the public. 
 
Item 7 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the Chief 
Administrator may present a brief summary of current events.  No action 
may be taken on issues presented. 
 
Each Board member presented information on current events.    
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 1:18 p.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
________________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk 



1 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  November 16, 2010 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR      JOHN F. NELSON 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN      By: Marilyn Brewer 
Vice-Chairman             Chief Deputy Clerk 
 
SHIRLEY L. DAWSON      Gila County Courthouse 
Member        Globe, Arizona 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman 
(via ITV conference); Shirley L. Dawson, Supervisor; Don McDaniel, Jr., County 
Manager; John Nelson, Deputy County Manager; Marian Sheppard, Chief 
Deputy Clerk; and Bryan Chambers, Chief Deputy County Attorney. 
 
Item 1 – Call to Order – Pledge of Allegiance – Invocation 
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a regular session at 10:00 a.m. 
this date in the Board of Supervisors hearing room.  Shirley Dawson led the 
Pledge of Allegiance and Reverend Barbie Morton of the Globe First Christian 
Church delivered the invocation.   
 
Item 2 - PRESENTATIONS:  
 

 2A. Introduction of Brian Tapp, the new Executive Director of Central 
Arizona Association of Governments (CAAG), and to present an overview 
of CAAG activities.   

 
 Maxine Brown, retiring Executive Director of CAAG, gave a PowerPoint 

presentation entitled CAAG 101.  The Mission Statement of CAAG is “effective 
planning and model programs, which offer creative solutions to the unique 
needs within Region V.”  Region V consists of Gila and Pinal Counties, which 
includes 17 incorporated cities/towns and 5 tribal governments (3 are 
members).  The population represented totals 384,016 over a 10,134 square-
mile area.  A chart was reviewed showing the various CAAG office locations.  
CAAG is divided into the following Divisions:  1) Planning Division, which 
includes Community Development Block Grant, Economic Development, 
Environmental Planning, Planning Research and Transportation; 2) Social 
Services Division, which includes Adult Job Training, Youth Job Training and 
Pathways out of Poverty; 3) Consulting Services, which includes aspire 
Facilitation Services, Grant Administration/Project Management and Other 



2 

Technical Support; 4) Administration includes the Executive Director and 
Fianance.  Ms. Brown then reviewed in detail the assistance offered in each of 
the Divisions.  Bill Leister, CAAG Transportation Manager, provided additional 
detail regarding Transportation Planning.  He noted that some of the ARRA 
(American Recovery and Reinvestment Act) funding through CAAG was used for 
the Ice House Canyon Bridge in Globe.  Under the Public Transit program, 
funds were also used for the Globe-Miami Dial-A-Ride program.  Cathy Melvin, 
CAAG Program Director for Social Services, reviewed the training and support 
services available for the economically disadvantaged, elderly and youth.  She 
noted that the contract to implement the Workforce Investment Act is 
contracted through Gila County and serves both Gila and Pinal Counties.  Ms. 
Brown then addressed what the future holds for CAAG.  She will be retiring 
and Brian Tapp has been named as CAAG’s new Executive Director.  Mr. Tapp 
spoke briefly on his background in community development, public transit and 
housing rehabilitation.  He looks forward to the challenges ahead and setting 
CAAG up as the leader for the State and southwest region.  He stated that he 
looks forward to working with the elected officials and staff and his door is 
always open to assist in any way possible.  Chairman Pastor welcomed Mr. 
Tapp to Gila County and advised that he will be serving on the CAAG 
committee, replacing Supervisor Dawson.  Supervisor Dawson stated that one 
of the things that came up in the recent legislative session and in CAAG 
meetings and since Pinal County has a new supervisor is whether Pinal County 
should keep its partnership with Gila County or join with Pima and Maricopa 
Counties.  She wondered where that would leave Gila County.  She stated that 
this CAAG partnership was formed by legislative action and to change that 
would take legislative action.  Supervisor Dawson stated that when this idea 
was discussed at a CAAG meeting, she got the feeling that the question was 
why Gila County should get any of the funding; however, she believes rural 
Arizona needs to be strongly represented.  Each Board member thanked Ms. 
Brown for her service through CAAG to Gila County and wished her well in her 
retirement.  

 
 2B. Presentation by Patricia Power, Vice President of Bose Public Affairs 

Group, regarding recent lobbying efforts to secure federal funding for Gila 
County projects.  
 
Patricia Power, Vice President of Bose Public Affairs Group, a consulting group 
for Gila County, gave a PowerPoint presentation entitled “Gila County-
Washington Update.”  Ms. Power stated that the lame duck session began 
yesterday in Washington, D.C. and mostly organizational work is being done 
along with reviewing the issues that arose during the General Election.  There 
will be the options of either working together and getting things accomplished 
or there will continue to be more gridlock.  Another one of the big questions in 
Washington will be what is going to happen with earmarks.  Regarding the 
budget process, there will be a big focus on how to move forward and make 
sure the country is going in the right direction.  She then briefly reviewed the 



3 

Gila County-Federal Issues that are currently on the table, which include the 
following:    
1) Resolution Copper - This project has made some progress in the Senate, but 
it’s been held up in the House of Representatives (House); however, there is still 
opportunity to get something done during this lame duck session.  
Congresswoman Ann Kirkpatrick has been working very hard to try to get this 
accomplished.  Both Supervisor Dawson and Chairman Pastor attended a 
meeting back in March in Washington, D.C. with the Speaker’s Office to try to 
help get past some of the local issues with Congressman Raul Grijalva.  So that 
is still high on the agenda to try to get accomplished; however, whether it will 
get done or not mostly will depend on how things go this week. 
2) Tonto Creek Bridge funding and authorization and the Houston-Mesa Road 
authorization and funding - These 2 projects are probably most appropriate to 
talk about together.  Ms. Power stated that she was glad CAAG was here this 
morning because it’s their role in how transportation projects move forward in 
the future and may be increased after Congress decides what to do about 
earmarks.  There are 2 different pieces of legislation moving forward on 
transportation projects.  One is the reauthorization of the Federal 
Transportation Program, which had some movement in the House.  Gila 
County submitted applications for both the Tonto Creek Bridge as a $25 
million project and the Houston-Mesa Road as a $10 million project.  Those 
were submitted to both Congresswoman Ann Kirkpatrick and Congressman Ed 
Pastor.  The Tonto Creek Bridge was forwarded by Congresswoman Kirkpatrick 
and the Houston-Mesa road was forwarded by both members to the 
Subcommittee.  The Subcommittee put a bill together, but it didn’t move past 
them.  So that will probably wrap up at the end of this session and will be high 
on the agenda for one of the things to get accomplished in the next Congress.  
The groundwork is laid for that and all the work we did in getting that together 
will be redone and resubmitted as they move forward into the next Congress.  
There is also a request for Houston-Mesa funding in the appropriations 
process. 
3) Job Corps/East Globe Sewer funding – This is not really a request for 
construction of the Job Corps facility, but it was a request for funding for the 
sewer project in east Globe.  That project was submitted to Congresswoman 
Kirkpatrick’s and Senator Jon Kyl’s office.  Senator McCain does not take 
project requests so it was not forwarded to his office.  That project remains on 
the table and the best opportunity for that will be next year. 
4) Tonto Basin flooding project – That’s a project for the U.S. Army Corps of 
Engineers.  Congresswoman Kirkpatrick forwarded that on to the 
Subcommittee and Ms. Power’s office worked closely with Congressman 
Pastor’s office on that project.  Congressman Pastor is the Acting Chairman of 
the Subcommittee that will fund Corps projects for the coming year.  It was not 
included on the list nor was any other new start project in the country so that 
will have to stay on the table and typically these things have to be requested 
once or twice before they get included.  It was not far enough up the list to get 
included.   



4 

5) Forest thinning funds – These project funds were requested through the 
appropriations process.  They were not forwarded by Congresswoman 
Kirkpatrick or Senator Kyl.  Ms. Power’s office will continue to work closely 
with the U.S. Forest Service in making clear what the needs are in the Tonto 
National Forest and that has taken the last few years to get funds available as 
they go through their budget process in the course of the year.   
6) Young Road funding and Control Road funding – The funding for these roads 
was requested again both to Congresswoman Kirkpatrick and to Senator Kyl.  
The Young Road was not forwarded; the Control Road was forwarded.  Ms. 
Kirkpatrick requested $3 million and the committee granted $1 million.  That 
bill along with all the other appropriations bills are wrapped into what now is 
possibly another continuing resolution and it remains to be seen what 
Congress does over the next couple of weeks.   
 
Ms. Power continued her presentation by providing a current “Status of County 
Projects,” as follows: 
1) The Transportation Reauthorization Bill is still pending; the Tonto Creek 
Bridge and Houston-Mesa Road were submitted in the House.  Ms. Power noted 
that she had already discussed these items.   
2) The TIGER grant applications for the Tonto Creek Bridge were not awarded. 
The County submitted an application for a TIGER 1 Grant.  She noted that the 
stimulus funds (ARRA funds) created a little bit of an eye opener for what level 
of competition there is in the grant process.  For the TIGER 1 grants, $1.5 
billion was available.  The Department of Transportation (DOT) received 1,500 
applications totaling nearly $60 billion in projects.  They awarded 51 grants 
out of the 1,500 for a total of $1.5 billion.  TIGER 2 grants were funded 
through the appropriations process, not the stimulus funds.  For TIGER 2, 
there was $600 million available and Gila County resubmitted an application.  
The DOT received 1,000 applications totaling $19 billion in projects.  A total of 
42 TIGER 2 construction grants were awarded at the end of October in 40 
states, but no grants were awarded in the State of Arizona.  So the competition 
is very stiff. 
3)  The Control Road funding is pending in FY 2011 Transportation-HUD 
Appropriations Bill. 
4) The U.S. Forest Service discussions on the Tonto National Forest and 4FRI 
are ongoing.  In addition to the focus on the needs of the Tonto National Forest, 
Ms. Power has also been working on the 4FRI project, which received funding 
earlier this year.  Congresswoman Kirkpatrick’s office provided a lot of support.  
Ms. Power will need to spend some time with incoming Congressman Paul 
Gosar explaining where the County is on that and Senator Kyl’s office is very 
focused on that as well and has been very helpful.  Senator McCain’s office has 
been kept well informed and to the extent it doesn’t look like a project, Ms. 
Power believes Senator McCain can be counted on to be helpful as well.   
Ms. Power continued her presentation by providing an update on the impact of 
the General Election on Washington, D.C.  She showed some maps of the 
states and how each voted according to party lines and those that are still 



5 

undetermined at this time as the election results continue to come in.  The 
General Election resulted in the shift of power from Democrats to Republicans 
in the House and the loss of many Democratic Senators, although the Senate is 
still controlled by Democrats.  She also reviewed Arizona’s election results.  Ms. 
Power then reviewed what the new Congress will do on FY2011 spending, the 
debt limit, Medicare “doc fix,” the FY2012 budget, the control of federal 
spending, the deficit and debt.   Next reviewed were pie charts showing how 
federal monies are spent as follows: Social Security-20%; Medicare-14%; 
Medicaid 10%; Unemployment and Welfare-13%; interest on the debt-9%; 
defense-17% and everything else-17%.  She explained the differences in 
discretionary funding and entitlements.  Discretionary funds are the funds that 
Congress addresses yearly and include the defense funding and “everything 
else” category, which includes transportation, infrastructure, health care, 
labor, etc.  Entitlements include Social Security, Medicare, Medicaid, 
unemployment and welfare and interest on the debt, which are mandated 
expenses, so only 1/3 of the budget (the discretionary funds) is addressed each 
year by Congress.  The next chart showed a comparison of spending for the 
years 1965, 1985 and 2007, which showed that the portion of the budget 
devoted to mandatory spending has almost doubled in 42 years.  The 
projections are for moving forward next year that if Congress defunded 
everything in the “everything else” category and totally wiped out everything 
but the defense budget and the entitlements, the government could still not 
balance its budget.  Ms. Power concluded her presentation by “putting things 
into perspective” with a chart showing projected spending for 1990 through 
2019.  She noted that everything the government is appropriating moving 
forward for 2012 will be done on borrowed funds.  So the pressures to cut 
spending are very real.  The Pledge to America by the new incoming 
Republicans is to cut out earmarks and bring the top line spending numbers 
down to 2008 levels for a savings of $100 billion.  There is also the pledge to 
repeal the Health Care Law and put in place some real reform.  Ms. Power 
explained that by cutting out earmarks, that will not cut spending and went 
into an explanation of why that is true.  By cutting earmarks, it would also give 
the administration that much more authority to decide on projects.  Ms. Power 
concluded her presentation by reviewing Gila County’s goals for 2011, which 
include continued work on the following projects:  Resolution Copper, Tonto 
Creek Bridge, Forest Funding, Job Corps and Transportation Projects.  Ms. 
Power stated that she assumes that all of Gila County’s issues that have been 
on the table will continue and she looks forward to getting further direction 
from the Board.  Supervisor Dawson stated, “Nothing personal, but I go back to 
the fact that I appreciate the work you have done for us, but I really feel that 
there is question as to government and lobbyists and the effectiveness...I feel 
like I can get in the door of people in Washington, D.C. probably easier than 
you can and I think that has proven true.  Senator McCain has held strongly to 
his no earmarks.  As you explained there are ways around that and Job Corps 
has taken that route around it.  I just thank you for your work, but we will be 
proceeding with our own efforts...”  Supervisor Martin thanked Ms. Power and 



6 

her group for finding a way for the County to save on its match for the Tonto 
Creek Bridge, in getting the County’s match reduced from a 20% match to 3%, 
which is a significant savings for Gila County.  She agreed with Supervisor 
Dawson that Ms. Power has not been able to get her in to see a congressman; 
however, she has been able to get Vice-Chairman Martin in to see a lot of staff 
of the different committees as well as the administrative staff, which resulted in 
starting the funding coming into the Tonto National Forest as well as 
continuing that funding in the amount of $12 million.  This was not done 
through earmarks, but through working with the administration and the U.S. 
Forest Service and would not have been accomplished otherwise.  Vice-
Chairman Martin stated that she understands the fight in Congress on 
earmarks; however, in reviewing the map of Gila County, it is 96% federally-
owned land and earmarks helped the County by being able to shift some of 
those costs and at least getting the attention of Congress as to the plight of Gila 
County sitting with 96% federal land or Indian reservation.  She stated that of 
the 4% remaining, it is only 1.5% on which the County actually operates.  Vice-
Chairman Martin stated, “I’m looking forward over the next couple of years to 
working more with the administrative side by following the paths that Ms. 
Power has helped us open because that’s where the help is going to be in the 
next couple of years is within the U.S. Forest Service itself, within the 
President’s Council on Environmental Quality and within some of those 
committees where we are well known and in which we continue to work.”  
Chairman Pastor thanked Ms. Power for the help she provided to him when he 
was in Washington, D.C. and the appointments in which she allowed him to 
participate because the key is getting in the door and making yourself known.  
He also thanked Ms. Power for her presentation.  Ms. Power stated that she will 
continue to stay present in the areas that could bring help to Gila County.  She 
stated, “There’s no reason to believe that a reduction in earmarks is going to 
hurt.  It’s going to create challenges, but may create opportunities as well.”  
Vice-Chairman Martin stated that Resolution Copper and 4FRI has caught the 
attention of many in the State because of the opportunity for immediate jobs.  
Vice-Chairman Martin stated that in the short term, she will continue pushing 
on those projects.  Chairman Pastor stated that he believes it is important to 
review all the avenues available and he also wants to meet with Congressman 
Gosar to update him on the projects in which Gila County is interested.  Ms. 
Power stated that the news out of Washington is not good with some really 
hard decisions to be made; however, there are opportunities and some of these 
projects might be done with public/private partnerships.  Chairman Pastor 
agreed and stated that is something the County needs to begin exploring.  Ms. 
Power thanked the Board for the opportunity to serve Gila County.   
 
Item 3 – PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 3A. Public Hearing - Information/Discussion/Action to approve Order No. 
LL-10-07, an application submitted by Michael R. Jelinek for a person to 
person transfer of a Series 9 liquor store license with an interim permit to 
operate for Tall Pines Market located in Payson.  (Marian Sheppard)  



7 

 
 Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk, stated that this application is a person 

to person transfer of a Series 9 liquor store license for Tall Pines Market, which 
is located in Christopher Creek.  The application was posted by the Sheriff’s 
Office at the establishment for 20 days and an internal review was also 
completed by the Building Permitting and Health Departments to ensure that 
all Gila County requirements were met.  No issues were found and no 
objections were received from the public.  Ms. Sheppard recommended 
approval to the Arizona Department of Liquor Liceses and Control.  Chairman 
Pastor opened the public hearing and called for comments from the public; 
none were received.  He closed the public hearing and entertained a motion.  
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the 
Board unanimously approved Order No. LL-10-07, an application submitted by 
Michael R. Jelinek for a person to person transfer of a Series 9 liquor store 
license with an interim permit to operate for Tall Pines Market located in 
Payson. 

 Item 4 - REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  

4A. Information/Discussion/Action to canvass the election results 
contained in the Official Canvass of the General Election held November 
2, 2010, in Gila County, Arizona, and declare the results official.   
 
Linda Eastlick, Elections Director, stated that although the election is over, 
there is a recount pending on Proposition 112 because that vote is within 123 
votes and ARS §16-600 provides that if a vote is less than 200 votes, there will 
be an automatic recount.  However, the Board will still canvass the vote and 
declare the results official and the State will also canvass the vote on November 
29th and then the recount will begin at a cost to the state of $150,000 to 
$200,000.  She thanked her staff and those of the Recorder’s Office for the long 
hours in getting this election completed.  She advised that there was a huge 
voter turnout for this election.  Of the 13,735 permanent early voter ballots 
that were mailed out, 82.3%, or 11,308, were returned.  Ms. Eastlick then 
reviewed each section of the summary of the election with the Board, which 
showed that the voter turnout in Arizona was 55.65% compared to Gila 
County’s turnout rate of 60.2%--third highest in the State.  She advised that 
120 early ballots were rejected for various reasons.  On the summary of the 
785 provisional ballots cast, 180 were rejected mainly because people were not 
registered to vote.  Supervisor Dawson inquired if Ms. Eastlick had compared 
the 2008 election with this election as to the number of rejected ballots.  Ms. 
Eastlick had not done so, but will provide that comparison to the Board.  The 
last section reviewed provided all of the details for the election.  Each Board 
member thanked Ms. Eastlick, Recorder Sadie Dalton and their staffs for all 
their hard work in running a smooth election.  Supervisor Dawson stated that 
she spent election day at San Carlos and inquired of Ms. Eastlick about looking 
for a better location at San Carlos for the next election for safety purposes.  



8 

Chairman Pastor inquired about any requirements for changing polling places.  
Ms. Eastlick stated that the County would be required to get approval from the 
U.S. Department of Justice in order to change the polling location, but the 
County could request that change.  She stated that because the County will be 
doing redistricting this fall and the following year, the County will have an 
opportunity to review the entire County, not only for polling locations, but also 
the number of precincts, etc.  So the entire issue of precincting and where the 
County is holding elections will be thoroughly discussed in the upcoming year 
prior to the 2012 elections.  Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by 
Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously canvassed the election results 
contained in the Official Canvass of the General Election held November 2, 
2010, in Gila County, Arizona, and declared the results official.  
 

 4B. Information/Discussion/Action to approve Professional Consulting 
Services Contract No. 2010/100 between Gila County and Federal 
Compliance Consulting LLC in the amount of $105,000 whereby the 
supplier will provide Redistricting and Bailout consulting services for Gila 
County and affected jurisdictions through June 30, 2012.   

 
    Ms. Eastlick stated that redistricting will be coming up next year.  As a result 

of the decennial census, all the states in the U.S. will be going through at least 
a review of the legislative districts in their state and Arizona will be going 
through that review as well, which will trigger a review of each of the counties.   
Sometimes counties, because of population growth, will need to add more 
supervisors, but that will not be the case in Gila County.  However, there will 
be a need to review the districts themselves to ensure that there is an 
appropriate population distribution.  That will be quite an undertaking to 
review all of the census data, there will be tremendous statistical calculations 
that have to occur and public meetings will need to be held so that the public 
can make comments and be involved in the process.  In the past, the County 
has used Tony Sissons, a statistician, as a consultant to help the County 
through the process because it is a major undertaking.  This year, Ms. Eastlick 
requested that Bruce Adelson, Attorney at Law, be added to the team because 
Mr. Adelson has worked with the U.S. Department of Justice in Washington, 
D.C. for a number of years reviewing the submissions from Arizona.  She stated 
that the County would also like to tag onto the redistricting process a review for 
what is called a U.S. Department of Justice bailout.  Because Arizona is under 
a consent decree for another 25 years due to discriminary practices of voting in 
its history, every change that occurs in the election process must first be 
approved by the U.S. Department of Justice.   It is a major burden for the 
County, as well as all the special districts within Gila County, cities and towns.  
Every jurisdiction in the County as well as the State of Arizona has to comply 
with this consent decree.  Gila County has been very fortunate in that it has 
not had any discrimination charges in the past and, therefore, is in a position 
to go forward and ask to bail out from this onerous administrative burden.  It 
will take a tremendous amount of research and will require retroactive filings, 



9 

which will be accepted by the U.S. Justice Department, so the County would 
like to do that in the next year and a half.  She stated that of the $105,000 
contract being requested for approval, $80,000 is related to redistricting and 
the $25,000 will be the additional cost to do the bailout.  She requested that 
the Board approve this contract with Mr. Adelson in order to move forward.  
She stated that a kickoff meeting will be held on December 7, 2010, at 10:00 
a.m. where Mr. Sissons and Mr. Adelson will explain the redistricting and 
bailout processes to all of the elected officials and the Board of Supervisors was 
also invited.  That evening at 6:00 p.m. all of the school districts, special 
districts, cities and towns will be invited to a meeting to be held both at the 
Courthouse and in Payson by ITV about the same processes and the need for 
their support in order to bailout from that administrative burden.  Upon 
inquiry by Supervisor Dawson as to whether this amount was budgeted, Ms. 
Eastlick replied that it has been budgeted.  Vice-Chairman Martin stated that 
there may need to be more than one meeting due to the lack of space in 
Payson, to which Ms. Eastlick agreed.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, 
seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the Board unanimously approved 
Professional Consulting Services Contract No. 2010/100 between Gila County 
and Federal Compliance Consulting LLC in the amount of $105,000 whereby 
the supplier will provide Redistricting and Bailout consulting services for Gila 
County and affected jurisdictions through June 30, 2012.  
 

 4C. Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental 
Agreement between the Arizona Game and Fish Commission and the Gila 
County Sheriff's Office in the amount of $110,000 to provide adequate law 
enforcement and boating safety on Roosevelt Lake.   

 
 Claudia DalMolin, Chief Administrative Officer for the Sheriff’s Office, stated 

that these funds will help to offset the salaries for the County’s boating officers 
on Roosevelt Lake.  Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-
Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously approved an Intergovernmental 
Agreement between the Arizona Game and Fish Commission and the Gila 
County Sheriff's Office in the amount of $110,000 to provide adequate law 
enforcement and boating safety on Roosevelt Lake.   
 

 4D. Information/Discussion/Action to approve General Support 
Agreement No. 1025-002 between Gila County and Hye Tech Network & 
Security Solutions, LLC, beginning November 16, 2010, through June 30, 
2011, not to exceed 80 billable hours and/or $14,000.  State Contract 
number EPS 060043-16-A1.  
 

 Kaycee Stratton, Telecom Budget Analyst for the IT Department, stated that 
this Agreement will provide the County support for upcoming projects for 
security throughout the County’s networks and the new Public Works complex 
and finish migration through exchange through 2010.  The County has worked 
with Hye Tech Network for the past 3 years and the company provides great 



10 

support.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor 
Dawson, the Board unanimously approved General Support Agreement No. 
1025-002 between Gila County and Hye Tech Network & Security Solutions, 
LLC, beginning November 16, 2010, through June 30, 2011, not to exceed 80 
billable hours and/or $14,000.  (State Contract number EPS 060043-16-A1). 
 
4E. Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Telecommunications 
Services Agreement between Gila County and NPG Cable, Inc. for the 
period November 16, 2010, through November 15, 2013, which will 
provide point-to-point connection between the Gila County Payson 
Administration Building and the Gila County Sheriff's Office Payson Sub-
Station for a one-time installation cost of $7,500 and a monthly recurring 
cost of $825.   
 
Ms. Stratton stated that this is a 3-year telecommunications contract that will 
provide for newer technology between the Payson Sheriff’s Office and the 
Payson Board of Supervisors’ complex.  The metro fiber will provide faster, 
more reliable connectivity and is less overhead than the older T-1 technology.  
It is also less susceptible to lightning strikes and is redundant so if one leak 
fails, it will take a different route.  The County is currently paying $580/month 
for Qwest T-1 lines and for 3 megabytes of bandwidth.  With the new metro 
fiber installed, the bandwidth will increase to 5 megabytes for a total of 
$825/month.  Once the installation is complete, the County will disconnect 
from Qwest’s T-1 lines.  There will be a one-time installation charge of $7,500 
and NPG Cable, Inc. will pay the remaining $15,000 installation charge.  
Supervisor Dawson stated that because technology is changing so fast, she 
questioned the need for a 3-year contract.  Ms. Stratton stated that this was a 
requirement and called on Ron Russo, the NPG Cable representative, to provide 
more explanation.  Mr. Russo stated that the reason it is a 3-year contract is 
because the construction costs would have been higher if the County had 
chosen a shorter contract term.  The longer the term, the less a customer pays 
for the construction costs.  Vice-Chairman Martin stated that NPG Cable has 
been in the Payson area for approximately 15 years and also provides cable 
services so they are not a fly-by-night company.  She stated that the County 
has had a lot of problems with Qwest since moving into the new Administration 
Office in Payson.  Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-
Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously approved a Telecommunications 
Services Agreement between Gila County and NPG Cable, Inc. for the period 
November 16, 2010, through November 15, 2013, which will provide point-to-
point connection between the Gila County Payson Administration Building and 
the Gila County Sheriff's Office Payson Sub-Station for a one-time installation 
cost of $7,500 and a monthly recurring cost of $825.   

 4F. Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Commercial Service 
Agreement between Gila County and Cable One Commercial Services for 
the period November 16, 2010, through November 15, 2013, 



11 

to provide metro-fiber communications for the Gila County Courthouse, 
Guerrero Complex, Central Heights Facility, County Attorney's 
Office (downtown location), and the new Public Works Complex for a one-
time installation cost of $1,500 and a monthly recurring cost of $3,455.  

 Ms. Stratton stated that this is a renewal of an existing contract; however, the 
new Public Works Complex is being added to this 3-year contract.  The County 
is currently paying $2,915/month for 40 megabytes of bandwidth. The new 
contract cost $3,455/month for 50 megabytes of bandwidth.  The difference of 
$540/month will be absorbed by the IT Department.  The one-time installation 
fee of $1,500 will be paid by the Public Works Division and when the Public 
Works staff has completely moved into the new offices, an existing T-1 line over 
at the Facilities Management office at the Armory in Claypool will be 
disconnected.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor 
Dawson, the Board unanimously approved a Commercial Service 
Agreement between Gila County and Cable One Commercial Services for the 
period November 16, 2010, through November 15, 2013, to provide metro-fiber 
communications for the Gila County Courthouse, Guerrero Complex, Central 
Heights Facility, County Attorney's Office (downtown location), and the new 
Public Works Complex for a one-time installation cost of $1,500 and a 
monthly recurring cost of $3,455.  

4G. Information/Discussion/Action to approve the purchase of three (3) 
New World financial system computer software modules and associated 
hardware totaling $54,311.  
 
Joseph Heatherly, Finance Director, stated that over the past 3 months, he and 
staff have reviewed the existing infrastructure, the controls for administration 
and other departments, and reviewed the past audits, the delays in getting 
them completed and the findings that were issued by the Auditor General.  
Then Mr. Heatherly held a meeting in Globe, which was attended by 37 people 
representing all County departments and elected offices, to discuss proposed 
changes and the ramifications of certain changes in payroll, accounts payable, 
accounts receivable and procedural changes in order to get staff input, 
opinions and concerns so they could be addressed now.  A meeting was also 
held with staff in Payson for the same purpose.  Comments were provided by 
staff and compiled into one list, which was reviewed and now Mr. Heatherly 
stated he is ready to proceed, not with the changes, but with new software and 
the associated infrastructure.  This would require the purchase of 3 more 
accounting modules from New World, which would include a miscellaneous 
billings and accounts receivable module, a requisitions module, and a grants 
module.  This would provide much needed improvement in monitoring all 
activity and enable the submission of grant reports on a timely basis, allow for 
the use of requisitions in the preparation of purchase orders and will improve 
cash management.  It will also allow for accounts receivable reports and 
reports for aging in accounts payable, which the County currently does not 



12 

have.  This new program would especially help in correcting the many audit 
issues in grant reporting when comparing departmental figures with the 
financial figures, which if they are not the same can create red flags.  The 
implementation of this new software will allow the audits to be completed on 
time and will reduce the number of findings by the auditors.  Also cash 
management, the timeliness of payments to suppliers and grant reporting will 
all be improved.  Supervisor Dawson stated she was glad the audits would be 
done in a timely manner and inquired about the timeline.  Mr. Heatherly 
advised that the books can be kept open for 2 months and then the County has 
6 months to complete the audit.   He stated that there is one more issue that 
should be resolved with the auditors today for the 2009 audit and then the 
audit for 2010 will be started and should take less than 4 months.  Supervisor 
Dawson also inquired about the cost for training staff to use the new software 
because in the past the training has been very costly.  Mr. Heatherly replied 
that the initial training costs are included in the contract price, which will 
probably include training for 3 people; then those people will train the 
remaining staff.  Supervisor Dawson also inquired if Mr. Heatherly has gone 
over this information with the departments/elected offices that utilize a lot of 
grants, particularly the Sheriff’s Office.  Mr. Heatherly advised that it will not 
have much of an impact to those people as they are currently using the 
accounting system.  This grants module is going to be the system that is going 
to do the reporting side and automate a lot of activities.  There will not be 
much training involved because it’s more of a reporting tool.  Supervisor 
Dawson inquired if the enterprise accounts are in this system or still outside.  
Mr. Heatherly advised that they are still outside.  She requested a future 
meeting with Mr. Heatherly regarding the enterprise accounts as she did not 
understand the reason they are outside of the audit.  Vice-Chairman Martin 
stated that she appreciated Mr. Heatherly continuing to add to this program 
and stated that she didn’t mind the training costs in order to make full use of 
the program.  Chairman Pastor stated that he thought this was another step in 
the process of making sure the County becomes more efficient and operates 
much better and thought this was an excellent proposal.  Upon motion by 
Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board 
unanimously approved the purchase of three (3) New World financial system 
computer software modules and associated hardware totaling $54,311.  

 4H. Information/Discussion/Action for the Board of Supervisors to 
retroactively authorize Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director, 
the authority to sign various utility easements, bills of sale, and 
developer's affidavit that all liens have been paid, with Arizona Water 
Company and Arizona Public Service Company, all of which pertain to 
construction of the new Gila County facilities.   

 Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director, stated that these easements 
and bills of sale were all for the new Public Works complex.  All of the utilities 
were installed per plan as presented to the Board and were bid acccording to 



13 

the County’s process.  In order to keep the project moving, Mr. Stratton stated 
that he did sign those contracts as noted and was now requesting ratification 
for authorization to sign those documents.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman 
Martin, seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the Board unanimously retroactively 
authorized Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director, the authority to sign 
various utility easements, bills of sale, and developer's affidavit that all liens 
have been paid, with Arizona Water Company and Arizona Public Service 
Company, all of which pertain to construction of the new Gila County 
facilities.   

 4I. Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Chairman's signature 
on the Utility Easement between Gila County and Arizona Public Service 
in order for Arizona Public Service to conduct the work necessary for 
construction completion of the new Gila County Jail.   

 Mr. Stratton stated that this item did not have the same urgency as the 
previous item (in agenda item 4H) so it is going through the normal process for 
Board approval.  He recommended that the Board approve this Utility 
Easement.  Upon inquiry by Chairman Pastor as to the status of the jail 
project, Mr. Stratton advised that the project is almost ready for a final walk 
through, which was scheduled for yesterday; however, the contractor could not 
meet the deadline.  It is being rescheduled for later this month and staff will be 
scheduled to move in around the first of the year as there are some things that 
need to be completed in-house once the contractor leaves the site.  Upon 
motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board 
unanimously authorized the Chairman's signature on the Utility Easement 
between Gila County and Arizona Public Service in order for Arizona Public 
Service to conduct the work necessary for construction completion of the new 
Gila County Jail.   

4J. Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of 
Request for Sealed Bids No. 040108-1 for the Gila County Courthouse 
ADA/Access Improvement Project.  
 
Mr. Stratton stated that a couple of months ago he came before the Board 
requesting that this project be split up because of the upcoming election; 
however, the project was not able to be put out to bid prior to the election.  
Now they have regrouped and are ready to advertise for the entire project, 
which will include the east side, west side and front of the Courthouse.  
Chairman Pastor inquired if this project was identified as one of the bond 
projects.  Mr. Stratton replied that this project will be paid with capital 
improvement project funds that were included in the budget.  Upon motion by 
Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the Board 
unanimously authorized the advertisement of Request for Sealed Bids 
No. 040108-1 for the Gila County Courthouse ADA/Access Improvement 



14 

Project.  Mr. Stratton advised that this project is scheduled to be awarded in 
January and completed by April or May 2011. 
 
4K. Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of 
Request for Sealed Bids No. 092210-1 for the Central Heights Auditorium 
Remodel Project, Globe, Arizona.   
 
Mr. Stratton stated that this is one of the bond projects identified because of 
the savings from the other bond projects.  A floor plan was previously brought 
before the Board showing that this building would house the Public Fiduciary 
Department and the Elections Department.  It would allow the Elections 
Department to combine all of its elections items currently in various storage 
facilities into one area and would allow better security of the ballot boxes 
during an election.  This would also allow the Public Fiduciary Department to 
move from its current location at the Copper Mountain Inn saving the County 
$42,000/year in rent.  This project will be scheduled to be awarded in January 
and completed in early spring of 2011.  Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, 
seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously authorized the 
advertisement of Request for Sealed Bids No. 092210-1 for the Central Heights 
Auditorium Remodel Project, Globe, Arizona.   
 
4L. Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for 
Request for Sealed Bids No. 060110-1 to provide janitorial services at 
the Globe County facilities; award to the lowest, responsible, and qualified 
bidder; and authorize the Chairman's signature on the Award Contract for 
the winning bidder.   
 
John Nelson, Deputy County Manager/Clerk, stated that the Facilities 
Department received 2 bids for janitorial services for the Globe facilities to 
include the Courthouse, the Guerrero complex, the Michelson building and the 
Central Heights complex.  One bid was received from G&R’s Buff and Shine in 
the amount of $10,575/month and a second bid was received from IWC 
Supplies and Maintenance at a cost of $5,900/month.  The County is currently 
paying $10,905/month.  As a result of that significant price difference, Bob 
Hickman, Facilities Manager, had a meeting with the owner, general manager, 
and the administrative manager of the low bidder.  Reference checks were also 
completed and no problem was found with the services they provide, nor did 
the owner misunderstand was was actually being bid.  Mr. Nelson 
recommended that a contract be awarded to IWC Services and Maintenance 
(IWC, LLC) in the amount of $5,900/month.  Supervisor Dawson inquired if 
this company was local.  Mr. Nelson replied in the affirmative and Chairman 
Pastor added that IWC currently does the janitorial service for the First Things 
First building and the Department of Economic Security complex.  Upon 
inquiry by Chairman Pastor if this would affect the current daytime janitorial 
employees, Mr. Nelson advised that they would not be affected.  Upon motion 
by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the Board reviewed 



15 

all bids submitted for Request for Sealed Bids No. 060110-1 to provide 
janitorial services at the Globe County facilities; awarded a contract to IWC 
Supplies and Maintenance (IWC, LLC) in the amount of $5,900/month for the 
Gila County facilities in Globe; and authorized the Chairman's signature on the 
Award Contract. 
 
4M. Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental 
Agreement (Contract No. DE111165001) with the Arizona Department of 
Economic Security to provide Title IV-D child support services in Gila 
County for federal fiscal years 2011-2015.   
 
Bryan Chambers, Chief Deputy County Attorney, stated that the County 
Attorney’s Office has been handling the Title IV-D child support services since 
1992 and this Agreement will extend that contract for another 5 federal fiscal 
years.  He stated that federal funding gets a little complicated, but essentially 
for every dollar spent, 66 cents is reimbursed.  There are also some 
opportunities for the office to gain additional federal funds, which increases the 
amount of reimbursement significantly.  There is also the opportunity for Gila 
County to get 66% reimbursement on indirect costs, which when you add all 
those things together they approximate the cost of the program.  The program 
affects thousands of families in Gila County and has been responsible for 
helping thousands of families receive millions of dollars in child support. 
Another goal of the program and this is the reason the federal government set it 
up, is that the program is designed to give people who perhaps otherwise would 
be on welfare, the opportunity to get child support instead of welfare and in the 
process, the federal government gets reimbursed some of that money for the 
cost that it has expended on welfare.  The bottom line is that the child support 
program helps families in Gila County become independent of government 
handouts and helps them to be responsible for their own situation. He 
recommended that the Board approve this agreement.  Supervisor Dawson 
stated, “When we talk about thousands of families being helped with millions of 
dollars, one of the things that really becomes frustrating with this program is 
that when I talk with some of these familes, the fact is that the money that is 
recovered often goes to offset the welfare collection money that these people 
have received and when they weren’t in the system at least if one of the people 
was making money, they were able to get the money.  I understand you are 
collecting more of the money through this program, but the thing is the 
number of times someone has been in humongous arrearages on paying their 
child support and they may or may not have a job, the penalty for being behind 
on their child support is to throw them in jail and thus cost Gila County more 
money and often times that person loses their job, if they had a job, because 
they have to serve time for not paying their bills.  So I have a lot of problems 
with how that all gets sorted out and whether it can’t be more efficient.  I 
wonder if there isn’t more efficiency in how we punish the parent that is not 
paying their child support?”  Mr. Chambers replied that to begin with the 
County Attorney’s Office is always looking at opportunities to make the process 



16 

run more efficient.  He stated, “Although in individual cases they don’t meet 
exparte or just alone with the judge to discuss how individual cases work, we 
do in a collective sense talk about general courtroom efficiency with the court 
on a fairly frequent basis.  There are individuals, as you are aware, that if they 
are ordered to pay child support, which generally means the court has already 
found they do have the capacity to pay, they are ordered to pay child support 
and they don’t.  Some judges will find them in contempt of court for willfully 
failing to abide a judge’s order and put them in jail until they are able purge 
themselves of that contempt.  That purge usually entails paying child support 
to get out.  I think our statistics have shown on the cases where a judge 
actually puts someone in the County jail for willfully failing to abide by a lawful 
court order, we generally get more child support out of those individuals in the 
future.  I believe and I’m sure that there have been instances where someone 
just got a job and then they show up in court and the judge says, ‘Well that’s 
not enough; go to jail.’  I think our experience has been that you hear more 
about people saying that’s what happened, but in reality it doesn’t happen as 
much as you might think.  The other thing is, as you correctly pointed out, if 
someone is just locked up in jail and they’ve been there long enough to realize 
that they can’t meet the purge payment, then it’s not too likely they are not 
going pay anything after they’ve been there for awhile.  Generally the judges, 
after a certain period, of time aren’t going to keep someone in jail any longer 
then they realize is necessary to see whether or not they can pay the purge 
payment.  As you stated, the goal is to get them working and paying.  In the 
County Attorney’s Office, we’ve had pretty good collection statistics because 
people have paid.  People have stepped up to the plate, lived up to their 
responsibilities and paid the child support owed to their children and that has 
largely resulted in and the reason why collections have been so good here.  I 
certainly agree with you that jail isn’t the one and only answer in every single 
case.  I think the philosophy of the courts and the Office is probably that there 
are some cases where it’s appropriate and certainly reasonable minds can differ 
on individual cases, but the goal is to get the people paying.  As far as money 
being reimbursed to the federal government, that is part of the program.  If 
someone is not currently on public assistance, the money that comes in on 
that case at least up to the amount of current child support is always going to 
go first to the family.  If there are arrearages, and there may be circumstances 
with those arrearages, and if they are paid, that money will go to the federal 
government, but the current support is for someone who is not currently 
receiving public assistance.  The monies always go to the families first, but I 
think we agree 100% with you that we are always looking for new ways to try to 
make it more efficient and serve the public better.  Upon motion by Supervisor 
Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board unanimously approved 
an IGA (Contract No. DE111165001) with the Arizona Department of Economic 
Security to provide Title IV-D child support services in Gila County for federal 
fiscal years 2011-2015.   
 



17 

4N. Information/Discussion/Action to consider a sealed bid for the 
purchase of Assessor's tax parcel number 206-09-123. 
 
Ms. Sheppard stated that the County has in place a process to review bids for 
the purchase of State owned land that has been deeded by the County 
Treasurer to the State of Arizona for non-payment of taxes.  These are 
properties that didn’t sell at the Board’s previous annual tax deeded land 
auction.  Ms. Sheppard stated that she received a sealed bid for the purchase 
of Assessor’s tax parcel number 206-09-123 which is located in Claypool.  She 
also had a map for the Board to review of this very small parcel.  Vice-
Chairman Martin requested that on future bids for the Board to consider, she 
would like a map included in the attachments, to which Ms. Sheppard agreed.  
Ms. Sheppard opened the sealed bid and stated that the total lien amount on 
this parcel is $314.95 and that the bid received from Joe C. Lopez was in the 
amount of $315.00.  Mr. Lopez owns land that is adjacent land to the subject 
property.  Chairman Pastor stated that prior to him entertaining a motion, he 
would like to inform the Board and the public that Mr. Lopez is a personel 
friend who worked on his campaign, so he would be abstaining from voting.  
Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the 
Board accepted the bid of $315.00 from Joe C. Lopez for the purchase of 
Assessor's tax parcel number 206-09-123.  The motion passed by a 2-0 vote; 
Chairman Pastor abstained from voting. 
 
4O. Information/Discussion/Action to approve Gila County members 
serving on the Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board to be submitted for 
recertification to the Governor's Council on Workforce Policy.   
 
Barbara Valencia, WIA (Workforce Investment Act) Program Coordinator, stated 
that this item was presented to the Board on the last meeting agenda and it 
was tabled.  She wanted to explain in more detail because there was some 
confusion at the last meeting as to what this issue entails.  She stated that the 
WIA requires that the Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Area Board of Directors 
(WIB) be recertified every 2 years and submitted to the Governor’s Council on 
Workforce Policy.  This recertification has nothing to do with 
appointing/reappointing Board members.  It is only certifying that the 
members that were submitted are still serving on the WIB and represent the 
entities that are required by the WIA.  She advised that the attached list of 
names include those WIB members who represent Gila County.  Another list of 
WIB members who represent Pinal County was provided to the Pinal County 
Board of Supervisors and approved by that Board on Nov. 3, 2010.  Ms. 
Valencia stated that once she obtains the Gila County Board of Supervisors’ 
approval, the list will be submitted to the Governor’s Council on Workforce 
Policy.  She stated that when the Board reviews the Gila/Pinal Workforce 
Investment Area Board’s structure at an upcoming work session, she will 
provide a detailed review of the WIA, the WIB’s bylaws, the process for 
appointing/reappointing members, and the process for nominating new 



18 

members.  Ms. Valencia stated that at the present time there are some 
vacancies under the private business sector, so if the Board knows of anyone 
who falls under the criteria of a private business owner, she would be happy to 
have them on the WIB as it is difficult to maintain private sector representation 
on that board.  Supervisor Dawson thanked Ms. Valencia for bringing this item 
back to the Board of Supervisors and explaining the difference in an 
appointment to the Board and recertification.  Supervisor Dawson stated that 
she has received requests from people offering to serve on any of the boards or 
commissions of the County, and she knows of a person who would be 
interested.  Supervisor Dawson stated, “I’m interested in the fact that we need 
to really see the Workforce Development programs working hard within our 
communities.”  Vice-Chairman Martin inquired as to the dates Maxine Brown 
will be retiring as Executive Director of Central Arizona Association of 
Governments  (CAAG) and Brian Tapp, the new CAAG Executive Director, will 
be brought on board.  Ms. Valencia stated that Ms. Brown will be retiring on 
December 31, 2010, and then an application will be submitted to the WIB, 
which will certify that Mr. Tapp is the person qualified for that position.  Once 
approved by the WIB, it will then come to the Board of Supervisors.  Upon 
motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the Board 
unanimously approved Gila County members serving on the Gila/Pinal 
Workforce Investment Area Board of Directors to be submitted for 
recertification to the Governor's Council on Workforce Policy.  
 
Item 5 - CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS: 

 5A.  Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Federal Financial 
Assistance Award of Domestic Grant 11-DG-11030121-005 between Gila 
County Public Works Division and the USDA, Forest Service, Apache-
Sitgreaves National Forest in the amount of $601,065 to pave the FDR 
512, Young Road.  

 5B. Approval of Homeland Security Grant Program Award SubGrantee 
Agreement No. 777304-01 between the Gila County Division of Emergency 
Management and the Arizona Department of Homeland Security in the 
amount of $14,000 to purchase 2 mobile storage units with supporting 
generators for the period October 1, 2010, through September 30, 2011. 

 5C. Approval of a Homeland Security Grant Program Award SubGrantee 
Agreement No. 777304-02 between the Gila County Division of Emergency 
Management and the Arizona Department of Homeland Security in the 
amount of $5,484 to provide training and exercises for the Gila County 
Community Emergency Response Team members under the Citizen Corp 
Program for the period October 1, 2010, through September 30, 2011.  

 5D. Approval of Amendment No. 1 - Subgrantee Agreement No. 09-
AZDOHS-CCP- 555300-01 between the Gila County Division of Emergency 



19 

Management and the Arizona Department of Homeland Security for 
FFY09 Homeland Security Grant Program Award for the period October 1, 
2009 through December 31, 2010.  

 5E. Approval of Amendment No. 2 to existing Contract No. C051-09-02 
between the State of Arizona, Department of Commerce Energy Office and 
the Gila County Community Action/Housing Services Department to 
provide additional funding in the amount of $27,039 for the period of 
July 1, 2010, through June 30, 2011, to continue providing 
weatherization services to income-eligible residents of Gila County. 

 5F. Approval of Amendment No. 3 to an Intergovernmental Agreement 
(Contract No. HG854246) between the Gila County Office of Health and 
the Arizona Department of Health Services in the amount of $30,000 to 
provide Reproductive Health/Family Planning Services under Title V for 
the period of January 1, 2011, through December 31, 2012. 

 5G. Approval of Agreement #634280 between Gila County and Great 
America Leasing Corporation to lease a Konica Minolta Bizhub C552 
copier system and a Bizhub 423 copier system for a period of 36 months 
at a cost of $571.11 per month for use at the Globe and Payson Clerk of 
the Superior Court Offices.  

 5H. Approval of a Document Conversion Services Contract between the 
Gila County Board of Supervisors and Lin-Cum, Inc. to meet Arizona 
Revised Statutes' requirement that all official minutes of the Board of 
Supervisors be scanned and microfilmed to roll film for archival purposes 
at an off-County site for the period September 15, 2010, through 
September 14, 2011.   

 5I. Approval to appoint Supervisor Tommie Martin to serve as a 
representative of Gila County on the County Supervisors Association 
Legislative Policy Committee for calendar year 2011. 

 5J. Approval of the August and September 2010 monthly departmental 
activity reports submitted by the Clerk of the Superior Court. 

 5K. Approval of the August 2010 monthly departmental activity report 
submitted by the Recorder's Office.  

 5L. Approval of the September 2010 monthly departmental activity report 
submitted by the Recorder's Office.  

 5M. Approval of the September 2010 monthly departmental activity 
report submitted by the Payson Regional Justice of the Peace.  



20 

 5N. Approval of personnel reports for the weeks of November 2, 2010, 
November 9, 2010, and November 16, 2010.  

November 2, 2010 
 
Departures from County Service: 
1. Sandra Bowling – Probation – Administrative Clerk Senior – 10/29/10 – 
Juvenile 
Intensive Probation Supervisor Fund – DOH 07/11/05 – Retired 
2. Karen Eylicio – Probation Juvenile Detention – Juvenile Detention Officer 
Shift Supervisor – DOH 04/01/85 – Retired 
3. Veronica Gonzales – Probation – Administrative Clerk Senior – 10/29/10 – 
Adult Probation Service Fees Fund – DOH 08/18/08 – Resigned 
Departmental Transfer: 
4. Jacob Delecki – From Probation – To Sheriff's Office – From Deputy 
Probation Officer 2 – To Deputy Sheriff Recruit – 10/29/10 – From State Aid 
Enhancement Fund – To General Fund 
Position Review: 
5. Berthan DeNero – From Personnel – To Human Resources – From Personnel 
Director – To Human Resources Director - General Fund – 10/25/10 
6. Matthew Bolinger – From Emergency Management Operations and Health 
Preparedness – To Health and Emergency Services – From Director of 
Emergency Operations and Health Preparedness – To Director of Health and 
Emergency Services – 70% General Fund – 30% Bio Terrorism Program Fund 
Request Permission to Post: 
7. Health and Emergency Services – WIC Breastfeeding Peer Counselor 
Supervisor  – New Position 
SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 
Departures from County Service: 
8. Mark Highstreet II - Sheriff's Office - Detention Officer – 10/18/10- General 
Fund – DOH 05/10/10 – Failure to complete probationary period 
9. Hazel Young - Sheriff's Office - Detention Officer – 10/24/10 - General Fund 
– DOH 03/26/01 – Terminated 
Hires to County Service: 
10. Earlene Ingram - Sheriff's Office – 911 Dispatcher – 11/08/10 - General 
Fund - Replacing Anthony Waddell 
End Probationary Period: 
11. Angelita Mendoza – Sheriff's Office - Administrative Clerk – 10/25/10 – 
General Fund 
12. Robert Chagolla - Sheriff's Office – Deputy Sheriff – 10/25/10 - General 
Fund 
 
November 9, 2010 
 
Hires to County Service: 



21 

1. Jim Weeks - Community Development – Part Time/As Needed Hearing 
Officer – 09/01/10 - General Fund – Not replacing anyone 
Position Review: 
2. Richard Ruiz - Board of Supervisors – Temporary Laborer – 10/26/10 – 
Constituent Services II Fund – Extending temporary employment to 12/10/10 
3. Manuel Rodriguez - Board of Supervisors – Temporary Laborer – 10/26/10 – 
Constituent Services II Fund – Extending temporary employment to 12/10/10 
4. Billy Tarango - Board of Supervisors – Temporary Laborer – 10/26/10 – 
Constituent Services II Fund – Extending temporary employment to 12/10/10 
Request Permission to Post: 
5. Finance – Accounting Clerk Senior – New Position 
6. Finance – Accounting Clerk Senior – New Position 
SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 
Departures from County Service: 
7. Jennifer Stout - Sheriff's Office – Detention Officer Sergeant – 10/18/10 – 
General Fund – DOH 11/15/04 – Terminated 
 
November 16, 2010 
 
Departures from County Service: 
1.  Daniel Alonzo – Globe Regional Justice Court – Collections Officer – 
11/08/10 – General Fund – DOH 11/26/07 – Retired 
2. Joseph Eylicio – Probation – Juvenile Detention Facility Supervisor – 
10/29/10 - General Fund – DOH 04/01/85 – Retired 
Hires to County Service: 
3. Gary Goetteman – Globe Regional Justice Court – Justice of the Peace – 
11/30/10 - General Fund – Replacing Patty Nolan 
4. Amber Martinez – Health and Emergency Services – Animal Regulation 
Enforcement Officer – 11/15/2010 – Rabies Control Fund - Replacing Nicholas 
Campagna 
5. Virginia Mounce – Administrative Services – Administrative Clerk – 
11/01/10 - General Fund – Replacing Bertha Gutierrez 
6. Amanda Roady - Community Services – Accountant – 11/08/10 – Various 
Fund Codes – Replacing Dan Mikaloy 
End Probationary Period: 
7. William McDaniel – Public Works Facilities Management – Building 
Maintenance Technician Senior – 11/24/10 – Facilities Management Fund 
Position Review: 
8. Juley Bocardo-Homan – From Personnel – To Human Resources – From 
Deputy Personnel Director - To Deputy Human Resources Director – 10/25/10 
– General Fund 
9. Angelo Cutter - From Personnel – To Human Resources – From Personnel 
Assistant Senior – To Human Resources Assistant Senior - 10/25/10 - General 
Fund 
10. Erica Raymond – From Personnel - To Human Resources – From Personnel 
Assistant – To Human Resources Assistant – 10/25/10 - General Fund 



22 

11. Carolyn Haro – From Health and Community Services – To Community 
Services – From Manager Public Health Services – To Manager Community 
Services – 11/08/10 - Various Fund Codes 
12. Cecilia Bejarano – From Health and Community Services – To Community 
Services – 11/08/10 – Various Fund Codes 
Request Permission to Post: 
13. Public Works Facilities Management – Building Maintenance Technician – 
Vacated by John Sanchez 
SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 
Hires to County Service: 
14. Cynthia Claydon - Sheriff's Office - Detention Officer – 11/22/10 - General 
Fund – Replacing Mark Highstreet 
15. Kace Loya - Sheriff's Office - Detention Officer – 11/22/10 - General Fund – 
Replacing Aaron Villegas 
Departmental Transfers: 
16. Marcus Teague - Sheriff's Office – From Detention Officer – To Property and 
Evidence Custodian – 11/22/10 - General Fund 

5O. Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of 
November 2, 2010, November 9, 2010, and November 16, 2010. 

November 2, 2010 

$1,590,309.05 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 231787 
through 231993.   

November 9, 2010 

$1,074,211.03 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 231994 
through 232126.   

November 16, 2010 

$2,028,067.93 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 232127 
through 232610.  (An itemized list of disbursements is permanently on file 
in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.)   

Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the 
Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda Action items 5A-5O.   
 
Item 6 - CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public 
benefit to allow individuals to address issue(s) within the Board’s 
jurisdiction.  Board members may not discuss items that are not 
specifically identified on the agenda.  Therefore, pursuant to Arizona 
Revised Statute §38-431.01(G), action taken as a result of public 
comment will be limited to directing staff to study the matter, responding 



23 

to criticism, or scheduling the matter for further discussion and decision 
at a future date. 
 
There were no requests to speak from the public. 
 
Item 7 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-
431.02(K), members of the Board of Supervisors and the Chief 
Administrator may present a brief summary of current events.  No action 
may be taken on issues presented. 
 
Each Board member and Don McDaniel, County Manager, presented 
information on current events.    
 
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 12:36 p.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
________________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
 
  
________________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk 
 



1 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS MINUTES 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
Date:  November 30, 2010 
 
MICHAEL A. PASTOR      JOHN F. NELSON 
Chairman        Clerk of the Board 
 
TOMMIE C. MARTIN      By: Marilyn Brewer 
Vice-Chairman             Chief Deputy Clerk 
 
SHIRLEY L. DAWSON      Gila County Courthouse 
Member        Globe, Arizona 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PRESENT:  Michael A. Pastor, Chairman; Tommie C. Martin, Vice-Chairman (via 
ITV conference); Shirley L. Dawson, Supervisor; Don McDaniel, Jr., County 
Manager; Marilyn Brewer, Deputy Clerk; and Bryan Chambers, Chief Deputy 
County Attorney. 
 
Item 1 – Call to Order – Pledge of Allegiance – Invocation 
 
The Gila County Board of Supervisors met in a regular session at 10:00 a.m. 
this date in the Board of Supervisors hearing room.  Claudia DalMolin led the 
Pledge of Allegiance and Pastor Lynn Richie of the First Church of Nazarene in 
Payson delivered the invocation.   
 
Chairman Pastor stated that the Board would first move to agenda item 4A and 
noted that Judge Peter DeNinno would be replaced by Judge Perlman to 
administer the oath to Gary Goetteman if appointed by the Board.  It was noted, 
however, that Judge Perlman had not yet arrived so Chairman Pastor moved on 
to agenda item 2A. 
 
Item 2 - PRESENTATIONS:  
 

 2A. Recognition of 5 employees for October's "Spotlight on Employees" 
Program.  

 
 Juley Bocardo-Homan, Deputy Human Resources Director, presented gift cards 

as recognition awards to 5 employees—Denise Hanson for September’s 
“Spotlight on Employees” Program followed by Christine Duarte, Keith Johnson, 
Denise Cox and Terri Powell for October’s “Spotlight on Employees.”  Each Board 
member thanked the employees for their dedicated work.   

 
 Chairman Pastor then moved to agenda item 4A.   
 



2 

4A. Information/Discussion/Action to appoint Gary Goetteman as Justice 
of the Peace, Globe Region, for the period November 30, 2010, through 
December 31, 2010.  If appointed by the Board of Supervisors, Judge Peter 
DeNinno will immediately administer the Oath of Office to Mr. Goetteman.  

 
 Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 

Board unanimously appointed Gary Goetteman as Justice of the Peace, Globe 
Region, for the period November 30, 2010, through December 31, 2010.  The 
Oath of Office was then administered by Judge John Perlman to Gary 
Goetteman as the new Justice of the Peace.  On behalf of the Board, Chairman 
Pastor congratulated Mr. Goetteman on his new appointment and welcomed him 
to Gila County.    

 
 Chairman Pastor moved back to agenda item 3A. 
 
 Item 3 – PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
 3A. Public Hearing - Information/Action/Discussion for the Board of 

Supervisors to find the proposed merger between the Cobre Valley Sanitary 
District and the Pinal Sanitary District would serve the public convenience, 
welfare, or necessity of the public; that an election be called for a vote of 
the public on the question of the proposed merger for May 17, 2011; that 
the election be a "vote by mail" election; and that the Chairman be 
authorized to sign the Order calling for the election.   

 
 Linda Eastlick, Elections Director, stated that the agenda item listed what 

needed to be accomplished during and after the public hearing.  She noted that 
there were a number of people present wishing to speak to the Board concerning 
this issue.  Chairman Pastor opened the public hearing and called for comments 
from the public.  Albert M. Porto, a resident of Claypool, stated that he noticed 
in the announcement that this issue will be only a vote-by-mail election.  He 
stated, “It has been my observation in the past about people’s mail that if it’s not 
a bill they trash it, so I would question whether a vote by mail would be the only 
option available for this election.”  Ms. Eastlick replied that the election could be 
done by a vote at the polling place or a vote by mail; however, a vote by mail is 
generally a less expensive option because the districts will have to bear the cost 
of the election.  Usually when it is a polling place election then there is a 
requirement for poll workers and training for those poll workers, so there’s a 
greater cost that is incurred.  That’s why Ms. Eastlick was suggesting a vote by 
mail simply to save the taxpayers money.  She stated that in the last election the 
vote by mail had an over 80% vote, which was a greater return of voters by mail 
as opposed to going to the polls.  Bob Zache, President of the Pinal Sanitary 
District, stated that he understands Mr. Porto’s concern, but he also appreciated 
Ms. Eastlick’s efforts to keep the cost down for the districts.  Ms. Eastlick stated 
that the Recorder’s Office has on record all of those individuals who are 
registered voters of both santiary districts and ballots will be mailed to each of 



3 

those individuals.  In addition a notice will be published in the newspaper that 
an election has been called and will be conducted with the date that the mail-in 
ballots would be sent to the registered voters.  She clarified that the ballots 
would only be sent to the registered voters.  People who have not registered by 
April 29, 2011, would not be allowed to vote in the election to be held on May 
17, 2010.  Upon Chairman Pastor’s inquiry if public meetings would be held 
before the election, Mr. Zache stated that there would be more public meetings 
and another public hearing.  He also advised that a citizen outreach committee 
had been formed and Mr. Porto and others are working to get the word out 
about the election to the citizens in the districts.  Chairman Pastor closed the 
public hearing and entertained a motion.  Upon motion by Vice-Chairman 
Martin, seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the Board unanimously found that the 
proposed merger between the Cobre Valley Sanitary District and the Pinal 
Sanitary District would serve the public convenience, welfare, or necessity of the 
public; that an election be called for a vote of the public on the question of the 
proposed merger for May 17, 2011; that the election be a "vote by mail" election; 
and that the Chairman be authorized to sign the Order calling for the election.   

 Item 4 - REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  

4A. Information/Discussion/Action to appoint Gary Goetteman as Justice 
of the Peace, Globe Region, for the period November 30, 2010, through 
December 31, 2010.  If appointed by the Board of Supervisors, Judge Peter 
DeNinno will immediately administer the Oath of Office to Mr. 
Goetteman. (Moved to the beginning of the meeting.) 
 

 4B. (Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Board of Supervisors and 
convene as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors)   

 Information/Discussion/Action to approve the Library Service Agreement 
between the Gila County Library District and the Globe Public Library to 
cooperate in the provison of library services for the period July 1, 2010, through 
June 30, 2011 and to match up to $116,750.00. (Jacque Griffin) 
(Motion to adjourn as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors 
and reconvene as the Gila County Board of Supervisors)  
 
Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Gila County Board of Supervisors adjourned as said Board and convened as the 
Gila County Library District Board of Directors.   
 
Jacque Griffin, Assistant County Manager/Librarian, stated that every year the 
County contracts with the 8 public libraries to provide library services and about 
a month ago 6 of those library contracts were approved by the Board.  This is for 
approval of a contract with the Globe Public Library, and the final contract with 
the San Carlos Public Library will be placed on the agenda for approval in 
January.  Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman 
Martin, the Board unanimously approved the Library Service Agreement 



4 

between the Gila County Library District and the Globe Public Library to 
cooperate in the provision of library services for the period July 1, 2010, through 
June 30, 2011, and to match up to $116,750.00. 
 

 Upon motion by Vice-Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the 
Board adjourned as the Gila County Library District Board of Directors and 
reconvened as the Gila County Board of Supervisors. 
 

 4C. Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for 
Request for Sealed Bids No. 080310-1 for the purchase of the General 
Ledger Treasurer's Banking Software and Support System; award to the 
lowest, responsible and qualified bidder; and authorize the Chairman's 
signature on the Award Contract for the winning bidder.   
 
Debi Savage, County Treasurer, stated that her office has had the same general 
ledger, treasurer’s banking software and support system since 1983 and it is in 
desperate need of being updated.  With the assistance of Darryl Griffin, IT 
Director, and others, the specifications were drawn up and a request for bids 
was advertised.  Ms. Savage stated that 1 bid was received from Tyler 
Technology for the Eagle software program and this company is well qualified to 
implement this much needed system.  Ms. Savage stated that her concern was if 
the current system crashed, the County would be in big trouble as it has over 
900 funds that were used this year, which are kept track of in the general 
ledger.  The Treasurer’s Office keeps track of the income and disbursement 
records for 11 County entities plus 15 fire districts.  She recommended that the 
Board award the contract to Tyler Technology.  Supervisor Dawson inquired 
whether the Eagle system could interface with the County’s New World 
accounting system and if there would be a backup.  Ms. Savage stated that she 
has been guaranteed that the proposed software will interface with the County’s 
New Wolrd system as well as the Visions system used by the school districts.  
Mr. Griffin stated that the current backup is done by a tape backup system; 
however, if a hardware failure occurred it would take a long time to restore it.  
With a new system, the information will be backed up off site, which really 
secures the County for a disaster recovery scenario.  Chairman Pastor inquired 
if the cost included training staff, if the $150,000 was an approximate cost and 
the timeline.  Ms. Savage stated that training was included in the cost, which 
would be lower than the $150,000 budgeted because at the time she was not 
sure of the total cost and the timeline for completion to have the system online 
and ready for inputting was scheduled for January 2011.  Mr. Griffen stated 
concerning the hardware, it will run on the platforms that the County currently 
has in its viritual environment.  He stated, “What it comes down to is data 
conversion.  I noticed in the bid that they (Tyler Technologies) were kind of 
leaving that open ended because DSA is such an antiquated system to get the 
data cut over, there could be some glitches in that, so that would be my only 
biggest concern.”  Supervisor Dawson expressed a concern about the total bid 
amount being left open.  Ms. Savage reviewed the contract with the Board 



5 

stating that the software cost was $60,000 and the services were $55,515, for a 
total contract cost of $116,392.  Chairman Pastor pointed out that the Systems 
Agreement, Page E, reflected a “cost to be determined.”  Supervisor Dawson 
stated that the contract she reviewed showed a cost of $60,000 for software and 
another cost of $55,000, for a total contract cost of $101,500.  Supervisor 
Dawson requested to know what the total contract award amount would be 
because Ms. Savage stated the total cost would be $116,392, but on the contract 
she reviewed the total was $101,500.  It was also unclear if the conversion costs 
were included since it was noted that those costs would be determined at a later 
date.  After continued discussion, Ms. Savage stated that she would contact 
Tyler Technologies and bring this item back to the Board.  Supervisor Dawson 
stated that she would move to table this item pending a complete bid showing 
the total amount.  Supervisor Dawson stated, “My experience is the Treasurer 
has already mentioned that she budgeted $150,000 and my guess would be that 
by the time it’s installed, they will have used up the $150,000 if we leave this 
open to speculation, so I would like to see them commit to an amount.”  
Supervisor Dawson then made a motion to table item 4C.  Vice-Chairman 
Martin stated that she would second the motion; however, she wanted a specific 
date for this to come back to the Board so it wouldn’t put the Treasurer’s Office 
behind in getting this implemented.  Supervisor Dawson amended her motion to 
table item 4C to the next Board meeting scheduled for December 14, 2010.  The 
motion was seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin and was unanimously passed.  

 
 4D. Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental 

Agreement (IGA)(Contract No. OER-11-IGA-GS-143) between the Governor's 
Office of Economic Recovery and the Gila County Sheriff's Office for a one-
time award of Public Safety Stabilization Program funds in the amount of 
$50,000 for overtime expenses for Sheriff's deputies, and to authorize the 
Chairman to sign the IGA.   

 
 Don McDaniel, County Manager, stated that this contract with the State will be 

funded by ARRA (American Recovery and Reinvestment Act) funds coming 
through the Governor’s Office of Economic Recovery.  He stated that John 
Nelson, Deputy County Manager/Clerk, submitted an application for $50,000 to 
be used by the Sheriff’s Office for purposes of supporting the capacity of local 
public safety agencies to provide basic public safety activities during this 
unprecedented economic recession.  The funds would provide for payment of 
overtime because with the hiring freeze, the Sheriff is unable to hire for some 
postions and does not have sufficient funds for overtime.  Upon motion by Vice-
Chairman Martin, seconded by Supervisor Dawson, the Board unanimously 
approved an Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA)(Contract No. OER-11-IGA-GS-
143) between the Governor's Office of Economic Recovery and the Gila County 
Sheriff's Office for a one-time award of Public Safety Stabilization Program funds 
in the amount of $50,000 for overtime expenses for Sheriff's deputies, and 
authorized the Chairman to sign the IGA.   
 



6 

Item 5 - CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS: 
 

 5A. Approval of a Support and Maintenance Agreement with HOV Services/ 
LASON Service Administration in the amount of $990 per year for support 
and maintenance on a Minolta micro fiche roll film reader that is located in 
the Recorder's Office. (Agreement No. 30272CONSVR). 

 
5B. Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Amendment No.1 to 
Contract 061909-1 between Gila County and Payson Concrete & Materials, 
Inc., to extend the Contract period to December 17, 2011, per Section 2.2 
of the Contract.  This Contract provides for the purchase of chips, AB and 
asphalt, all of which are used in the Timber Region of Gila County. 

 
 5C. Approval of Contract Renewal Modification of the Grant 

Agreement/Renewal Award #GRA-STATE-10-0070-01-Y2 between the Gila 
County Office of Health and "First Things First" for a total amount of 
$21,784, reduced from the original amount of $26,666, to provide Child 
Care Health Consultant Services for the period July 1, 2010, through June 
30, 2011.  

 
 5D. Approval of a Service Agreement between Banner Health, an Arizona 

Corporation, d/b/a ENTECH and the Gila County Division of Health and 
Community Services to renew the agreement for ENTECH to maintain and 
repair the equipment listed in the agreement, which is used in the medical 
and health service industry at an annual fee of $790 for the Globe Office 
and $680 for the Payson Office for the period October 1, 2010, through 
September 30, 2013.   

 
 5E. Approval of Amendment No. 7 to Contract No. CMK0L090002 between 

Gila County, on behalf of the Gila County Juvenile Detention Center, and 
the Bureau of Indian Affairs to extend the period of performance from 
September 30, 2010, to December 31, 2010, and incorporate additional 
funding of $142,000 from $370,245 to $512,245 for payment coverage of 
continuing detention services.  

 
 5F. Approval of an Order to cancel elections and appoint the following 

governing board members to the Beaver Valley Fire District:  Samuel Baker, 
Keith E. Friend, and Richard Harpster. 

 
 5G. Approval of the October 2010 monthly departmental activity report 

submitted by the Payson Regional Constable. 
 
 5H. Approval of the October 2010 monthly departmental activity report 

submitted by Payson Regional Justice of the Peace. 
 



7 

 5I. Approval of personnel reports for the weeks of November 23, 2010, 
and November 30, 2010.  

 November 23, 2010 

Hires to County Service: 
1. Sarah White – From Rural Addressing Department – To Health and 
Emergency Services – From Temporary Rural Addressing Assistant – To 
Executive Administrative Assistant – 11/08/10 - General Fund – Replacing 
Linda Rodriguez 
2. Mike Lemon – Community Services – From Temporary Environmental Health 
Specialist Senior – To Part Time Environmental Health Specialist Senior – 
11/08/10 – Health Services Fund – Replacing Shane Stuler 
Temporary Hires to County Service: 
3. Darryl McDaniel - Board of Supervisors – Temporary Laborer – 11/22/10 – 
Constituent Services II Fund 
4. Manuel Medrano - Board of Supervisors – Temporary Laborer – 11/22/10 – 
Constituent Services II Fund 
5. Manuel Rocha - Board of Supervisors – Temporary Laborer – 11/22/10 – 
Constituent Services II Fund 
Position Review: 
6. David Fletcher – From Health and Community Services – To Community 
Services – From Director of Health and Community Services – To Director of 
Community Services – 11/15/10 – Various Funds 
7. Judy Smith – From Health and Community Services – To Health and 
Emergency Services – From Program Manager – To Grants and Special Projects 
Specialist – 10/25/10 – 99% Health Service Fund – 1% WIC Fund 
8. Jendean Sartain – From Health and Community Services – To Health and 
Emergency Services – From Deputy Director of Health and Community Services 
– To Deputy Director of Health Services – 10/25/10 - Health Services Fund 
9. Debra Williams – From Emergency Services – To Health and Emergency 
Services – From Risk Management Analyst – To Deputy Director of Emergency 
Services – 10/25/10 – 70% General Fund – 30% Bio-Terrorism Program Fund 
10. Leana Asberry – From Health and Community Services – To Health and 
Emergency Services – From Volunteer Coordinator – To Public Health 
Emergency Preparedness Manager – 10/25/10 – Bio-Terrorism Program Fund 
11. Linda Rodriguez - Board of Supervisors – Administrative Manager – 
10/11/10 – General Fund – Change in position control number 
Request Permission to Post: 
12. Health and Emergency Services – Rural Addressing Analyst – Position 
vacated by Jeremiah Johnson 
SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 
Hires to County Service: 
13. Ruben Duarte - Sheriff's Office - Detention Officer – 11/22/10 - General 
Fund – New Position 
 



8 

November 30, 2010 
Departures from County Service: 
1. Jessy Carter – Juvenile Detention – Juvenile Detention Officer – 11/20/10 - 
General Fund – DOH 11/15/06 – Resigned 
2. Curtis Johnson – Board of Supervisors – Temporary Laborer – 11/15/10 – 
Constituent Services II Fund – DOH 08/16/10 – Temporary Position 
3. Jace Rampelotto – Public Works Facilities Management – Temporary Building 
Maintenance Technician – 11/12/10 - Facilities Management Fund – DOH 
06/08/10 – Temporary Position 
4. John Roten - Board of Supervisors – Temporary Laborer – 11/15/10 – 
Constituent Services II Fund – DOH 08/16/10 – Temporary Position 
Hires to County Service: 
5. Michael Hernandez – Public Works Consolidated Roads – Road 
Maintenance/Equipment Operator – 12/27/10 – Public Works Fund – Replacing 
David Baker 
Departmental Transfers: 
6. Nancy Hannigan – Probation – From Juvenile Detention Officer – To Juvenile 
Detention Shift Supervisor – 11/29/10 - General Fund 
7. David Hom – Public Works Facilities Management – From Building 
Maintenance Technician Senior – To Building Maintenance Supervisor – 
11/22/10 – Facilities Management Fund 
8. Christopher Beamon – Probation – From Juvenile Detention Officer - To 
Juvenile Detention Shift Supervisor – 11/29/10 – General Fund 
9. Angelina Thompson – Recorder – From Recording Clerk Senior – To Recording 
Clerk – 11/18/10 – General Fund 
Position Review: 
10. Brenda Cova – Probation – Administrative Clerk – 11/22/10 – Juvenile 
Diversion Fees Fund – From 19 to 29 hours per week 
SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 
Departures from County Service: 
11. John Temple - Sheriff's Office - Detention Officer – 11/21/10 - General Fund 
– DOH 02/15/10 – Resigned 
Hires to County Service: 
12. Melody Schneider - Sheriff's Office - Detention Officer – 12/20/10 - General 
Fund – New Women’s Dorm Position 
13. Matthew Waddell - Sheriff's Office - Detention Officer – 12/20/10 - General 
Fund – Replacing John Temple 
14. Juventino Rodarte - Sheriff's Office - Detention Officer – 12/06/10 – General 
Fund – Replacing Marcus Teague 
End Probationary Period: 
15. Thoreina Hensley - Sheriff's Office – Deputy Sheriff – 11/22/10 – General 
Fund 
Position Review: 
16. Violetta Johnson - Sheriff's Office – From Detention Officer Lieutenant– To 
Detention Officer – 11/25/10 – General Fund – Change in position control 
number 



9 

5J. Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of 
November 23, 2010, and November 30, 2010. 

November 23, 2010 

$1,175,168.47 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 232611 
through 232811.   

November 30, 2010 

$2,131,286.81 was disbursed for County expenses by check numbers 232812 
through 233006.  (An itemized list of disbursements is permanently on file 
in the Board of Supervisors’ Office.)   

Upon motion by Supervisor Dawson, seconded by Vice-Chairman Martin, the 
Board unanimously approved Consent Agenda action items 5A-5J.   
 
Item 6 - CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public benefit 
to allow individuals to address issue(s) within the Board’s jurisdiction.  
Board members may not discuss items that are not specifically identified 
on the agenda.  Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute §38-
431.01(G), action taken as a result of public comment will be limited to 
directing staff to study the matter, responding to criticism, or scheduling 
the matter for further discussion and decision at a future date. 
 
There were no requests to speak from the public. 
 
Item 7 - At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02(K), 
members of the Board of Supervisors and the Chief Administrator may 
present a brief summary of current events.  No action may be taken on 
issues presented. 
 
Each Board member and Mr. McDaniel presented information on current events.  
  
There being no further business to come before the Board of Supervisors, 
Chairman Pastor adjourned the meeting at 10:58 a.m. 
 
APPROVED: 
 
________________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 
  
________________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk 



ARF-674     Item #:  5- M     
Special BOS Meeting
Date: 07/20/2011  
Reporting Period: Clerk of Court Report for the Month of May 2011
Submitted For: Vicki Aguilar, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Superior Court
Submitted By: Vicki Aguilar, Clerk of the Superior Court

Information
Subject
Clerk of Court Report for the Month of May 2011

Suggested Motion
Approval of the May 2011 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the Clerk of Superior Court.

Attachments
Link: Clerk of Court Report for the Month of May 2011



















ARF-671     Item #:  5- N     
Special BOS Meeting
Date: 07/20/2011  

Reporting Period: Human Resources reports for the weeks of July 12, 2011 and July 19,
2011.

Submitted For: Berthan DeNero, Human Resources Director
Submitted By: Erica Raymond, Human Resources

Information
Subject
Human Resources reports for the weeks of July 12, 2011 and July 19, 2011.

Suggested Motion
Approval of Human Resources reports for the weeks of July 12, 2011, and July 19, 2011.

Attachments
Link: 7/12/11 Human Resources Agenda
Link: 7/19/11 Human Resources Agenda



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JULY 12, 2011 

 
 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Karen J. Wartick – School Superintendent – Administrative Clerk Sr. – 06/30/11 
– General Fund – DOH 11/27/06 – Position eliminated 

 
TEMPORARY HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

2. Billy Stevens – Public Works – Temporary Custodian – 06/28/11 – Facilities 
Management Fund 

3. Gladys Stevens – Public Works – Temporary Custodian – 06/28/11 – Facilities 
Management Fund 

4. Patricia Miranda – Public Works – Temporary Custodian – 06/28/11 – Facilities 
Management Fund 

5. Cynthia Gonzales – Public Works – Temporary Custodian – 06/28/11 – Facilities 
Management Fund 

6. Domingo Gonzales – Public Works – Temporary Custodian – 06/28/11 – 
Facilities Management Fund 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

7. Margaret Velasquez – School Superintendent – Accounting Clerk – 07/10/11 – 
General Fund 

8. Casey Bramlet – Public Works – Road Maintenance/Equipment Operator – 
07/18/11 – Public Works Fund 

 
POSITION REVIEW: 
 

9. Shane Stuler – Health Department – Environmental Health Manager – 07/01/11 – 
Change in fund codes 

10. Joy Riddle – County Attorney – Deputy Attorney – 07/01/11 – Change in fund 
code 

11. Jeffrey W. Baer – School Superintendent – Director of Education Programs – 
07/01/11 – Change in fund code 

12. Joshua Clark – County Attorney – Deputy Attorney – 08/01/11 – Change in 
number of hours worked from 24 to 40 hours per week and change in fund code 

13. Lexie Nosie – Health Department – Community Health Assistant Sr. – Change in 
number of hours worked from 30 to 40 hours per week 

14. John Yanez – Health Department – Community Health Assistant Sr. – Change in 
number of hours worked from 17.5 to 20.5 hours per week 

 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
JULY 19, 2011 

 
 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Matthew P. Bolinger – Health and Emergency Services – Director of Health and 
Emergency Services – 07/15/11 – Various Fund Codes – DOH 08/27/03 – 
Resignation 

2. Celina Salinas – Community Services – Career and Employment Specialist – 
07/08/11 – Various Fund Codes – DOH 09/22/08 - Resignation 

 
HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

3. Michael O’Driscoll – Health and Emergency Services – Director of Health and 
Emergency Services – 07/05/11 – Various Funds – replacing Matthew P. Bolinger 

4. David R. Vaughn – Payson Regional Constable – Deputy Constable – 08/01/11 – 
General Fund – Replacing Michelle Dyer 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

5. Diana Jones – From Public Works – To Finance – Management Analyst – 
07/20/11 – From Various Funds – To General Fund 

6. Leigh Ann Kenton – Probation – From Administrative Clerk Specialist – To 
Juvenile Detention Officer – 07/04/11 – From Various Funds  - To General Fund 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

7. Joseph T. Heatherly – Finance – Finance Director – 01/17/11 – General Fund 
8. Melvina Takala-Griffin – Community Services – Administrative Clerk Sr. – 

07/04/11 – Various Funds 
9. Martin Feldhake – Probation – Juvenile Detention Officer – 07/04/11 – General 

Fund 
10. John Dzera – Public Works – Building Maintenance Technician – 07/18/11 – 

Facilities Management Fund 
11. Angelina Thompson – Finance – Payroll Specialist – 07/04/11 – General Fund 
12. Valrie Bejarano – Finance – Contracts Support Specialist – 07/04/11 – General 

Fund 
13. Cassandra Villegas – Finance – Finance and Purchasing Specialist – 07/04/11 - 

General Fund 
 
POSITION REVIEW: 
 

14. Kimberly Bittner – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer 2 – 07/04/11 – Change 
in fund code 

15. Lauryn Mooney – Probation – Administrative Clerk Sr. – 07/04/11 – Change in 
fund codes 

16. Erika Pisano – Probation – Deputy Probation Officer 1– 07/04/11 – Change in 
fund codes 
 
 
 



HUMAN RESOURCES ACTION ITEMS 
July 19, 2011 
Page 2 
 

 
REQUEST PERMISSION TO POST: 
 

17. Community Services – Career and Employment Specialist – Vacated by Celina 
Salinas – Date Vacated 07/08/11 – Waiver of 120 Day Hiring Freeze approved 
07/11/11 

 
 

SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 
 
 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

18. John E. Rittenbach – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 07/09/11 – General 
Fund – DOH 08/30/10 – Resignation 

19. Edward J. McGuire, Jr. – Sheriff’s Office – 911 Dispatcher – 07/08/11 – General 
Fund – DOH 08/02/10 – Resignation  

20. Douglas E. Stevenson – Sheriff’s Office – Detention Officer – 07/06/11 – General 
Fund – DOH 06/13/11 – Resignation 

 
HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

21. Donald B. Engler, II – Sheriff’s Office – Deputy Sheriff Recruit – 07/25/11 – 
General Fund – Replacing Jacob Delecki 


	Agenda
	Item2.A.  Presentation by U.S. Congressman Paul Gosar's Office Manager
	Item3.A.  Adoption of the final 2011-2012 fiscal year budget for the Gila County Library District
	Item3.A._Att1_FY2011-2012 Gila County Library District Budget
	Item3.B.  Adoption of the final 2011-2012 fiscal year budget for Gila County
	Item3.B._Att1_Public Hearing Notice for Budget Adoption
	Item3.B._Att2_FY2011-2012 Summary of Estimated Revenues and Expenditures
	Sheet1

	Item3.B._Att3_FY2011-2012 Summary of Tax Levy and Tax Rate Information
	Sheet1

	Item3.B._Att4_Resolution No. 11-07-01
	Item4.A.  Request to Advertise Invitation for Bids No. 061311-1 for MC-800TR Chip Seal Oil
	Item4.A._Att1_Request to Advertise
	Item4.A._Att2_Invitation for Bids 061311-1
	Item4.B.  Independent Contractor Agreement (2011-2012 Utility Assistance Programs) Contract No. 07012011-12
	Item4.B._Att1_ACAA ICA 07011022-12
	Item4.C.  Contract No. SRPWX05012011 with Arizona Community Action Association
	Item4.C._Att1_C__Documents and Settings_clopez_Desktop_ACAA SRPWX05012011.pdf
	Item5.A.  Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. ADHS11-007055 with Arizona Department of Health Services.
	Item5.A._Att1_Original Health Start Contract
	Item5.A._Att2_Health Start Renewal 2012
	Item5.B.  First Things First Contract Renewal Amendment Notification No. FTF-RC004-10-0129-01-Y3 with First Things First.
	Item5.B._Att1_Original Contract
	Item5.B._Att2_FTF Renewal 2012
	Item5.C.  Interstate Copy Shop Maintenance Agreement for Konica 7130 Copier for School Superintendent
	Item5.C._Att1_Maintenance Agreement Konica 7130
	Item5.C._Att2_Maintenance Terms & Conditions
	Item5.D.  Amendment No. 1 to Pinal_Gila Long Term Care Lease Agreement with Pinal County
	Item5.D._Att1_Lease Termination Notice
	Item5.D._Att2_Amendment No. 1 Pinal_Gila Long Term Care Lease
	Item5.D._Att3_Original Pinal_Gila Lease Agreement
	Item5.E.  Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. 0010-0444 with Pinal-Gila Council for Senior Citizens Area Agency on Aging, Region V
	Item5.E._Att1_Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. 0010-0444 Pinal Gila Council for Senior Citizens
	Item5.E._Att2_Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. 0010-0444 Pinal Gila Council for Senior Citizens
	Item5.E._Att3_Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 0010-0444 Pinal Gila Council for Senior Citizens
	Item5.E._Att4_Original Contract No. 0010-0444 Pinal Gila Council for Senior Citizens
	Item5.F.  IGA with Town of Star Valley & Transit Agreement with Horizon Human Services Gila County Safe Home 
	Item5.F._Att1_IGA with Town of Star Valley
	Item5.F._Att2_Transit Agreement with Horizon Human Services-GC Safe Home
	Item5.G.  Beaver Valley Fire District Governing Board Resignation & Appointment
	Item5.G._Att1_ARS 48-803
	Item5.G._Att2_Beaver Valley FD Mtg Minutes-Oath
	Item5.H.  Support and Maintenance Agreement with HOV Services_LASON Systems Inc. 
	Item5.H._Att1_Support & Maintenance Agreement with HOV Services-Lason Systems 
	Item5.I.  Request for Waiver of Fees by Gila County Fair Committee for the Fairgrounds Exhibit Hall_Commercial Hall, etc.
	Item5.I._Att1_Fair Committee Application
	Item5.I._Att2_Fair Committee Letter
	Item5.J.  Request for Waiver of Fees by Sheriff's Reserve Posse to use Exhibit Hall for Sweetheart Dance_Dinner
	Item5.J._Att1_SRP FG Application
	Item5.J._Att2_SRP Letter requesting waiver
	Item5.K.  Request for Waiver of Fees by Cobre Valley Regional Medical Center Foundation for the Gila County Fairgrounds Exhibit Hall
	Item5.K._Att1_CV Reg Med Center Foundation  Application
	Item5.K._Att2_CVMC letter
	Item5.L.  October 12, 2010, October 26, 2010, November 11, 2010, and November 30, 2010, BOS Meeting Minutes
	Item5.L._Att1_BOS 10-12-10 Meeting Minutes
	Item5.L._Att2_BOS 10-26-10 Meeting Minutes
	Item5.L._Att3_BOS 11-16-10 Meeting Minutes
	Item5.L._Att4_BOS 11-30-11 Meeting Minutes
	Item5.M.  Clerk of Court Report for the Month of May 2011
	Item5.M._Att1_Clerk of Court Report for the Month of May 2011
	Item5.N.  Human Resources reports for the weeks of July 12, 2011 and July 19, 2011.
	Item5.N._Att1_7_12_11 Human Resources Agenda
	Item5.N._Att2_7_19_11 Human Resources Agenda



